
 For questions or information, please contact info@cumberlandcounty.virginia.gov or call 804/492-3800. 

Page 1 of 2 

 

CUMBERLAND COUNTY 

BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
 

Regular Monthly Meeting 

Cumberland County Circuit Courtroom A 

Cumberland, VA 

 

   

May 14, 2019 

                   Regular Meeting – 7:00 p.m. 

 

1. Call to Order  

 

2. Welcome and Pledge of Allegiance 

 

3. Roll Call 

 

4. Approval of Agenda         Motion 

 

5. State and Local Departments/Agencies/Community Service Providers  
a. Dr. Amy Griffin, Superintendent of Cumberland County Public Schools       Information 

b. VDOT               Information 

c. Mrs. Doris Seal, Cumberland Community Cares Food Bank update  Motion 

d. Mr. James Sanderson, Davenport & Company     Information 

 

6. Public Hearings 

a) CA 18-04 Setbacks and road frontage (pg. 1-46)    Motion 

b) CUP 19-02 – Rt. 606 Truck & Auto (pg. 47-60 )    Motion 

c) CUP 19-03 Timber Creek Event Barn (pg. 61-73)    Motion 

d) CUP 19-04 Northfield Plantation (pg. 74-88)    Motion 

e) REZ 19-01 Hamilton Dance Studio (pg. 89-101)    Motion 

f) REZ 19-02 Price Right Mini Storage (pg. 102-116)    Motion 

 

7. County Attorney/County Administrator Report 
a. Consent agenda         Motion 

i. Approval of bills        

ii. Approval of Minutes (April 2, 2019, April 9, 2019 &  

April 18, 2019) (pg. 117-140) 

b. Ratification of Prince Edward County amendments to  

Regional SWMP (pg. 141-178)       Motion 

c. Approval of appraisers under the Green Ridge Host Community 

Agreement (handout)        Motion 

d. Appointment needed for Piedmont ASAP Board (pg. 179)   Motion 

e. July 5, 2019 Holiday request       Motion 

f. Resolution in Recognition of Blanton & Pleasants (pg. 180)   Motion 

 

mailto:info@cumberlandcounty.virginia.gov


 For questions or information, please contact info@cumberlandcounty.virginia.gov or call 804/492-3800. 

Page 2 of 2 

 

8. Finance Director’s Report 
a. Monthly Budget Report (pg. 181-190)      Information 

b. CUCPS Supplemental Appropriation for additional funding for the 

18-19 school year - $659,009.28 (pg. 191-197)     Motion 

c. Supplemental Appropriation - $250 donation for Cumberland Animal 

Control (pg. 198-199)        Motion 

 

9. Planning Director’s Report  
a. Planning Project updates (pg. 200-201)          Information 

b. Set public hearing for CUP 19-05 Dowler, LLA (pg. 202)    Discussion 

         

10. Old Business 

 

11. New Business 

 

12. Public Comments 

 

13. Board Members Comments 
 

14. Adjourn into Closed Meeting (pg. 203) 
 

Pursuant to VA. Code § 2.2-3711.A.1: Personnel Matters.   

Subject: Salaries and assignment and reassignment of duties in county  

administration; sick leave bank discussion        

 

15. Reconvene in Open Meeting  (pg. 204)        

 

Roll call vote pursuant to Virginia Code § 2.2-3712 certifying “that to the best of  

each member’s knowledge (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted  

from open meeting requirements under this chapter and (ii) only such public  

business matters as were identified in the motion by which the closed meeting  

was convened were heard, discussed or considered in the meeting by the public body.” 

 

16. Additional Information – (pg. 205-216)  

a. Treasurer’s Report 

b. DMV Report 

c. Monthly Building Inspections Report 

d. Approved Planning Commission meeting minutes – March 25, 2019 

e. Approved IDA minutes – N/A 

 

17.  Adjourn –  Regular Meeting – June 11, 2019 

mailto:info@cumberlandcounty.virginia.gov


Sec. 74-136. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 2.  

TABLE 2  

 

A-2 SETBACK AND YARD REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIRED (as measured from 

the center line of any road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR YARD  

(a)  Designated primary highways: 130 100 feet  

(b)  All other public roads: 75 feet  

(c)  Private roads: 75 feet  

(a)  25 feet principal 

structure  

(b)  5 feet accessory 

structures  

(a)  35 feet principal 

structure  

(b)  5 feet accessory 

structures  

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments into the required setbacks of the district shall be permitted as 
follows:  

(1)  Uncovered stairs and stoops, air conditioners and heat pumps, none of which are more than 
ten (10) feet in width, may extend five (5) feet into any minimum required side or rear setback.  

(2)  Bay windows, oriels, and chimneys, none of which are more than ten (10) feet in width, may 
extend three (3) feet into any minimum required setback.  

(3)  Carports may extend five (5) feet into any minimum required side or rear setback.  

(4)  An accessibility improvement, defined as steps, ramps, and landings affording pedestrian and 
wheelchair access, may extend into any minimum required setback for the required length of 
the improvement.  

(5)  The following shall apply to any open (not roofed) deck attached to any existing single-family 
detached dwelling:  

a.  Any non-roofed deck may extend five (5) feet into any minimum required side or rear 
setback.  

b.  No deck may extend into any minimum required setback from a public or private road, nor 
shall such deck extend into any easement or other so encumbered area.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 13-04, 10-8-2013; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-137. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 3.  

TABLE 3  

 

1



A-2 FRONTAGE & LOT WIDTH  

REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500 feetPublic roads: 300 feet.  

Shall Must be the same as 

minimum required 

frontage.  

(b) Private roads: 200 feet. (b) All other public roads:  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum lot 

width at the building setback line. (1) 350 feet if a lot has an individual 

entrance onto a public road.  

(2) 300 feet for each of two lots that share an entrance onto a public road.  

(c) Private roads: 200 feet.  

(d) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum lot 

width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-138. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an A-2 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height, except that:  

 (1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided there 

are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more, plus one foot or more of side 

yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)  Any public or semipublic building such as a church, library or community centerbuilding may be 

erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the required front, side and rear yards 

shallmust be increased by one (1) foot for each foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.  

(32)  Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, and 

bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that section may from 

time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height requirements.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-07, 8-9-2016) 

Sec. 74-139. - Corner lots.  

2



Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads shall must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 

and setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)

Sec. 74-152. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 5.  

TABLE 5  

 

A-2 CLUSTER SETBACK AND YARD  

 

REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM  

SETBACK  

REQUIRED  

(as measured from the center line of any 

road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR YARD  

(a) Public roads: 130 100 feet  
(a) 25 feet principal 

structure  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure  

(b) All other roads: 50 feet  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures  

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures must occupy a 

required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-153. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 6.  

(b)  For the purposes of this section, any building lot which is separated from an existing public road by 
any conservation lot shall be deemed to front such existing public road for purposes of the 
application of such minimum frontage, setback and yard requirements unless the distance between 
the boundary of such conservation lot and any abutting residential lot shall be at least equal to the 
minimum setback requirement as listed in this subdivision.  

TABLE 6  

 

3



A-2 CLUSTER FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

(a) All existing public roads: 500 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) All other roads: 150 feet.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum 

lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-154. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads shall must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 

and setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)   

Sec. 74-155. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an A-2 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height, except that:  

(1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided there 

are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more, plus one foot or more of side 

yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)  A public or semipublicAny building such as a church, library or community center may be erected 

to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that required front, side and rear yards shall must be 

increased  by one (1) foot for each one (1) foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, and 

bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that section may from 

time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height requirements.Church spires, belfries, 

cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any property line shall may be more than 

one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the main primary building structure in 

height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)   

4



Sec. 74-156. - Conservation lot requirements.  

(a)  Conservation lot requirements. A conservation lot shall be provided in every cluster development 

and shall be permanently restricted to prohibit further residential, commercial or industrial development. 

Such restriction may be made in the form of a covenant running with the land so restricted and in favor of 

each building lot in the cluster development, and in favor of the County. In the alternative, such restriction 

may be effected by the conveyance or dedication of such restricted land to the County, the 

Commonwealth of Virginia or any other public body which is empowered to accept such conveyance or 

dedication. The substance of any such restriction, conveyance or dedication shall be subject to the 

approval of the County to ensure that such restriction shall be permanent and effective, which approval 

shall be made at the time of final subdivision approval and shall not be unreasonably withheld. The form 

of each such restriction, conveyance or dedication shall be subject to the approval of the county attorney 

at the time of final subdivision approval. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require the acceptance of any 

conveyance or dedication or land by any public body except as may be approved by the governing body 

of such public body in its sole discretion.  

(b)  Ownership, maintenance and permanent protection. Applicants shall must demonstrate compliance 

with the conservation lot ownership and maintenance standards as described below:  

(1)  Ownership.  

(a)  Up to 80eighty percent (80%) of the total minimum required conservation lot may be 

designated to an individual owner, land trust, community association or governmental 

entity with the remaining 20 twenty percent (20%) designated for local homeowners' own 

use and enjoyment.  

(b)  If the conservation lot is to not be entirely owned by a homeowner's association, 

then alternative arrangements must be approved by the board Board of supervisors 

Supervisors prior to final subdivision plat approval.  

(c)  Prior to or concurrently with final subdivision plat approval for any property within a 

cluster development, applicants shall record documents conveying a conservation 

easement applicable to the conservation lot, to the countyCounty, and to the group that 

will own the conservation lot, with content approved by the countyCounty, requiring 

preservation of features as designated on the required site resource and site analysis 

plan and on the final subdivision plat, requiring maintenance in perpetuity of the 

conservation lot, prohibiting further division of that area, and prohibiting any use not 

permitted by the zoning ordinance. Nothing herein shall be deemed to require the 

acceptance of any conveyance or dedication or land by any public body except as may 

be approved by the governing body of such public body in its sole discretion.  

(2)  Maintenance.  

(a)  Unless otherwise agreed to by the countyCounty, the cost and responsibility of 

maintaining common facilities and the conservation lot shall be borne by the property 

owner, community association, conservation organization, or individual owner.  

(b)  The applicant shall, at the time of preliminary plat submittal, provide a plan for 

maintenance of the conservation lot and operation of common facilities in accordance 

with the following requirements:  

5



(1)  The plan shall define ownership.  

(2)  The plan shall establish necessary regular and periodic operation and 

maintenance responsibilities for the various kinds of open space (i.e., lawns, 

playing fields, meadow, pasture, cropland, woodlands, etc.).  

(3)  The plan shall estimate staffing needs, insurance requirements, and 

associated costs, and define the means for funding the maintenance of the 

conservation lot and operation of any common facilities on an ongoing basis. 

Such funding plan shall include the means for funding long term capital 

improvements as well as regular yearly operating and maintenance costs.  

(4)  The applicant shall be required to escrow sufficient funds, through a bond 

with like surety, for the maintenance and operation costs of common facilities for 

up to one (1) year.  

(5)  Any changes to the maintenance plan shall be approved by the county 

County board Board of supervisorsSupervisors.  

(c)  In the event that the organization established to maintain the conservation lot and 

the common facilities, or any successor organization thereto, fails to maintain all or any 

portion thereof in reasonable order and condition, the county County may assume 

responsibility for maintenance, in which case any escrow funds may be forfeited and any 

permits may be revoked or suspended.  

(d)  The county County may enter the premises and take corrective action, including 

extended maintenance. The costs of such corrective action shall be paid from the surety 

bond established as part of the maintenance plan.  

(3)  Permanent protection.  

(a)  All conservation lot land shall be permanently restricted from future subdivision and 

other forms of development through a conservation easement running with the chain of 

title, in perpetuity, and recorded with the clerk Clerk of the circuit Circuit courtCourt. 

Under no circumstances shall any residential, commercial or industrial development be 

permitted in the conservation lot at any time.  

(b)  Prior to or concurrently with final plat approval for a cluster development, if the 

conservation lot is to be owned and maintained by a homeowners' association, the 

applicants shall record documents which create a homeowners' association, convey the 

conservation lot to the association and require that the association maintain all common 

areas and amenities, including recreation facilities, street lights, street trees, alleys, and 

pedestrian paths, with mandatory membership of all lot owners and authority for the 

association to assess fees and impose liens on members' property for the cost of 

maintenance of those areas. If a conservation lot is not to be owned and maintained by a 

homeowners' association, alternate arrangements for the ownership and maintenance of 

the conservation lot may be approved by the board Board of supervisorsSupervisors, as 

described in section 74-156.(b)(1).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)

6



 
 

Sec. 74-164. - Area and density regulations.  

The minimum gross residential density and the minimum lot area shall be as prescribed in Table 7.  

TABLE 7  

A-20 DENSITY AND LOT AREA  

REGULATIONS  

GROSS RESIDENTIAL DENSITY  MINIMUM LOT AREA  

1 dwelling unit per 10 acres  

20 acres, except that at the time of final plat submittal, one lot 

shall be permitted to be no smaller than ten acres. After 

recordation of a subdivision plat, no lot in shall be reduced in 

area below 20 acres.  

 

 Sec. 74-165. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 8.  

TABLE 8  

A-20 SETBACK AND YARD REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM  

 

SETBACK  

 

REQUIRED  

 

(as measured from the center line of any 

road)  

MINIMUM  

 

SIDE  

 

YARD  

MINIMUM  

 

REAR  

 

YARD  

All roads: 200 feet  

(a) 100 feet principal 

structure  

(a) 100 feet principal 

structure  

(b) 25 feet accessory 

structures  

(b) 25 feet accessory 

structures  

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may 

occupy a required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

7



 
 

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-166. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 9.  

TABLE 9  

 

A-20 FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH  

 

REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM  

 

FRONTAGE  

 

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM LOT  

 

WIDTH REQUIRED  

(a) All roads: 500 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  (b) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide 50 percent of 

the minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-167. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an A-20 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height, except that:  

(1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is a minimum of 50 feet and 
contains a minimum of one foot of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 
feet.  

Example: Proposed building height of 40 feet equals 50 + five additional feet over 35 feet = 55-
foot minimum required side yard setback for each side.  

(21)  No accessory building which is within fifty (50) feet of any property line shall be more than one 
(1) story high. All accessory buildings shall be less than the main buildingprimary structure in 
height.  

(32)  Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the required 
front, side, and rear yard setbacks must be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) foot in 
height over thirty-five (35) feet. A public or semipublic building such as a library or community 
center may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that required front, side and 
rear yards shall each be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

8



 

(43)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements. Cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, and bona 
fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that section may 
from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height requirements.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-07, 8-9-2016) 

Sec. 74-168. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-185. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
11.  

TABLE 11  

 

RA-1 SETBACK AND YARD REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIRED  

(as measured from the center line of any road)  

MINIMUM SIDE  

YARD  

MINIMUM REAR  

YARD  

(a) Designated primary highways: 150 100 feet  
(a) 25 feet principal 

structure  

(a) 50 feet principal 

structure  

(b) State Route 622: 150 100feet  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures  

(c) All other public roads: 75 feet    

(d) Private roads: 75 feet    

(e) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac; — must provide 50% 

of the minimum lot width at the building setback line.  
  

  

(b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 

required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

9



 

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017)  

Sec. 74-186. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 12.  

TABLE 12  

RA-1 FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH  

REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

 

LOT WIDTH REQUIRED  

(a) Designated primary highways: 50 feet.Public roads: 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as 

minimum required 

frontage. 

(b) Private roads: 200 feet. (b) All other public roads:  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac—Must provide the minimum lot with 

at the building setback line. (1) 350 feet if a lot has an individual entrance 

onto a public road.  

(2) 300 feet if two lots share an entrance onto a public road.  

(c) Private roads: 200 feet.  

(d) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac—Must provide the minimum lot with 

at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-187. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an RA-1 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height except that:  

(1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 25 feet or more, plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yard setbacks must be increased by one (1) foot for each foot in 
height over thirty-five (35) feet. A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, library 

10



 

or general hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that required 
front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

(3)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, 
and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that 
section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, silos, barns, water towers, 
chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may 
be up to four feet above the height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(4)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any party common lot property line 
shall may be more than one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the 
main buildingprimary structure in height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-188. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-202. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
14.  

TABLE 14  

RA-1 CLUSTER SETBACK AND YARD  

REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM  

SETBACK  

REQUIRED  

(as measured from the center line of any 

road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR YARD  

(a) Public roads: 500 feet.  
(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 150 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

11



 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017)  

 

  

Sec. 74-203. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 15.  

(b)  For the purposes of this section, any building lot which is separated from an existing public road by 
any conservation lot shall be deemed to front such existing public road for purposes of the 
application of such minimum frontage, setback and yard requirements unless the distance between 
the boundary of such conservation lot and any abutting residential lot shall be at least equal to the 
minimum setback requirement as listed in this subdivision.  

TABLE 15  

RA-1 CLUSTER FRONTAGE AND LOT  

WIDTH REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

(da) Designated primary highways: 500 feet.Public roads: 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) Private roads: 100 feet. (e) All other existing public roads: 350 feet.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum lot 

width at the building setback line. (f) Private roads: 100 feet.  

(g) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum lot 

width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-204. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an RA-1 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height except that:  

12



 

 (1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 25 feet or more, plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side, and rear yard setbacks  must be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) 
foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, 
library or general hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that 
required front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 
feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements. Church spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, silos, barns, water towers, 
chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may 
be up to four feet above the height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any party lotcommon property line 
shall may be more than one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the 
main building in height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-205. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-225. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
18.  

TABLE 18  

 

R-1 SETBACK AND YARD REGULATIONS  

 
MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIRED (as measured 

from the center line of any road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE  

YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR  

YARD  

Base  

(d) Designated primary highways: 130 100 feet.  
(c) 15 feet principal 

structure.  

(c) 35 feet principal 

structure.  

(e) All other roads: 75 feet.  
(d) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(d) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

13



 

Bonus  

1  

and  

2  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 100 feet.  

(a) 5 feet all 

structures.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other public roads: 75 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  
(c) Private roads: 45 feet.  

  

(b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may 

occupy a required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 13-04, 10-8-2013; Ord. No. 13-06, 10-14-2014; Ord. 

No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-226. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 19.  

TABLE 19  

R-1 FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH  

REGULATIONS  

 

MINIMUM  

FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT  

WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

Base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500 feet. Public roads: 300 

feet. 

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) All other public roads: 300 feet.  

(cb) Private roads: 200 feet.  

(dc) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

Bonus  (a) All public roads: 500 300 feet.  Shall be the same as minimum 

14



 

1  

and  

2  

(b) Private roads: 75 feet.  required frontage.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 13-06, 10-14-2014)  

 

Sec. 74-227. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an R-1 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height; except that:  

(1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yard setback must be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) 
foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, 
library or general hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that 
required front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 
feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, 
flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four 
feet above the height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any party lotcommon property line 
shall may be more than one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the 
main building in height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-228. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-242. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
22.  

15



 

TABLE 22  

 

R-1 CLUSTER SETBACK AND YARD  

REGULATIONS  

 
MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIRED (as measured 

from the center line of any road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE  

YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR  

YARD  

Base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 100 feet.  
(c) 15 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 50 feet.  
(d) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

Bonus  

over  

base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 100 feet.  

(a) 5 feet all 

structures.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 50 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-243. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 23.  

(b)  For the purposes of this section, any building lot which is separated from an existing public road by 
any conservation lot shall be deemed to front such existing public road for purposes of the 
application of such minimum frontage, setback and yard requirements unless the distance between 
the boundary of such conservation lot and any abutting residential lot shall be at least equal to the 
minimum setback requirement as listed in this subdivision.  

TABLE 23  

 

R-1 CLUSTER FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS  

 MINIMUM  MINIMUM  

16



 

FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

LOT  

WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

Base  

(a) All pPublic roads: 500 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) Private roads: 125 feet.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

Bonus  

over  

base  

(a) All pPublic roads: 500 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) Private roads: 75 feet.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

 

Sec. 74-244. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an R-1 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height; except that:  

 (1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side, and rear yard setbacks shall be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) 
foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, 
library or general hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that 
required front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 
feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, 
flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four 
feet above the height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any party lot shall be more than one 
(1) story high. All accessory buildings shall be less than the main building in height.  

17



 

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-245. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-265. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
26.  

TABLE 26  

R-2 SETBACK AND YARD REGULATIONS  

 

MINIMUM SETBACK REQUIRED  

(as measured from the center line of 

any road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE  

YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR  

YARD  

Base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 

100 feet.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 35 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 75 feet.  
(b) 15 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 15 feet accessory 

structures  

Bonus  

over  

base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 

100 feet.  

(a) 10 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other public roads: 75 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(c) Private roads: 45 feet.    

 

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 13-04, 10-8-2013; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-266. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

18



 

The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 27.  

TABLE 27  

R-2 FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH  

REGULATIONS  

 

MINIMUM  

FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT  

WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

Base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500 feet.Public roads: 300 

feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) All other public roads:  

(1) 350 feet if a lot has an individual entrance onto a public 

road.  

(2) 300 feet if two lots share an entrance onto a public road.  

(cb) Private roads: 200 feet  

(dc) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

Bonus  

over  

base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) All other public roads: 150 feet.  

(c) Private roads: 100 feet.  

(d) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

 

19



 

Sec. 74-267. - Height regulation.  

Buildings in an R-2 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height; except that:  

 (1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yard setbacks must be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) 
foot in height over thirty-five (35) feet.A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, 
library or general hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade provided that 
required front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 
feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, 
flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four 
feet above the height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any party lot line shall may be more 
than one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the main building in 
height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-268. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads.Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-282. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
30.  

TABLE 30  

 

R-2 CLUSTER SETBACK AND YARD  

REGULATIONS  

 

MINIMUM  

 

SETBACK  

 

REQUIRED  

 

MINIMUM  

 

SIDE  

YARD  

MINIMUM  

 

REAR  

YARD  

20



 

(as measured from the center line of 

any road)  

Base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 

100 feet.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 50 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

Bonus  

over  

base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 

100 feet.  

(a) 10 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 50 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

 

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-283. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 31.  

(b)  For the purposes of this section, any building lot which is separated from an existing public road by 
any conservation lot shall be deemed to front such existing public road for purposes of the 
application of such minimum frontage, setback and yard requirements unless the distance between 
the boundary of such conservation lot and any abutting residential lot shall be at least equal to the 
minimum setback requirement as listed in this subdivision.  

TABLE 31  

R-2 CLUSTER FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS  

 

MINIMUM  

FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT  

WIDTH  

RE-  

QUIRED  

Base  (a) Designated primary highways: 50 300 feet.  Shall be the same as minimum 

21



 

(b) All other roads: 150 feet.  required frontage.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

Bonus  

over  

base  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) All other roads: 100 feet.  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the 

minimum lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

 

Sec. 74-284. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an R-2 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height; except that:  

 (1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yards must be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) foot in 
height over thirty-five (35) feet. A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, library 
or general hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that required 
front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, 
flagpoles, television antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four 
feet above the height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any party lot shall may be more than 
one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the main building in height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-285. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

22



 

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-305. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
33.  

TABLE 33  

 

R-3 SETBACK AND YARD REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM  

 

SETBACK  

 

REQUIRED  

 

(as measured from the center line of any 

road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR YARD  

(a) Designated primary highways: 130 100 

feet.  

(a) 50 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 75 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other public roads: 75 feet.  
(b) 15 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 15 feet accessory 

structures.  

(c) Private roads: 75 feet.    

 

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 13-04, 10-8-2013; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-306. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 34.  

TABLE 34  

 

R-3 FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH  

REGULATIONS  

23



 

MINIMUM FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM LOT WIDTH 

REQUIRED  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500 feet.Public roads: 300 feet.  

Shall be the same as 

minimum required 

frontage.  

(b) Private roads: 250 feet. (b) All other public roads:  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum lot 

width at the building setback line. (1) 350 feet if a lot has an individual 

entrance onto a public road.  

(2) 300 feet if two lots share an entrance onto a public road.  

(c) Private roads: 250 feet.  

(d) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum lot 

width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

 

Sec. 74-307. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an R-3 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height; except that:  

 (1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more, plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(21)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yards shall be increased by one (1) foot for each foot in height over 
thirty-five (35) feet. A public or semipublic building such as a church, library or community 
center may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that required front, side and 
rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

(32)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio 
aerials, and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as 
that section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas 
and radio aerials are exempt.  

(43)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any property line shall be more than 
one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall be less than the main building in height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

24



 

Sec. 74-308. - Corner lots.  

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-322. - Setback and yard regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required setbacks and the minimum required yards shall be as prescribed in Table 
36.  

TABLE 36  

 

R-3 CLUSTER SETBACK AND YARD  

REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM  

SETBACK  

REQUIRED  

 

(as measured from the center line of any road)  

MINIMUM  

SIDE YARD  

MINIMUM  

REAR YARD  

(a) Public roads: 130 feet. Designated primary 

highways: 100 feet. 

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(a) 25 feet principal 

structure.  

(b) All other roads: 50 feet.  
(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

(b) 5 feet accessory 

structures.  

 

 (b)  No accessory structure, except for permitted fences, walls, and ornamental structures may occupy a 
required front setback. 

(bc)  Minor and limited encroachments are allowed as prescribed in 74-136(b).  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011; Ord. No. 16-10, 3-14-2017) 

Sec. 74-323. - Frontage and lot width regulations.  

(a)  The minimum required lot frontage and the minimum required lot width shall be as prescribed in 
Table 37.  

(b)  For the purposes of this section, any building lot which is separated from an existing public road by 
any conservation lot shall be deemed to front such existing public road for purposes of the 
application of such minimum frontage, setback and yard requirements unless the distance between 
the boundary of such conservation lot and any abutting residential lot shall be at least equal to the 
minimum setback requirement as listed in this subdivision.  

25



 

TABLE 37  

 

R-3 CLUSTER FRONTAGE AND LOT WIDTH REGULATIONS  

MINIMUM FRONTAGE  

REQUIRED  

MINIMUM  

LOT WIDTH  

REQUIRED  

(a) Designated primary highways: 500300 feet.  

Shall be the same as minimum 

required frontage.  

(b) All other roads: 150 feet  

(c) Cul-de-sac: 50 feet on a cul-de-sac;—Must provide the minimum 

lot width at the building setback line.  

  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

 

Sec. 74-324. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an R-3 district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height; except that:  

(1)   The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 15 feet or more, plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

(2)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yards must be increased by one (1) foot for each one (1) foot in 
height over thirty-five (35) feet.A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, library 
or community center may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade, provided that required 
front, side and rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

(3)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, 
and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that 
section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas 
and radio aerials are exempt.  

(4)  No accessory building which is within twenty (20) feet of any property line shall may be more 
than one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall must be less than the main building in 
height.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011) 

Sec. 74-325. - Corner lots.  

26



 

Any lot or parcel fronting on two (2) or more roads must conform to the frontage, minimum lot width, 
and setback requirements for all such roads. Any lot or parcel fronting on two or more roads shall conform 
to the frontage, lot width, setback and yard requirements for all such roads.  

(Ord. No. 11-05, § c, 7-12-2011)  

Sec. 74-342. - Area regulations.  

(a)  A maximum of four (4) family dwelling units constructed on a minimum of three (3) acres and served 
with private water and sewer shall be allowed in the R-2M zone.  

(b)  For lots containing or intended to contain a single dwelling unit served by central water and sewer 
systems, the minimum lot area shall be twenty thousand (20,000) square feet.  

(c)  For lots containing or intended to contain a single dwelling unit served by either public or central 
water or sewer systems, but not both, the minimum lot area shall be one (1) acre.  

(d)  For lots containing or intended to contain more than a one (1) single dwelling unit served by public 
or central water and sewer systems, the minimum lot area shall be:  

(1)  No more than Twotwo (2) dwelling units per twenty-five thousand (25,000) square feet or more. 
; 

(2)  No more than Three three dwelling units per thirty-five thousand (35,000) square feet or more. ; 

(3)  For each additional dwelling unit above three units, at least five thousand (5,000) square feet 
shall be required.  

(4)  For permitted uses utilizing individual sewer systems, the required area for any such use shall 
be at least forty thousand (40,000) square feet per dwelling unit and shall require approval by 
the county health departmentVirginia Department of Health. The zoning administrator may 
require additional area based on a report from the county health departmentVirginia Department 
of Health addressing sewer disposal and public health considerations.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8)  

Sec. 74-343. - Lot frontage; lot width.  

(a)  Frontage. The minimum lot frontage for permitted uses in an R-2M district shall must be at least 80 
percenteighty percent (80%) of the minimum lot frontage; for permitted uses on a culs-de-sac, the 
minimum lot frontage shall must be at least fifty (50) feet.  

(b)  Width.  

(1)  The minimum lot width required shall be exclusive of all road rights-of-way, ponds, lakes and 
rivers.  

(2)  For a single permitted use served by both public water or central water and sewer systems, the 
minimum lot width shall be seventy-five (75) feet; and for each additional permitted use, there 
shall be an additional ten (10) feet of lot width.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8) 

Sec. 74-344. - Yard regulations.  

(a)  Side. The minimum side yard for each main structure in an R-2M district shall be ten (10) feet, and 
the total width of the two required side yards shall be at least twenty-five (25) feet or more.  

(b)  Rear. Each main structure shall have a rear yard of at least twenty-five (25) feet or more.  

27



 

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8)  

 

Sec. 74-345. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an R-2M district may be erected up to thirty-five (35) feet in height from grade; except 
that:  

(1)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the 
required front, side and rear yards shall be increased by one (1) foot for each foot in height over 
thirty-five (35) feet.  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to forty-five (45) feet 
provided at least one (1) foot per side yard setback is added for each additional one (1) foot of 
building height over thirty-five (35) feet. The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 
feet and up to three stories, provided there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of 
which is ten feet or more, plus one foot or more of side yard for each additional foot of building 
height over 35 feet.  

(2)  Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, 

and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that 

section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 

requirements.  

(23)  No accessory building which is within ten (10) feet of any part of a lot line shall be more than 
one (1) story high. All accessory buildings shall be less than the main building in height.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8) 

Sec. 74-346. - Parking.  

A minimum of Two two (2) parking spaces, each being a minimum of ten (10) feet in width and 
surface treated, shall beare required per dwelling unit in an R-2M district.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8) 

Sec. 74-347. - Corner lots.  

(a)  The side yard from the side facing the side street in an R-2M district shall must be at least twenty-
five (25) feet or more for both main primary and accessory buildingsstructures.  

(b)  Each corner lot shall must have a minimum width at the setback line of one hundred (100) feet.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8) 

Sec. 74-348. - Plan of development.  

(a)  No building permit shall be issued for any dwelling unit on R-2M zoned property until a plan of 
development is reviewed by the planning Planning commission Commission and approved by the 
board Board of supervisors Supervisors following public hearings before each body conducted 
pursuant to the provisions of Code of Virginia, § 15.2-2204. The plan of development shall include:  

(1)  The location of all boundary lines for the property as shown on a current plat of survey;  

(2)  The location of all proposed dwelling units and accessory structures on the property;  

28



 

(3)  The location and design of all proposed parking facilities on the property, including traffic flow, 
access and exit designations, and lighting considerations;  

(4)  The topographical contours of the property shown on a scale of one (1) inch equals four 
hundred (400) feet, two (2)-foot intervals, showing drainage on the property;  

(5)  The location of all proposed water and sewer systems or individual septic systems serving the 
property;  

(6)  The location of any proposed screening (including fencing, walls, shrubbery and trees) as may 
be appropriate considering adjoining properties; and  

(7)  In cases involving questionable water supplies serving the property, a hydrogeological report 
verifying the availability of water resources serving the property.  

(b)  No structures shall be constructed nor improvements made on the property except in compliance 
with an approved plan of development.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 8)  

Sec. 74-383. - Accessory uses and structures permitted.  

Accessory uses and structures are permitted in a R-MH district as defined; however, such uses must 
be located at least fifteen (15) feet from the manufactured housing and at least five (5) feet from any 
property line. This pertains to garages and other accessory buildings; however, porches buildings. 
Porches and stoops attached to the mobile home are considered part of the unit.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 3)  

Sec. 74-384. - Design standards for small lot manufactured housing subdivisions.  

(a)  Minimum area. The minimum area for a manufactured housing subdivision shall be twenty (20) 
acres, not including water or other undevelopable areas.  

(b)  Minimum lot size. For lots contained within a small lot manufactured housing subdivision, the 
minimum lot area shall be two (2) acres.  

(c)  Setback regulations. Manufactured housing and accessory structures shall comply with the 
front yard setback regulations as follows: No structures shall be located any closer to the 
centerline of any road right-of-way on any designated primary highway than 130 one hundred 
(100) feet or more, or seventy-five (75) feet or more from the centerline of any secondary road 
right-of-way or street right-of-way for any private road, except that temporary signs advertising 
sale or rent of premises may be erected up to the property line. This shall be known as the 
setback line.  

(d)  Lot frontage; lot width.  

(1)  Frontage. The minimum lot frontage for permitted uses shall be at least 80 eighty percent 
(80%) of the minimum required lot width; however, the minimum lot frontage for permitted 
uses on a culs-de-sac shall be at least fifty (50) feet.  

(2)  Width. The minimum lot width for permitted uses shall be one hundred fifty (150) feet.  

(e)  Yard regulations.  

(1)  Side. The minimum side yard for each mobile home shall be fifteen (15) feet, and the total 
width of the two required side yards shall be at least thirty-five (35) feet or more.  

(2)  Rear. Each main structure shall have a rear yard of at least thirty-five (35) feet or more.  

29



 

(f)  Street requirements. All streets constructed within a manufactured housing subdivision shall be 
built to state standards. Furthermore, all lots within the manufactured housing subdivision shall 
have access to an interior street system with no driveway cuts permitted on existing state 
primary or secondary roads.  

(g)  Open space. For subdivisions containing individual lots of less than three acres, the subdivider 
shall set aside at least four percent (4%) of the gross area of the entire subdivision for common 
open space. The minimum amount of land required for common open space shall be one-half 
(.5) acre and the common open space is to be maintained by a homeowner's association.  

(h)  Greenbelt. A small lot manufactured housing subdivision shall have a greenbelt planting strip or 
natural vegetation consisting of not less than thirty-five (35) feet in depth which is left 
undisturbed, along all subdivision boundaries to include existing public roads.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 4; Ord. of 1-10-2006)  

 

Sec. 74-387. - Individual manufactured housing standards within manufactured housing subdivisions.  

(a)  Mounting and anchorage. All manufactured housing (regardless of date of manufacture) shall be 
mounted and anchored in accordance with instructions provided with the unit or by the methods in 
The Virginia Industrialized Building Unit and Mobile Home Safety Regulations, adopted by the state 
corporation commission.  

(b)  Skirts. The area between the bottom of the walls of the mobile home and ground surface must be 
neatly skirted with material fabricated from metal, concrete, masonry, rigid vinyl or fiberglass; such 
skirts must be rattlefree and installed in a manner to accommodate frost heave.  

(c)  Proximity to conventionally built dwellings. No manufactured housing may be placed within three 
hundred (300) feet of an existing conventionally built dwelling that is located outside of the 
manufactured housing subdivision; if less than three hundred (300) feet, it must have a buffer of 
evergreens of at least six (6) feet in height.  

(Ord. of 1-26-1994, § 7)  

Sec. 74-425. - Setback regulations.  

(a)  Front setback. No structures in a B-1 district shall be located any closer to the centerline of any road 
right-of-way on any designated primary highway than 130 one hundred (100) feet or more, or sixty 
(60) feet or more from the centerline of any secondary road right-of-way or street right-of-way for any 
private road, except that temporary signs advertising sale or rent of premises may be erected up to 
the property line. This shall be known as the setback line. Exceptions to this subsection will be those 
properties or any subdivision fronting on the south side of Rt. 60, starting with the southernmost 
boundary of tax parcel #57A2-A-30, continuing north to the northern boundary of tax parcel #57A2-A-
45 and fronting on the north side of Rt. 60 starting with the southern boundary of tax parcel #57A1-A-
3 to its northern boundary, and starting with the southern boundary of tax parcel #57A2-A-11. The 
setback line for these exceptions shall be seventy-five (75) feet from the centerline of the right-of-
way of Rt. 60.  

(b)  Side. The minimum side yard for structures shall be fifteen (15) feet.  

(c)  Rear. The minimum rear yard for the main structure shall be no less thanthirty-five (35) feet.  

(Code 1990, § 14-43; Ord. of 1-14-1998; Ord. of 7-14-1999; Ord. of 1-10-2006; Ord. No. 08-02, 

§ 8., 5-13-2008(2)) 

30



 

 

Sec. 74-426. - Road frontage.  

The minimum lot primary, secondary, and access road frontage in a B-1 district shall be at least 80 
eighty percent (80%)of the lot width determined at the building setback line. (Exceptions to road 
frontage—when on the radius of a cul-de-sac.)  

(Code 1990, § 14-44; Ord. of 7-14-1999)  

 

Sec. 74-427. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in a B-1 district may be erected up to 35 forty-five (45) feet in height from grade; except 
that:  

(1)   Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade provided that required 
front, side, and rear yard setbacks each shall be increased one (1) foot for each one (1) foot in 
height over forty-five (45) feet. The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and 
up to three stories provided there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is 
ten feet or more, plus one foot or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height 
over 35 feet.  

(2)   Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, 
and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that 
section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from height 
requirements.A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, library or general 
hospital may be erected to a height of 60 feet from grade; provided that required front, side and 
rear yards shall be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

 (3)  Church spires, belfries, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television 
antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four feet above the height of 
the building on which the walls rest.  

(4)  No accessory structure which is within ten feet of any party lot line shall be more than one story 
high. All accessory structures shall be less than the main structure in height.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45)  

 

Sec. 74-465. - Setback requirements.  

(a)  Front setback. No structures in a B-2 district shall be located any closer to the centerline of any road 
right-of-way on any designated primary highway than 130 one hundred (100) feet or more, or sixty 
(60) feet or more from the centerline of any secondary road right-of-way or street right-of-way for any 
private road, except that temporary signs advertising sale or rent of premises may be erected up to 
the property line. This shall be known as the setback line.  

(b)  Side. The minimum side yard for the structures shall be fifteen (15) feet.  

(c)  Rear. The minimum rear yard for the main structure shall be no less than thirty-five (35) feet.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45E; Ord. of 7-14-1999; Ord. of 1-10-2006) 

31



 

Sec. 74-466. - Road frontage.  

The minimum lot primary, secondary and access road frontage in a B-2 district shall be at least 80 
eighty percent (80%) of the lot width determined at the building setback line. (Exceptions to road 
frontage—when on the radius of a cul-de-sac.)  

(Code 1990, § 14-45F; Ord. of 7-14-1999) 

Sec. 74-470. - Height limitation.  

 No portion of any building in a B-2 district shall exceed 15 feet in height within 25 feet, or 25 feet in 
height within 50 feet, of any lot which is directly across the road from or is adjacent to or adjoins a 
residential district; however, no building shall exceed 35 feet in height from grade.  

1. Buildings in a B-2 district may be erected to a maximum height of thirty-five (35) feet. For 

purposes of the section. 

2. Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the required 

front, side and rear yards shall be increased by one (1) foot for each foot in height over thirty-

five (35) feet.  

3. Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, 

and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that section 

may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from the height requirement 

contained herein. 

(Code 1990, § 14-45K) 

Sec. 74-471. - Limitations on access.  

There shall be no direct vehicular access of any portion of a B-2 district through a residential district.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45L)  

Sec. 74-472471. - Utilities.  

Distribution lines and service connections in a B-2 district shall be installed underground in 
accordance with the provisions of the tariff of the utility then on file with the state corporation commission; 
however, a lot which abuts an existing major street or highway where overhead electric or telephone 
distribution lines have theretofore been installed on any portion which is abutted by the lot may be 
supplied with electric and telephone service from such overhead lines, but the service connections from 
such overhead lines shall be installed underground.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45M) 

Sec. 74-473472. - Off-street parking.  

(a)  There shall be provided at the time of erection of any main building in a B-2 district or at the time 
any main building is enlarged or structurally altered and converted to another use, adequate 
minimum off-street parking spaces.  

(b)  Each business shall provide one parking space per 200 square feet of floor area.  

32



 

(c)  All parking spaces required in this section shall be located on the same lot with the building or use 
served.  

(d)  All parking spaces must be surfaced with asphalt or concrete.  

(e)  All parking facilities shall be drained to eliminate standing water and prevent damage to abutting 
property and/or public streets and surfaced with erosion-resistant materials as specified in section 
34-31 et seq.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45N) 

Secs. 74-474473—74-500. - Reserved.  

Sec. 74-505. - Setback regulations.  

(a)  Front setback. No structures in a B-3 district shall be located any closer to the centerline of any road 
right-of-way on any designated primary highway than one hundred 130 (100) feet or more, or sixty 
(60) feet or more from the centerline of any secondary road right-of-way or street right-of-way for any 
private road, except that temporary signs advertising sale or rent of premises may be erected up to 
the property line. This shall be known as the setback line.  

(b)  Side. The minimum side yard for the structures shall be fifteen (15) feet.  

(c)  Rear. The minimum side rear yard for the main structures shall be no less than thirty-five (35) feet.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45R; Ord. of 1-14-1998; Ord. of 7-14-1999; Ord. of 1-10-2006)  

Sec. 74-506. - Road frontage.  

The minimum lot primary, secondary and access road frontage in a B-3 district shall be at least 80 
eighty percent (80%) of the lot width determined at the building setback line. (Exceptions to road 
frontage—when on the radius of a cul-de-sac.)  

(Code 1990, § 14-45S; Ord. of 1-14-1998; Ord. of 7-14-1999) 

Sec. 74-507. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in a B-3 district may be erected up to a maximum height of thirty-five (35) feet in height 
from grade; except that: 

1. Any building may be erected to a height of sixty (60) feet from grade, provided that the required 

front, side and rear yards shall be increased by one (1) foot for each foot in height over thirty-

five (35) feet.  

1.2. Church spires, belfries, cupolas, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television antennas, radio aerials, 

and bona fide farm buildings or structures as defined by Code of Virginia, § 36-97 as that 

section may from time to time be amended and/or recodified are exempt from the height  

requirement contained herein. 

(1)  The height limit for dwellings may be increased up to 45 feet and up to three stories provided 
there are two side yards for each permitted use, each of which is ten feet or more, plus one foot 
or more of side yard for each additional foot of building height over 35 feet.  

33



 

 (2)  A public or semipublic building such as a school, church, library or general hospital may be 
erected to a height of 60 feet from grade provided that required front, side and rear yards shall 
be increased one foot for each foot in height over 35 feet.  

(3)  Church spires, belfries, monuments, water towers, chimneys, flues, flagpoles, television 
antennas and radio aerials are exempt. Parapet walls may be up to four feet above the height of 
the building on which the walls rest.  

(4)  No accessory structure which is within ten feet of any property lot line shall be more than one 
story high. All accessory structures shall be less than the main structure in height.  

(Code 1990, § 14-45T; Ord. of 5-14-1997)  

Sec. 74-546. - Setback regulations.  

(a) Front Setback. No structures in an M-1 district shall may be located any closer to the centerline 
of any road right-of-way on any designated primary highway than 130 one hundred (100) feet or 
more, or 75 sixty (60) feet or more from the centerline of any secondary road right-of-way or 
street right-of-way for any private road, except that temporary signs advertising sale or rent of 
premises may be erected up to the property line. This shall be known as the setback line. 

(b)  Side. The minimum side yard for the structures must be twenty-five (25) feet. The side yard of 
corner lots must be least forty (40) feet. 

(a)(c) Rear. The minimum rear yard for the main structure must be thirty-five (35) feet. 

(Code 1990, § 14-50; Ord. of 1-10-2006) 

Sec. 74-547. - Frontage and yard regulations.  

For permitted uses in an M-1 district, the minimum side yard adjoining or adjacent to a residential or 
agricultural district shall be ten feet. The side yard of corner lots shall be 20 feet or more. Off-street 
parking shall be in accordance with the provisions contained in this chapter.  

(Code 1990, § 14-51) 

Sec. 74-548. - Height regulations.  

Buildings in an M-1 district may be erected up to a height of 35 feet. For buildings over 35 feet in 
height, approval shall be obtained from the administrator. Chimneys, flues, cooling towers, flagpoles, or 
their accessory facilities not normally occupied by workers are excluded from this limitation. Parapet walls 
are permitted up to four feet above the limited height of the building on which the walls rest.  

(Code 1990, § 14-52; Ord. of 5-14-1997)  

Sec. 74-549547. - Industrial performance standards.  

(a)  [In general.] Any industrial use established after date of adoption shall be operated so as to meet 
the performance standards established hereinafter. Any use already established on date of adoption 
shall be permitted to continue provided that no alteration,; expansion, enlargement, or modification 
shall be permitted which effectively increases the degree of nonconformity that existed prior to any 
alteration, expansion, enlargement, or modification is permitted. An application to alter, expand 
enlarge, modify an existing use which does not meet the performance standards shall include a 

34



 

statement identifying measures proposed to bring the use into conformity with the performance 
standards.  

Points of measurement to determine compliance with the performance standards shall be the property lot 
line or zoning line nearest the source that is the subject of measurement.  

(1)  Noise. All sources of noise (except those not under direct control of occupant of use, such as 
vehicles), must not create sound or impact noise levels in excess of the values specified below 
when measured at the points indicated. In addition, between 9:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., the 
permissible sound levels at a residential district boundary where adjoining industrial districts, 
shall be reduced by five decibels in each octave band and in the overall band for impact noises.  

Method of measurement and meaning of terms:  

Noise shall be measured by means of a sound level meter and octave band analyzer, calibrated 
in decibels (re 0.002 microbar) and shall be measured at the nearest lot line from which the 
noise level radiates. Impact noises shall be measured by means of an impact noise analyzer. 
Impact noises are those who peak values fluctuate more than six decibels from the steady 
values indicated on the sound level meter set at fast response.  

Decibel. A measurement of the intensity (volume) of a sound.  

Octave band. A prescribed interval of sound frequencies which classifies sound according to its 
pitch.  

Preferred frequency octave bands. A stigmatized series of octave bands prescribed by the 
American Standards Association in Sel. 6-1970 Preferred Frequencies for Acoustical 
Measurements.  

Sound level meter. An electronic instrument which includes a microphone, an amplifier, and an 
output meter which measures noise and sound pressure levels in a specified manner. It may be 
used with the octave band analyzer that permits measuring the sound pressure level in discrete 
octave bands.  

Maximum Permitted Sound Levels  

(Decibels)  

Octave band  

cycles/second  

At  

residential  

boundaries  

At other  

lot lines  

31.5  64  72  

63  64  74  

125  60  70  

250  54  65  

500  48  59  

35



 

1,000  42  55  

2,000  38  51  

4,000  34  47  

8,000  30  44  

Overall  80  90  

  

(2)  Glare. No direct or sky reflected glare, whether from flood lights or from high temperature 
processes such as combustion, welding or otherwise, is to be visible beyond the lot line, except 
for signs, and other lighting permitted by this section or required by any other applicable 
regulation, ordinance or law.  

(3)  Air pollution. The rules and regulations of the State of Virginia shall apply.  

(4)  Water pollution. The rules and regulations of the State of Virginia shall apply.  

(5)  Radioactivity. There shall be no radioactive emission which would be dangerous to the health 
and safety of persons on or beyond the premises where such radioactive material is used. 
Determination of existence of such danger and the handling of radioactive materials, the 
discharge of such materials into the atmosphere and streams or other water, and the disposal of 
radioactive wastes shall be by reference to and in accordance with applicable current 
regulations of the governments of the United States and the State of Virginia.  

(6)  Electrical interference. There shall be no electrical disturbance emanating from any lot which 
would adversely affect the operation of any equipment on any other lot or premises.  

(7)  Smoke and particulate matter limitations.  

a.  General limitations. In addition to the performance standard specified hereinafter, the 
emission of smoke or particulate matter in such manner or quantity as to be detrimental to 
or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, or welfare is hereby declared to be a public 
nuisance and shall henceforth be unlawful.  

Particulate matter emission caused by the wind from open storage areas, yards, roads, etc. 
within lot lines shall be kept to a minimum by appropriate landscaping, paving, wetting, or 
other means.  

For the purposes of determining the density or equivalent opacity of smoke, the 
Ringelmann Chart as adopted and published by the United States Bureau of Mines in 
Circular No. 8333 (7718) shall be employed, or standards used by DEQ.  

b.  Permitted smoke emission. Within 1,000 feet of a residence or commercial zoning district 
boundary line, the emission of visible smoke from any vent, stack, chimney, or combustion 
process, darker than Ringelmann No. 2 for a period or periods aggregating more than four 
minutes in any 60 minute period shall not be permitted.  

(8)  Toxic matter limitations. In any industrial district, toxic materials which are released shall not 
exceed ten percent of the maximum permissible airborne concentration allowed an industrial 
worker when measured at any point beyond the lot line, either at ground level or habitable 
elevation, whichever is more restrictive. When maximum permissible airborne concentrations of 

36



 

toxic materials allowed an industrial worker are not contained in the most recent list of 
Threshold Limit Values published by the American Conference of Governmental Industrial 
Hygienists, the applicant shall satisfy the county health officer that proposed levels will be safe 
to the general population.  

(9)  Odorous matter limitations. The release of odorous matter from any industrial district across 
residential or commercial district boundary lines shall be so controlled that at ground level or at 
habitable elevations the concentration shall not exceed the odor threshold lines. Further, the 
release of odorous matter across lot lines shall not become a nuisance or source of discomfort 
to neighboring uses. As a guide in determining qualities of offensive odors, Table III (Odor 
Thresholds). Chapter 5. "Air Pollution Abatement Manual" by Manufacturing Chemists 
Association, Inc. (as amended) may be used.  

(10)  Certified engineer's report submittal. The applicant for a grading permit, sediment control 
permit, or building permit for uses in an industrial district, or applicants for variances to the 
district shall be required to submit proof that the uses proposed will not cause violations of 
federal, state or county laws or regulations. For industrial uses which will produce emissions of 
pollutants to the waters or air of the county, this proof shall include measurements of the 
ambient water and air quality as well as documentation in the form of figures that the additional 
planned and proposed industrial use will not cause the violation of either ambient or source 
standards outlined by the laws and regulations of the federal, state, or county governments.  

Each future occupant of an industrial character shall submit to the county as a part of final site 
development plan approval, a certified engineer's report describing: the proposed operation, all 
machines, processes, products and by-products, stating the nature and expected levels of 
emission or discharge to land, air, water or liquid, solid, or gaseous effluent and electrical 
impulses. And noise under normal operations and the specifications or treatment methods and 
mechanisms to be used to control such emission or discharge.  

(11)  Existing industrial uses shall be permitted to continue and to expand, enlarge or modify 
provided that the industry continues to comply with the performance standards. Existing 
industrial uses that do not conform to the performance standards shall be permitted to expand, 
modify, or enlarge provided the expansion, modification, or enlargement does not increase the 
degree of nonconformance and that the applicant submits a statement that identifies measures 
to bring the industry into compliance. The applicant or property owner shall provide the zoning 
administrator with a report certified by a professional engineer licensed in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia to assure compliance with the standards set forth herein prior to the issuance of any 
building permit that would allow any alteration, expansion, enlargement or modification of the 
facilities on the property.  

(b)  Industrial general standards.  

(1)  As part of the site plan review, the applicant shall submit a statement that includes an 
explanation of the following:  

a.  The type of raw materials, waste products, and other by-products associated with the 
process.  

b.  The identity of all chemicals and solids to be discharged into the sewage system.  

c.  The type and amount of traffic expected to be generated by the operation.  

d.  The proposed hours of operation.  

e.  The proposed architectural design (graphic or narrative) of all structures.  

(2)  The use established shall not create or be a continuation of highway "strip" development with 
multiple access points creating highway hazards and visual clutter in so far as practical. A 
highway strip is two or more access points or "curb cuts" off of an existing state or county road 
within 3,000 feet of each other. Any use in an industrial district shall have access or at least 

37



 

3,000 feet from any highway strip, in so far as possible. The planning commission may waive 
this requirement when the commission finds all of the following:  

a.  The proposal complies with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance and the 
comprehensive plan.  

b.  That the waiver will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or neighboring property.  

c.  That the waiver will not create a safety hazard or increase traffic congestion and is 
acceptable by VDOT.  

d.  The waiver is the minimum necessary to relieve a practical difficulty and not sought for 
reasons of convenience, profit, or caprice.  

(3)  Central water and sewer systems shall be encouraged in an industrial district. If a public 
system is available, use of such system shall be mandatory.  

(4)  Signs in industrial areas shall be permitted in accordance with the regulations contained in the 
zoning ordinance.  

(5)  Minimum off-street parking and loading spaces shall be required of each use in an industrial 
district in accordance with the regulations contained in the zoning ordinance.  

(6)  In so far as possible, all uses shall be conducted within a completely enclosed structure or be 
completely screened. Finished or semi-finished products manufactured on the premises may be 
stored in the open if screened from the street and adjacent uses.  

(7)  All street names shall be submitted to the county planner for approval. A name may not be 
approved if it is duplicated or is too similar to the name of another road in the county.  

(c)  Industrial environmental standards. The purpose of these standards is to provide for the proper 
stewardship of the county's natural resources. Specifically, it is the overall goal of the county to 
maintain the quality of the county's ecosystem in the face of continuing activity, growth and change.  

(1)  Development shall minimize the effects of runoff on the existing volume of water or quality or 
any water body. Urban best management practices shall be used.  

(2)  Whenever possible, land subject to periodic flooding shall not be developed for any use that 
might involve danger to health, life or property or aggravate floods.  

(3)  Industrial specific environmental standards.  

a.  Storm water management. No person shall develop any land for residential, commercial, 
industrial, or institutional uses or redevelop land without having provided for appropriate 
storm water management measures that control or manage runoff from such 
developments. Storm water management shall be accomplished for all new development 
or redevelopment.  

b.  Stream protection corridor. All new development or redevelopment shall provide a 100-foot 
naturally vegetated stream protection corridor along all tributary streams. New 
development activities, including structures, parking areas, septic systems, and similar 
impervious surfaces shall not be permitted in the steam protection corridor. Roads that 
cross the stream protection corridor shall be minimized.  

(Ord. of 3-23-2004(6)) 

Secs. 74-550548—74-580. - Reserved.  

 

Sec. 74-586. - Setback regulations.  

38



 

(a) Front Setback. No structures in an M-2 district shall be located any closer to the centerline of 
any road right-of-way on any designated primary highway than The minimum front setback 
for all structures is 130one hundred (100) feet or more, or 75 feet or more from the centerline 
of any primary highway and sixty (60) feet from the centerline of any secondary road righ-of-
way or private road. secondary road right-of-way or street right-of-way for any private road, 
except that temporary signs advertising sale or rent of premises may be erected up to the 
property line. This shall be known as the setback line.  

(b) Side. The minimum side yard setback for all structures on all lots is twenty-five (25) feet 

except that the minimum side yard setback on corner lots is forty (40) feet. 

(a)(c) Rear. The minimum rear yard setback for all structures is thirty-five (35) feet. 

(Code 1990, § 14-58; Ord. of 1-10-2006) 

Sec. 74-587. - Frontage and yard regulations.  

For permitted uses in an M-2 district, the minimum side yard adjoining or adjacent to a residential or 
agricultural district shall be ten feet. The side yard of corner lots shall be 20 feet or more. Off-street 
parking shall be in accordance with the provisions contained in this chapter.  

(Code 1990, § 14-59) 

Sec. 74-588587. - Industrial performance standards.  

(a)  [In general.] Any industrial use established after date of adoption shall be operated so as to meet 
the performance standards established hereinafter. Any use already established on date of adoption 
shall be permitted to continue provided that no alteration,; expansion, enlargement, or modification 
shall be permitted which effectively increases the degree of nonconformity that existed prior to any 
alteration, expansion, enlargement, or modification. An application to alter, expand enlarge, modify 
an existing use which does not meet the performance standards shall include a statement identifying 
measures proposed to bring the use into conformity with the performance standards.  

Points of measurement to determine compliance with the performance standards shall be the property lot 
line or zoning line nearest the source that is the subject of measurement.  

(1)  Noise. All sources of noise (except those not under direct control of occupant of use, such as 
vehicles), must not create sound or impact noise levels in excess of the values specified below 
when measured at the points indicated. In addition, between 9:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m., the 
permissible sound levels at a residential district boundary where adjoining industrial districts, 
shall be reduced by five decibels in each octave band and in the overall band for impact noises.  

Method of measurement and meaning of terms:  

Noise shall be measured by means of a sound level meter and octave band analyzer, calibrated 
in decibels (re 0.002 microbar) and shall be measured at the nearest lot line from which the 
noise level radiates. Impact noises shall be measured by means of an impact noise analyzer. 
Impact noises are those who peak values fluctuate more than six decibels from the steady 
values indicated on the sound level meter set at fast response.  

Decibel. A measurement of the intensity (volume) of a sound.  

Octave band. A prescribed interval of sound frequencies which classifies sound according to its 

pitch.  

39



 

Preferred frequency octave bands. A stigmatized series of octave bands prescribed by the 
American Standards Association in Sel. 6-1970 Preferred Frequencies for Acoustical 
Measurements.  

Sound level meter. An electronic instrument which includes a microphone, an amplifier, and an 
output meter which measures noise and sound pressure levels in a specified manner. It may be 
used with the octave band analyzer that permits measuring the sound pressure level in discrete 
octave bands.  

Maximum Permitted Sound Levels  

(Decibels)  

Octave band  

cycles/second  

At  

residential  

boundaries  

At other  

lot lines  

31.5  64  72  

63  64  74  

125  60  70  

250  54  65  

500  48  59  

1,000  42  55  

2,000  38  51  

4,000  34  47  

8,000  30  44  

Overall  80  90  

  

(2)  Glare. No direct or sky reflected glare, whether from flood lights or from high temperature 
processes such as combustion, welding or otherwise, is to be visible beyond the lot line, except 
for signs, and other lighting permitted by this section or required by any other applicable 
regulation, ordinance or law.  

(3)  Air pollution. The rules and regulations of the State of Virginia shall apply.  

(4)  Water pollution. The rules and regulations of the State of Virginia shall apply.  

40



 

(5)  Radioactivity. There shall be no radioactive emission which would be dangerous to the health 
and safety of persons on or beyond the premises where such radioactive material is used. 
Determination of existence of such danger and the handling of radioactive materials, the 
discharge of such materials into the atmosphere and streams or other water, and the disposal of 
radioactive wastes shall be by reference to and in accordance with applicable current 
regulations of the governments of the United States and the State of Virginia.  

(6)  Electrical interference. There shall be no electrical disturbance emanating from any lot which 
would adversely affect the operation of any equipment on any other lot or premises.  

(7)  Smoke and particulate matter limitations.  

a.  General limitations. In addition to the performance standard specified hereinafter, the 
emission of smoke or particulate matter in such manner or quantity as to be detrimental to 
or endanger the public health, safety, comfort, or welfare is hereby declared to be a public 
nuisance and shall henceforth be unlawful.  

Particulate matter emission caused by the wind from open storage areas, yards, roads, etc. 
within lot lines shall be kept to a minimum by appropriate landscaping, paving, wetting, or 
other means.  

For the purposes of determining the density or equivalent opacity of smoke, the 
Ringelmann Chart as adopted and published by the United States Bureau of Mines in 
Circular No. 8333 (7718) shall be employed, or standards used by DEQ.  

b.  Permitted smoke emission. Within 1,000 feet of a residence or commercial zoning district 
boundary line, the emission of visible smoke from any vent, stack, chimney, or combustion 
process, darker than Ringelmann No. 2 for a period or periods aggregating more than four 
minutes in any 60 minute period shall not be permitted.  

(8)  Toxic matter limitations. In any industrial district, toxic materials which are released shall not 
exceed ten percent of the maximum permissible airborne concentration allowed an industrial 
worker when measured at any point beyond the lot line, either at ground level or habitable 
elevation, whichever is more restrictive. When maximum permissible airborne concentrations of 
toxic materials allowed an industrial worker are not contained in the most recent list of 
Threshold Limit Values published by the American Conference of Governmental Industrial 
Hygienists, the applicant shall satisfy the county health officer that proposed levels will be safe 
to the general population.  

(9)  Odorous matter limitations. The release of odorous matter from any industrial district across 
residential or commercial district boundary lines shall be so controlled that at ground level or at 
habitable elevations the concentration shall not exceed the odor threshold lines. Further, the 
release of odorous matter across lot lines shall not become a nuisance or source of discomfort 
to neighboring uses. As a guide in determining qualities of offensive odors, Table III (Odor 
Thresholds). Chapter 5. "Air Pollution Abatement Manual" by Manufacturing Chemists 
Association, Inc. (as amended) may be used.  

(10)  Certified engineer's report submittal. The applicant for a grading permit, sediment control 
permit, or building permit for uses in an industrial district, or applicants for variances to the 
district shall be required to submit proof that the uses proposed will not cause violations of 
federal, state or county laws or regulations. For industrial uses which will produce emissions of 
pollutants to the waters or air of the county, this proof shall include measurements of the 
ambient water and air quality as well as documentation in the form of figures that the additional 
planned and proposed industrial use will not cause the violation of either ambient or source 
standards outlined by the laws and regulations of the federal, state, or county governments.  

Each future occupant of an industrial character shall submit to the county as a part of final site 
development plan approval, a certified engineer's report describing: the proposed operation, all 
machines, processes, products and by-products, stating the nature and expected levels of 
emission or discharge to land, air, water or liquid, solid, or gaseous effluent and electrical 

41



 

impulses. And noise under normal operations and the specifications or treatment methods and 
mechanisms to be used to control such emission or discharge.  

(11)  Existing industrial uses shall be permitted to continue and to expand, enlarge or modify 
provided that the industry continues to comply with the performance standards. Existing 
industrial uses that do not conform to the performance standards shall be permitted to expand, 
modify, or enlarge provided the expansion, modification, or enlargement does not increase the 
degree of nonconformance and that the applicant submits a statement that identifies measures 
to bring the industry into compliance. The applicant or property owner shall provide the zoning 
administrator with a report certified by a professional engineer licensed in the Commonwealth of 
Virginia to assure compliance with the standards set forth herein prior to the issuance of any 
building permit that would allow any alteration, expansion, enlargement or modification of the 
facilities on the property.  

(b)  Industrial general standards.  

(1)  As part of the site plan review, the applicant shall submit a statement that includes an 
explanation of the following:  

a.  The type of raw materials, waste products, and other by-products associated with the 
process.  

b.  The identity of all chemicals and solids to be discharged into the sewage system.  

c.  The type and amount of traffic expected to be generated by the operation.  

d.  The proposed hours of operation.  

e.  The proposed architectural design (graphic or narrative) of all structures.  

(2)  The use established shall not create or be a continuation of highway "strip" development with 
multiple access points creating highway hazards and visual clutter in so far as practical. A 
highway strip is two or more access points or "curb cuts" off of an existing state or county road 
within 3,000 feet of each other. Any use in an industrial district shall have access or at least 
3,000 feet from any highway strip, in so far as possible. The planning commission may waive 
this requirement when the commission finds all of the following:  

a.  The proposal complies with the spirit and intent of the zoning ordinance and the 
comprehensive plan.  

b.  That the waiver will not cause a substantial detriment to adjacent or neighboring property.  

c.  That the waiver will not create a safety hazard or increase traffic congestion and is 
acceptable by VDOT.  

d.  The waiver is the minimum necessary to relieve a practical difficulty and not sought for 
reasons of convenience, profit, or caprice.  

(3)  Central water and sewer systems shall be encouraged in an industrial district. If a public 
system is available, use of such system shall be mandatory.  

(4)  Signs in industrial areas shall be permitted in accordance with the regulations contained in the 
zoning ordinance.  

(5)  Minimum off-street parking and loading spaces shall be required of each use in an industrial 
district in accordance with the regulations contained in the zoning ordinance.  

(6)  In so far as possible, all uses shall be conducted within a completely enclosed structure or be 
completely screened. Finished or semi-finished products manufactured on the premises may be 
stored in the open if screened from the street and adjacent uses.  

(7)  All street names shall be submitted to the county planner for approval. A name may not be 
approved if it is duplicated or is too similar to the name of another road in the county.  

42



 

(c)  Industrial environmental standards. The purpose of these standards is to provide for the proper 
stewardship of the county's natural resources. Specifically, it is the overall goal of the county to 
maintain the quality of the county's ecosystem in the face of continuing activity, growth and change.  

(1)  Development shall minimize the effects of runoff on the existing volume of water or quality or 
any water body. Urban best management practices shall be used.  

(2)  Whenever possible, land subject to periodic flooding shall not be developed for any use that 
might involve danger to health, life or property or aggravate floods.  

(3)  Industrial specific environmental standards.  

a.  Storm water management. No person shall develop any land for residential, commercial, 
industrial, or institutional uses or redevelop land without having provided for appropriate 
storm water management measures that control or manage runoff from such 
developments. Storm water management shall be accomplished for all new development 
or redevelopment.  

b.  Stream protection corridor. All new development or redevelopment shall provide a 100-foot 
naturally vegetated stream protection corridor along all tributary streams. New 
development activities, including structures, parking areas, septic systems, and similar 
impervious surfaces shall not be permitted in the steam protection corridor. Roads that 
cross the stream protection corridor shall be minimized.  

(Ord. of 3-23-2004(6)) 

Secs. 74-589588—74-620. - Reserved.  

 

 

 

43



 

Regular Development 

Zoning 
District 

Minimum 
Lot Area 
(Acres) 

Minimum 
Road 

Frontage 
Public 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Minimum 
Road 

Frontage 
Private 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Minimum 
Road 

Frontage 
Cul-de-

sac 
 (Feet) 

Front 
Setback 
Primary 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Front 
Setback 

Non-
Primary 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Side 
Setback 
(Feet) 

Rear 
Setback 
(Feet) 

A-2 2 300 200 50 100 75 25 35 

A-20 20 500 500 N/A 200 200 100 100 

RA-1 2 300 200 50 100 75 15 35 

R-1 
Base 

1 300 200 50 100 75 15 35 

R-1 
Bonus 1 

20k sq ft 300 75 50 100 
75, 45 
private 

5 25 

R-1 
Bonus 2 

.25 300 75 50 100 
75, 45 
private 

5 25 

R-2 
Base 

2 300 200 50 100 75 25 35 

R-2 
Bonus 
Over 
Base 

21,780 sq 
ft 

300. 150 
secondary 

100 50 100 
75, 45 
private 

10 25 

R-3 5 300 250 
50 

 
100 75 50 75 

R-2M 20 

80% of 
width, 
min 50 

feet 

N/A 50 100 75 
15, total 

35 
35 

B-1 N/A 
80% of 
width 

N/A N/A 100 60 15 35 

B-2 N/A 
80% of 
width 

N/A N/A 100 60 15 35 

B-3 N/A 
80% of 
width 

N/A N/A 100 60 15 35 

M-1 N/A None N/A N/A 100 60 
25, 40 
corner 

35 

M-2 N/A None N/A N/A 100 60 
25, 40 
corner 

35 

 

For reference only. 

 

44



Cluster Development 

Zoning 
District 

Minimum 
Lot Area 
(Acres) 

Minimum 
Road 

Frontage 
Public 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Minimum 
Road 

Frontage 
Private 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Minimum 
Road 

Frontage 
Cul-de-

sac 
 (Feet) 

Front 
Setback 
Primary 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Front 
Setback 

Non-
Primary 
Roads 
(Feet) 

Side 
Setback 
(Feet) 

Rear 
Setback 
(Feet) 

A-2 2 300 150 50 100 50 25 25 

RA-1 2 300 100 50 
500 

(public) 
150 

(private) 
  

R-1 
Base 

None 300 125 50 100 50 15 25 

R-1 
Bonus 1 

None 300 75 50 100 50 5 25 

R-1 
Bonus 2 

None 300 75 50 100 50 5 25 

R-2 
Base 

None 
300 

primary 
hwy only 

150 50 100 50 25 35 

R-2 
Bonus 
Over 
Base 

None 
300 

primary 
hwy only 

100 50 100 50 10 25 

R-2 None 300 150 50 100 50 25 25 

 

For reference only. 

45



Goochland

A1/A2

Width: Setbacks:

350 Major Highway F 100 Primary, 75 Secondary, 55 Private from RoW

300 Prmary Highway S 20

200 Other R 35

Fluvanna

A1

Width: Setbacks:

 500 Primary Highway F 200 Primary, 125 Secondary, 100 Private from RoW

300 Public Roads S 50

200 Private R 75

Buckingham

A1

Width: Setbacks:

200 < 7 Acres F 50 from PL

300 >7 Acres S 25

R 25

Prince Edward

A1

Width: Setbacks:

200 Public Road F 75 from C/L 50' or greater RoW, 100 from C/L less than 50 '

50 right of way S 35

R 70

Amelia

A5/R5

Width: Setbacks:

350 F 100 from PL

S 40

R 40

Powhatan

RR

Width: Setbacks:

215 F 100 access road, 75 local roads

S 25

R 40

46



 

 

 

 

 

 

   

STAFF REPORT 

CUP 19-02 

Rt 606 Truck & Auto 
Conditional Use Permit 

Cumberland County, Virginia 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 

 

 

General Information: 

 

 Processing schedule:   The Planning Commission unanimously recommended this 

proposal on April 22, 2019 with a public hearing.  The public 

hearing with the Board of Supervisors will be held on May 14, 

2019. 

 

Application Information: 

 

 Applicant:   Willie Bullock 

Requested Action:   To grant a CUP to allow a garage, automotive repair. 

Tax Map Number: 53-1-5 

Location: 6533 Blenheim Rd   

Election District: 4 

Existing Zoning: A-2, Agricultural 

Lot Size: 9.2 Acres 

Existing land use: Residential 

Comp. plan area:  Not in a growth area  

Overlay districts: None 

 

Surrounding Area Information: 

 

Direction Adjacent existing uses Adjacent 

zoning 

Adjacent Comp. Plan Area (2013) 

All Agricultural/Residential A-2 Not in a Growth Area 

 

 

 

 

 

 

47



  

Summary of Request and Background Information: 

 

The applicant would like to turn his shop into a commercial garage. The shop is located behind his 

house. 

 

Consistency with the 2013 Comprehensive Plan: 

 

The proposed use does not fall within the designated growth areas of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The following goals, objectives and policies of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan would be achieved by 

the proposed CUP:  

 

Goal 5: It is the goal of this plan to encourage the creation of appropriate economic opportunity for 

current and future citizens of Cumberland County.    

 

Objective 1: Encourage the overall strengthening and diversification of the economic base of 

Cumberland County to provide a sound tax base and to support the provision of needed public 

services.   

 

Objective 4: To encourage the development of essential employment opportunities within 

Cumberland County for the resident workforce. 

 

Consistency with the Zoning Ordinance: 

 

The proposed use of the subject property is compatible with surrounding zoning and the intent of the 

district.   

 

Public Notification: 

 

Notice was published in the Farmville Herald on May 1 and 8, 2019. 

 

Adjacent notice for the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors public hearing was sent by 

certified mail to adjacent property owners on March 8, 2019. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The proposed use in this area is compliance with the Comprehensive Plan and the intent of the A-2 

zoning district, with a mix of commercial and residential uses.   

 

Recommendation: 

 

The Planning Commission unanimously recommend approval of this proposal with the following 

conditions: 

 

1. The permit holder shall, at all times, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, 

codes, regulations, and ordinances. A violation at any time of any federal, state, or local statute, 

code, regulation, or ordinance shall constitute a violation of this conditional use permit, 

regardless of whether enforcement action of the violated law, regulation, or ordinance is 

48



undertaken or is successful. This conditional use permit shall terminate immediately upon such 

violation. 

2. No more than fifteen (15) inoperable vehicles will sit outside of the garage at any given time. 

Inoperable motor vehicle means any motor vehicle which is not in operating condition; or 

which for a period of 60 days or longer has been partially or totally dissembled by the removal 

of tires and wheels, the engine, or other essential parts required for operation of the vehicle or 

on which there are displayed neither valid license plates nor a valid inspection decal. 

3. Noise is restricted between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. daily. At all times, noise and 

sound levels must not disturb residents of adjacent properties 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

JP Duncan 

Planning Director 

49



BLENHEIM ROAD

CUP 19-02 Rt 606 Truck & Auto (53-1-5)

Date: 3/19/2019 ¯0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet50



FRENCHS STORE ROAD

BLENHEIM ROAD

ANDERSON HIGHWAY

HOSTEN LANE

ANDERSON HIGHWAY

BLENHEIM ROAD

ANDERSON HIGHWAY

CUP 19-02 Rt 606 Truck & Auto (53-1-5)

Date: 3/19/2019 ¯0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

Zoning District
A-2, Agricultural
B-1, Business
M-1, Industrial
R-2, Residential

Powhatan
County

51



".\~ B t; I) f. ·1 
. . . 1\

...~ 0 COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 
~ ~ 

"1-
. ~ 

z 

COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND 

Internal Use Only 
FILE ~_ _ STAFF__ 
REC ETVED 
c:OMPLETI::-:,.-----' D

FEE/Ck. # 

RECEIPT """#---

Application for Conditional Use Permit L\ l ~~l). 
Last revised 7/07/ 10 

Form must be completed in ink, Pencil will not be accepted. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: FOR CERTAIN LARGE-SCALE DEVELOPMENTS, STATE LAW NOW 
REQUIRES A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS (T.I.A.) be completed and submitted with a rezoning 
application before the County can deem the application complete. 

**Please see the attached T.I A. info sheet and checklist to determine if such a study shall be required 
as part of the application. Please contact the zoning administrator for any questions. 

Project Name (how should we refer to this application?):_R_t 6--'O_6_Tr_u_ck_&_A_u_to__________ 

Proposal: Garage. aulomotive repair 

Location: 6533 Blenheim Rd Powhatan ,VA 23139 

Tax Map Parcel(s):_5_3-_1-_5____________________________ 

Zoning:~A_-2________ Comprehensive Plan Area: _N_ot_in...ca:....:g"-ro_wt_h...ca:....re--'a_________ 

Election District:_2______________________________ 

# of Acres to be Covered by Conditional Use Permit (if a portion of a parcel or parcels it must be 
delineated on a plat):_9._2___________________________ 

Is this an amendment to an existing conditional use permit? If Yes, provide DYES IX] NOCUP # or approval date: _________ 

A Preliminary Site Plan is Required with Application for a CUP. Have you 

submitted a preliminary site plan? 


Is this a proposal for a shopping center or telecommunication tower? If so, 

DYES~NOadditional information is required additional conditions/use restrictions 


apply. Please see the Planning & Zoning Dept. for more info. 


Is an amendment to the subdivision or zoning ordinance also proposed as DYES~NOpart ofthe CUP application? If so, complete and attach the Code 

Amendment application. 


Contact Person (who should we call/write concerning this project?):_W_il_lie_B_u_lIo_ck_______ 

Address: 6533 Blenheim Rd City: Powhatan State:_vA____Zip: 23139 

Daytime Phone: ~ _36_3_-3_3_93____ Fax #: (__) ______ Email:________ 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040.804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

52

http:N_ot_in...ca:....:g"-ro_wt_h...ca


Page 2 of 5 

Owner of Record (who currently O\\'ns the property?): Same as contact 

Address:___ _ _ ________City:_____,State: ___ _ zip:_____ 


Daytime Phone: (~ ______ Fax #: (__) ______ Email:___ _ _ ___ 


Applicant (who is the contact person representing?) : Same as contact 

Address:____ _______ _ ~City:_ _ _ __State:___ _ Zip:_____ 

Daytime Phone: (------.J ____ _ ~ Fax #: (__) ______ Email:________ 

Does the owner of this property own (or have any ownership interest) in any abutting 
property? Ifyes, please list those tax map parcel numbers. _ _ _ _ _ _ ___ _ _ _ _ _ 

Section 74-702 of the Cumberland County Zoning Ordinance provides guidelines for 
conditional use permit applications. 

Please address the following standards which will be reviewed by the staff in analysis of your 
request. Ifyou need assistance filling out these items, staff is available. 

Provide a written statement demonstrating that: 

1. 	 The establishment, maintenance or operation of the CUP will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare; 

2. 	 The CUP will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property 
values within the neighborhood; 

3. 	 The establishment of the CUP will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

4. 	 The exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so 
at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures 
already constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the 
character of the applicable district as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values 
within the neighborhood; 

5. 	 Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided; 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

53



Page 3 of 5 

6. 	 Ingress and egress to property and structures on the property with particular reference to 
automotive and pedestrian safety and convenience, traffic flow and control, and access of fire 
or catastrophe are adequately provided for; 

7. 	 Off-street parking and loading areas where required with particular attention to the items in # 
1. above and the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the special exception on adjoining 
properties and properties generally in the district are adequately provided for; 

8. 	 Refuse and service areas, with particular reference to the items in #s 1. and 2. above are 

adequately provided for; 


9. 	 Appropriate screening and buffering with reference to type, dimensions and character of the 
use are adequately provided for; 

10. Any signs and exterior lighting are compatible and in harmony with properties in the district 
with reference to aesthetics, glare, traffic safety and economic effect; 

11. 	Required building setbacks and other open spaces are adequately provided for; 

12. The proposed use is compatible with adjacent properties and other property in the zoning 
district; 

13. An adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property is adequately provided for; and 

14. The CUP shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the zoning district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the 
Board of Supervisors. 

Describe your request in detail and include all pertinent information such as the number of persons 

involved in the use, operating hours, and any unique features of the proposed use: _______ 

The land use would be an automotive garage for repair of vehicles. Currently, the 

owner would be the sole employee. The parcel the garage would be on is 9.3 acres. 

The owner also owns a 16.95 acre adjacent parcel to the south. Operating hours 

would be 8AM to 7PM. 

Describe briefly the improvements proposed. State whether new buildings or structures are to be 
constructed, existing buildings or structures are to be used or additions made to existing buildings or 
structures. Give dimensions of the buildings that are to be constructed and the dimensions of any 

existing buildings on the property (attach any necessary information). ____________ 

The building that would be used is exisiting with dimensions of 40' x 60'. 

There are 3 garage bays with an office that is roughly 350 sq. feet. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

54



Page 4 of 5 

Attachments Required - provide two (2) copies of each 

1. 	 Recorded plat or boundary survey ofthe property l'equestedfor the permit. If there is no 
recorded plat or boundary survey, please provide legal description of the property and the 
Deed Book and page number or Plat Book and page number. 

Note: If you are requesting a permit for a portion of the property, it needs to be described or 
delineation on a copy of the plat or surveyed drawing. 

2. 	 Ownership information - If ownership of the property is in the name of any type of legal entity 
or organization including, but not limited to, the name of a corporation, partnership or 
association, or in the name of a trust, or in a fictitious name, a document acceptable to the 
County must be submitted certifying that the person signing below has the authority to do so. 

Ifthe applicant is a contract purchaser or an agent of the owner, an owner/agent 
agreement must be attached (ask staff for form if needed). 

Owner! Applicant Must Read and Sign 

I hereby certify that I own the subject property, or have the legal power to act on behalf of the owner 
in filing this application . I also certify that the information provided on this application and 
accompanying information is accurate, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

3 -I-rq 
Print Name of Owner/Applicant 	 Date 

Signature of Owner/ Applicant 	 Daytime Phone # of Signatory 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

55



Page 5 of 5 

Traffic Impact Analysis Information Sheet: 

How do I know if a T.LA. is required to be submitted with my application? 

If the proposed development will increase the number of vehicle trips during peak hours on roads maintained by VDOT by 
250 trips for a commercial development or 100 trips for a residential development you likely will need to submit a T.I.A. 

How do I know if my proposal will increase the traffic to the amount that would require a TIA? 

Below is a listing of some general guidelines as provided by VDOT's T.I.A. administrative guidelines: 

For a residential development, a TIA may be required ifthe development proposes: 
100 or more single family dwelling units ; 
150 or more apartment units ; or 
190 or more condo/townhomes 

For a commercial development, a TIA may be required if the development proposes a(n): 
light industrial building of 260,000sf or more; 
hotel containing 300 rooms or more; 
elementary school of 600 students or more or a high school of 550 students or more; 
hospital of 110 beds or more; 
general office building 150,000 sq. ft. or larger; 
business park 170,000 sq. ft. or larger; 
shopping center 20,000 sq. ft. or larger; 
home improvement store 60,000 sq. ft. or larger; 
drive thru bank containing 5 bays or more; 
fast food restaurant with a drive thru window of 4,000 sq. ft. or larger; or 
gas station with convenience store containing 16 hoses or more. 

What are the fees associated with VDOT's T .LA? 

This fee is collected directly by VDOT and is separate and in addition to the County's application fee. Both are required 
before an application is deemed complete. 

$250.00 for a low-volume road; 
$500.00 for less than 100 vehicles per peak hour; or 
$1,000.00 for more than 100 vehicles per peak hour. 

What is the background and purpose for the TIA requirements and where can I find additional 
information? 

Chapter 527 ofthe 2006 Acts of Assembly added § 15.2-2222.1 to the Code of Virginia. The amendment establishes 
procedures by which localities submit proposals that \vill affect the state-controlled transportation network to VDOT for 
review and comment. The chapter also directs VDOT to develop regulations to carry out the provisions of the statute. 

The regulation VDOT prepared is titled, Traffic Impact Analysis Regulations (24 VAC 30-155), sets forth procedures and 
requirements governing VDOT's review of and submission of comments regarding comprehensive plans and amendments 
to comprehensive plans, rezoning proposals, and subdivision plats, site plans and plans of development and the 
accompanying traffic impact analyses. The regulation also identifies when those documents must be submitted, and the 
documents and information that must be submitted to VDOT to facilitate the required review and submission of 
comments. The regulation also establishes the scope and nature of the review and a schedule of fees to be paid upon 
submission of a proposal to VDOT for review. 

The regulation includes standards for when traffic impact analyses must be submitted to VDOT for different types of 
development proposals as well as what must be contained in the analyses (Information provided by VDOT). VDOT has 
prepared the following website on the Chapter 527 requirements: 

http:/ /www.virginiadot.org/projects/chapterS27/default.asp 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

56

http://www.virginiadot.org/projects/chapterS27/default.asp
http:1,000.00


CUMBERLAND COUNTY, VIRGINIA 

Default View 

o 100 200 ft 

.....ww Inleractive(i lS .00nl 

57



53--1-7 ~\ 

'" " 53--1-6 

3-1-6-A 

-S:: 

~ 
{) 

a 
~ 
f'r 

\J\ 
~ 

~ lX 

I 
.~ 


I ~ 
.. <r,34
\ \ I 

If N53--1-6-C \ \ ~p 

".. 

53--1-15J 

., 

~ 

651J 
". i 

I 

I 
I ., 

I
II . 
i 
I 

'i 
: 

I 
, 

'I 
I 

. 

., 
I 
I ., 

'I 
I 

CUMBERLAND COUNTY, VIRGINIA 


Default View 


o 100 200 ft 

WIIIW.lnter3Ch""IGtS.c.cm Pnnr.d OJ.01/X) 19 

58

http:WIIIW.lnter3Ch""IGtS.c.cm


I, Willie Bullock plan to start a full service auto repair shop at 6533 
Blenheim Road Powhatan VA 23139. Due to the nature of the business 
I wanted to inform my surrounding neighbors of this. I would be happy 
to answer any questions you may have. My main contact number is 
804-363-3393. I am attempting to receive signatures from said 
neighbors in order to move forward with the business. Please sign 
below in affirmation. 

1. Name/address (print) 

~cJ/1/ /kss
/ 

Sign ~ 
2. Name/address (print) 

Si9~ 


3. Name/address (print) 

Sign~ 


59



~~(Al C)~r~ 
Sign~ eLl
5. Name/address (print) 

-\IMIA'd L. CWL !d;q\ BLflJ~(0 rn I iJwHr+J:~:f] 

(iJc,.J If, 

(Y) Ik& Rcp~r G;S:;)B ELce::bfr%hwmt 6~/~1 


Sign m:&~ 


6. Name/address (print) 

60



 

 

 

 

 

 

   

STAFF REPORT 

CUP 19-03 

Timber Creek Event Barn 
Conditional Use Permit 

Cumberland County, Virginia 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 

 

 

General Information: 

 

 Processing schedule:   The Planning Commission recommended this proposal with a 

vote of 4-2-1 on April 22, 2019 with a public hearing. The Board 

of Supervisors will hold a public hearing on May 14, 2019. 

 

Application Information: 

 

  Owner:             Larry & Deborah Thompson 

  Applicant:   Cumberland County for Whitney Lipscomb 

  Requested Action:  Conditional Use Permit for: Event facility (indoor and outdoor) 

 Tax Parcel Number: 91-A-1    

 Address:   202 Timber Creek Farm Drive    

 Election District: 4 

 Existing Zoning: A-2 with CUP 

 Proposed Zoning: A-2 with CUP 

 Size: 1.7 acres of a 61.683 acre parcel 

 Existing land uses: Event facility 

 Comp. plan area:  Not in a growth area  

 Overlay districts: None 

 

Surrounding Area Information: 

 

Direction Adjacent existing uses Adjacent zoning Adjacent Comp. Plan Area (2013) 

All Residential and 

Agricultural 

A-2  Not in a growth area 

 

 

 

 

 

 

61



  

Summary of Request and Background Information: 

 

The applicant has been using this property as an event facility for approximately two years. This is an 

amendment of CUP 18-11 Timber Creek Event Barn. 

 

The applicant would like to amend Condition 8 of CUP 18-11 from not being allowed to have more 

than 300 attendees to being allowed to have up to four events per year with over 300 attendees. The 

events would all be open to the public, and necessary arrangements would be made to host a larger 

amount of people. 

 

There have been no complaints against the use of this event facility since its operation began. 

 

Consistency with the 2013 Comprehensive Plan: 

 

The proposed use is within in an area not designated for growth in the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The following goals, objectives and policies of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan would be achieved by 

the proposed CUP:  

 

Goal 5: It is the goal of this plan to encourage the creation of appropriate economic opportunity for 

current and future citizens of Cumberland County.    

 

Objective 1: Encourage the overall strengthening and diversification of the economic base of 

Cumberland County to provide a sound tax base and to support the provision of needed public 

services.   

 

Objective 4: To encourage the development of essential employment opportunities within 

Cumberland County for the resident workforce. 

 

Goal 3:   It is the goal of this comprehensive plan to promote the wise and efficient utilization of lands 

within Cumberland to result in the sustainability of land resources and harmonious development of 

lands to serve the divergent interest and needs of the citizens of Cumberland County.   

 

Objective 1:  Through effective zoning, regulate future development to protect existing land use 

patterns within Cumberland County. 

 

Consistency with the Zoning Ordinance: 

 

The proposed use of the subject property is compatible with surrounding zoning and the intent of the 

district.   

 

Public Notification: 

 

Notice was published in the Farmville Herald on May 1 and 8, 2019. 

 

Adjoining property owners were sent a notice for the public hearing via certified mail on April 8, 2019. 

 

 

 

62



Conclusion: 

 

This event facility has been in operation with no complaints for around two years. Expansion of this 

use is a logical next step for the applicant.   

 

Recommendation: 

 

The Planning Commission recommended approval of the proposal with a vote of 4-2-1 with the 

following conditions:   

 

1. The permit holder shall, at all times, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 

statutes, codes, regulations, and ordinances. A violation at any time of any federal, state, 

or local statute, code, regulation, or ordinance shall constitute a violation of this 

conditional use permit, regardless of whether enforcement action of the violated law, 

regulation, or ordinance is undertaken or is successful. This conditional use permit shall 

terminate immediately upon such violation. 

 

2. Health Department permit:  The Health Department has indicated that the proposal 

requires review by a PE to ensure the proper design of the waste disposal system. 

 

3. Building, septic, well, and electrical: The applicant must comply with all federal, state, 

and local regulations pertaining to applicable building codes and private water, sewer, 

and electricity. The applicant must provide a written letter from the Cumberland County 

Health Department indicating compliance with their codes for the facility. 

 

4. Compliance with plan required: The applicant must comply with the site plan attached 

to the application in regard to the areas to be used for events and parking.  In no case 

may driveways or parking areas be closer than any setbacks for the underlying zoning 

district.  Such provisions must, at a minimum, include gravel at the site entrance and, if 

necessary, at vehicle parking locations. 

 

5. Community safety: If county or state law enforcement is required to respond to restore 

order to those on the property more than two (2) times in a thirty (30) day period, the 

conditional use permit may be reviewed by the Board of Supervisors and may be 

revoked at the Board’s discretion. 

 

6. Refuse disposal: After each event, all trash will be removed from the site within forty-

eight (48) hours. 

 

7. Noise control: Noise is restricted between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. daily. 

At all times, noise and sound levels must not disturb residents of adjacent properties. 

 

8. Lighting:  Lighting must not produce glare or spillover onto adjacent properties. 

 

9. Maximum attendance:  Each private event is limited to no more than three hundred (300) 

attendees.  Each event, which is open to the public, is limited to no more than five hundred (500) 

attendees. Not more than four (4) events during a twelve (12) month period will have over three 

hundred (300) attendees. During each event that is open to the public and alcohol is served, there 

63



  

must be one (1) trained security officer, certified by the local sheriff, per every one hundred 

(100) attendees. 

 

10. The operator is required to request an annual fire and safety inspection by a Cumberland 

County Fire Marshall or other employee or volunteer who is authorized to perform such 

inspections and must implement within thirty (30) days all changes required by such 

inspector.  The operator further must maintain the use of a thirty (30) foot easement by 

emergency services personnel. 

 

11. Renewal of conditional use permit:  Regular renewal of the conditional use permit is 

required in order to demonstrate continued compliance.  For each renewal, the operator 

must provide all requested documentation from each applicable state and local agency 

regarding the applicant’s performance and compliance with the criteria used to approve 

the use, as well as a review of any code infractions and/or violations.  Renewals will 

occur on the following schedule: 

 

a. 5 years after approval; 

b. Every 5 years thereafter; 

c. Upon any change in operator. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

JP Duncan 

Planning Director 

64



CUP 19-03 Timber Creek Event Barn (91-A-1)

Date: 4/15/2019 ¯0 500 1,000 1,500 2,000250
Feet65



GUINEA ROAD

HO
LM

AN
 M

ILL
 RO

AD

ANGOLA LANE
COTTONTOWN ROAD

AN
GO

LA
 RO

AD

GUINEA ROAD

CUP 19-03 Timber Creek Event Barn (91-A-1)

Date: 4/15/2019 ¯0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

Zoning District
A-2, Agricultural

66



InternallJse Only 
FILE II 

~+-''-I-''O<-

n FF 
COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA RECEI F.D \ \ 

COM PL rT:::-'ED
COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND FEEl C k. ~'---::,--;-4--L-1~ 

R EC[ IPT ~ 41,-" S tfJ 

Application for Conditional Use Permit 
Last revised 7/07/10 


Form must be completed in ink, Pencil wiJ1 not be accepted. 


IMPORTANT NOTE: FOR CERTAIN LARGE-SCALE DEVELOPMENTS, STATE LAW NOW 
REQUIRES A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS (T.I.A.) be completed and submitted with a rezoning 
application before the County can deem the application complete. 

**Please see the attached T.IA. info sheet and checklist to determine ifsuch a study shall be required 
as part ofthe application. Please contact the zoning administrator for any questions. 

Project Name (how should we refer to this application?): Event Barn i"\'\, },L;· ( ) l Q 

Proposal: Bridal Suite for existing wedding venue The Barn at Timber Creek 

Location: 202 Timber Creek Farm Drive 

TeLX Map Parcel(s):_9_1-_A_-1_________ ___ ________ _ _ ___ _ ___ 

Zoni ng:_A_-2___ _ _ _ _ __ Comprehensive Plan Area: _N_ot_is_a.....:g"-ro_w_th_a_r_ea______ ___ 

Election District: 4 
------------------------~--------------

# of Acres to be Covered b se Permit (if a portion of a parcel or parcels it must be 
delineated on a plat) :_--'>t<-.~_~-O-...L-I_..L.._~.L._·L...L_ __=...l...=....:._--.J_'__-!.-J.A~(...~.____ _ _ 

Is this an amendment to aJ1 existing Jt,nditiOI\al use permit? If Yes, provide [jYESDNOCUP # or approval date: L U P Z - \) \
( 

A Preliminary Site Plan is Required with Application for a CUP. Have you B"YESDNO 
submitted a preliminary site plan? 

Is this a proposal for a shopping center or telecommunication tower? If so, DYEsQNoadditional information is required additional conditions/use restrictions 

apply. Please see the Planning & Zoning Dept. for more info. 


Is an amendment to the subdivision or zoning ordinance also proposed a~ DYEsGtNOpart ofthe CUP application? If so, complete and attach the Code 

Amendment application . 


Contact Person (who should we call / write concerning this project?):~W:..:.:h:.::.itn.:.::e.!..-y~Li':.:ps:..::c.=:om.:..:;b=______ _ _ 

Address: 206 Timber Creek Farm Drive City: Farmville V:..:.:___Zip: 23901State::.::.A 

Daytime Phone: (~-'=.9'-21_-8:..::2:..:.:24_ _ _ _ Fax #: ( _ _ ) ___ ___ _ _ Email:_ _ _ _ _ _ ___ 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

67



u 

Page 2 of 5 

Owner of Record (who currently owns the property?): Larry & Deborah Thompson 

Address:_1__ _____k Fa_rm_D_r~_ _ City: Farmville state:_ ___Zip: 2390 1 96 T_im_be rCree___ ive_ V_A 

Daytime Phone: (804 ) _3_0_5_-2_9_9_2__ Fax #: (~) _____ Email:____ _ _ _ 

Applicant (who is the contact person representing?): Same as contact 

Address:_____ _____ _ _ _ City:_ _ ___State:_ _ _ _ Zip : _ _ _ _ _ 

Daytime Phone: (~___ ___ Fax #: C_) _ ___ __ Email:_____ _ _ _ 

Does the owner of this property own (or have any ownership interest) in any abutting 
property? Ifyes, please list those tax map parcel numbers. ___ _ ___ ____ _ _ 

Section 74-702 of the Cumberland County Zoning Ordinance provides guidelines for 

conditional use permit applications. 


Please address the following standards which will be reviewed by the staff in analysis of your 
request. Ifyou need assistance filling out these items, staff is available. 

Provide a written statement demonstrating that: 

1. 	 The establishment, maintenance or operation of the CUP will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare; 

2. 	 The CUP will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property 
values within the neighborhood; 

3. 	 The establishment of the CUP will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

~ 

4. 	 The exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so 
at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures 
already constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the 
character of the applicable district as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values 
within the neighborhood; 

5. 	 Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided; 

Cumberland County DeparLment of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

68



Page 3 of 5 

6. 	 Ingress and egress to property and structures on the property with particular reference to 
automotive and pedestrian safety and convenience, traffic flow and control, and access of fire 
or catastrophe are adequately provided for; 

7. 	 Off-street parking and loading areas where required with particular attention to the items in # 
1. above and the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the special exception on adjoining 
properties and properties generally in the district are adequ ately provided for; 

8. 	 Refuse and service areas, with particular reference to the items in #s 1. and 2. above are 
adequately provided for; 

9. 	 Appropriate screening and buffering with reference to type, dimensions and character of the 
use are adequately provided for; 

10. Any signs and exterior lighting are compatible and in harmony with properties in the district 
with reference to aesthetics, glare, traffic safety and economic effect; 

11. 	Required building setbacks and other open spaces are adequately provided for; 

12. The proposed use is compatible with adjacent properties and other property in the zoning 
district; 

13. An adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property is adequately provided for; and 

14. The CUP shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the zoning district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the 
Board of Supervisors. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

69



Page 4 of 5 

Attachments Required - provide two (2) copies of each 

1. 	 Recorded plat or boundary survey of the property requested for the permit. If there is no 
recorded plat or boundary survey, please provide legal description of the property and the 
Deed Book and page number or Plat Book and page number. 

Note: If you are requesting a permit for a portion of the property, it needs to be described or 
delineation on a copy of the plat or surveyed drawing. 

2. 	 Ownership information - If ownership of the property is in the name of any type of legal entity 
or organization including, but not limited to, the name of a corporation, partnership or 
association, or in the name of a trust, or in a fictitious name, a document acceptable to the 
County must be submitted certifying that the person signing below has the authority to do so. 

If the applicant is a contract purchaser or an agent of the o\vner, an O\vnerjagent 
agreement must be attached (ask staff for form if needed). 

Owner/ Applicant Must Read and Sign 

I hereby certify that I own the subject property, or have the legal power to act on behalf of the owner 
in filing this application. I also certify that the information provided on this application and 
accompanying information is accurate, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Print Name of Ownerj Applicant 	 Date 

Signature of Owerj ApplIcant 	 Daytime Phone # of Signatory 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

70



_ARr;!« t DEI3r.:!RAI-l ..,.-1-lor-1P.soI.J 
'J~T" 2OlXo11.~~ ~ ~2a!G:l13t. 

T.M,'tI-A-1 
S:z.~ H£l/.;~AI\J MIL..L >a4l"lC 


I=Aill'l V 1i...U! J VA. 

2 ~"tOJ 


\JIGI N lTV MAP 
I" 01£;00" :t: 

-~~ 
-riM er= \2. L.A~E t CO, 
1/77 ~ FA-TJ2.Ic::.~ 
H~~ral.( Hl6-HWoll'r" 
c. Q~wa. \At,-. -Z:~9!50 
4:!:>4 -G.4~ -7CD2.r6 

71



~O~T L. 7 Ul -t 
C~Ol.~ R. BIW./Z)!.) 

(, P'I.~o-A-~ 
(40 5+1 ioo+ot.. MMJ nlU- RQ) 

DE>- ~..1 ~l ~ A. ~ DlMJ~_ B 
T.M SZ·A-Z~ 

PAuEiD At-.lD G-Q~t...eD 
AQ.e~ e.+16w~ (,;.jAC~P

'5 liE "p/..,Q/-./ 
-£- : {5.I..'Cc. I...,A.I{:

It.. PQop£!g)"C( LIIJ~ 
e.~\J,.J1 /\l& Tf-tE 

AGQ.ITOL>RI'SM c&iWR. 
'P1C.!!f¥lR.5C1 AI" 

LAgpY AIJO_ DEBoRAH -rt1O~ PfiOy 
L.OCATS.C> 10 1OiAklOOl-PH 
..... ..A ~. _ ___ .......... -. . , __ 
,..,._1 

72

http:e.~\J,.J1


---

.~R~V f: Oe.6QR'lw -rHclr-'lP.sa1J 
~:»T"~H(.!I ~ ~~, ~<. 

ToM, ct/-A-I 
52. '!l He L....., 1111\) M, /..L.. .,..,,q 0 


I=Aj;l"" V I Wo.4! ~ VA. 

2 !Seta I 

(1\ , 
Q '" 

\~ Lt 
~ 
:z 

~ 
N~ 

~ 
~ 

'JICIf..JrTV MAP 

I " ~ 'lDOo' :t: 

73



 

 

 

 

 

 

   

STAFF REPORT 

CUP 19-04 

Northfield Plantation 
Conditional Use Permit 

Cumberland County, Virginia 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 

 

 

General Information: 

 

 Processing schedule:   The Planning Commission unanimously recommended this 

proposal on April 22, 2019 with a public hearing. The Board of 

Supervisors will hold a public hearing on May 14, 2019. 

 

Application Information: 

 

  Owner:              First Citizens Bank & Trust Co. 

  Applicant:    Whitney Lipscomb 

  Requested Action:  Conditional Use Permit for: Event facility (indoor and outdoor) 

 Tax Parcel Number: 58-A-1A    

 Address:   189 Old Buckingham Road    

 Election District: 2 

 Existing Zoning: A-2 

 Proposed Zoning: A-2 with CUP 

 Size: 49.463 

 Existing land uses: Vacant home 

 Comp. plan area:  Moderate Intensity Growth Area 

 Overlay districts: None 

 

Surrounding Area Information: 

 

Direction Adjacent existing uses Adjacent zoning Adjacent Comp. Plan Area (2013) 

North/East/West Residential and 

Agricultural 

R-2 Moderate Intensity Growth Area 

South Residential and 

Agricultural 

A-2 Not in a growth area 

 

 

 

74



  

Summary of Request and Background Information: 

 

A conditional use permit application (CUP 16-03) for the use of this parcel as an event facility was 

approved in April, 2016. The previous owner was unable to follow through on their plans to operate an 

event facility, so the CUP expired. 

 

Under new ownership, a new CUP is now being applied for. There are plans to renovate existing 

structures on the property as needed. Events that would be held on the property include, but are not 

limited to, weddings, charity events, and general community events.  

 

Consistency with the 2013 Comprehensive Plan: 

 

The proposed use is within in an area not designated for growth in the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The following goals, objectives and policies of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan would be achieved by 

the proposed CUP:  

 

Goal 5: It is the goal of this plan to encourage the creation of appropriate economic opportunity for 

current and future citizens of Cumberland County.    

 

Objective 1: Encourage the overall strengthening and diversification of the economic base of 

Cumberland County to provide a sound tax base and to support the provision of needed public 

services.   

 

Objective 4: To encourage the development of essential employment opportunities within 

Cumberland County for the resident workforce. 

 

Goal 3:   It is the goal of this comprehensive plan to promote the wise and efficient utilization of lands 

within Cumberland to result in the sustainability of land resources and harmonious development of 

lands to serve the divergent interest and needs of the citizens of Cumberland County.   

 

Objective 1:  Through effective zoning, regulate future development to protect existing land use 

patterns within Cumberland County. 

 

Consistency with the Zoning Ordinance: 

 

The proposed use of the subject property is compatible with surrounding zoning and the intent of the 

district.   

 

Public Notification: 

 

Notice was published in the Farmville Herald on May 1 and 8, 2019. 

 

Adjoining property owners were sent a notice for the public hearing via certified mail on April 8, 2019. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

This event facility is compatible with the Comprehensive Plan and is compatible with the underlying 

zoning district.  

75



Recommendation: 

 

The Planning Commission unanimously recommended approval of the proposal with the following 

conditions:  

 

1. The permit holder shall, at all times, comply with all applicable federal, state, and local 

statutes, codes, regulations, and ordinances. A violation at any time of any federal, state, 

or local statute, code, regulation, or ordinance shall constitute a violation of this 

conditional use permit, regardless of whether enforcement action of the violated law, 

regulation, or ordinance is undertaken or is successful. This conditional use permit shall 

terminate immediately upon such violation. 

 

2. Building, septic, well, and electrical: The applicant must comply with all federal, state, 

and local regulations pertaining to applicable building codes and private water, sewer, 

and electricity. The applicant must provide a written letter from the Cumberland County 

Health Department indicating compliance with their codes for the facility.   

 

3. Compliance with plan required: The applicant must comply with the site plan attached to the 

application in regard to the areas to be used for events and parking.  In no case may driveways 

or parking areas be closer than any setbacks for the underlying zoning district.  Such provisions 

must, at a minimum, include gravel at the site entrance and, if necessary, at vehicle parking 

locations.  

 

4. Community safety: If county or state law enforcement is required to respond to restore order to 

those on the property more than two (2) times in a thirty (30) day period, the conditional use 

permit may be reviewed by the Board of Supervisors, and may be revoked at the Board’s 

discretion.   

 

5. Refuse disposal: After each event, all trash will be removed from the site within forty-eight (48) 

hours.     

 

6. Noise control: Noise is restricted between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 7:00 a.m. daily. At all 

times, noise and sound levels must not disturb residents of adjacent properties 

 

7. Lighting:  Lighting must not produce glare or spillover onto adjacent properties. 

 

8. Renewal of conditional use permit:  Regular renewal of the conditional use permit is required in 

order to demonstrate continued compliance.  For each renewal, the operator must provide all 

requested documentation from each applicable state and local agency regarding the applicant’s 

performance and compliance with the criteria used to approve the use, as well as a review of any 

code infractions and/or violations.  Renewals will occur on the following schedule: 

 

a. 1 year after approval; 

b. 2 years after approval; 

c. 5 years after approval; 

d. Every five years thereafter; 

e. Upon any change in operator. 

 

 

76



  

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

JP Duncan 

Planning Director 

77



ANDERSON HIGHWAY

NORTH
FIE

LD
 ROAD

OLD BUCKINGHAM ROAD

CUP 19-04 Northfield Plantation (58-A-1A)

Date: 4/15/2019 ¯0 200 400 600 800100
Feet78



ANDERSON HIGHWAY

OLD BUCKINGHAM ROAD

TRENTS MILL ROAD

MO
TL

EY
 M

ILL
 RO

AD

COMMERCE ROAD

NO
RT

HF
IEL

D R
OA

D

RANGE ROAD

FIR
EH

OU
SE

 R
OA

D

CUP 19-04 Northfield Plantation (58-A-1A)

Date: 4/15/2019 ¯0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

Zoning District
A-2, Agricultural
B-1, Business
B-3, Business
M-1, Industrial
R-2, Residential
RA-1, Rec. Acc.

79



,\ ..,IH:Jlt... 
.... -O J 

~ 
~. 
-' -;. 
.C; 

:z 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 

COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND 

Internlll l :se Onh' 
FILE II STAFF' 
RECEIVED 
COMPLETED___ 
FE Ck . II-:--r..-t--,--~ 
RECEIPT # -1~ 

Application for Conditional Use Permit 
Last re\ised 7/07/10 

Form must be completed in ink, Pencil will not be accepted. 

IMPORTANT NOTE: FOR CERTAIN LARGE-SCALE DEVELOPMENTS, STATE LAW NOW 
REQUIRES A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS (T.I.A.) be completed and submitted with a rezoning 
application before the County can deem the application complete. 

**Please see the attached T.I A . info sheet and checklist to determine ifsuch a study shall be required 
as part ofthe application. Please contact the zoning administrator for any questions. 

Project Name (how should we refer to this application?): Northfi -cl d PI AVltWM
• 

Proposal: __________ _______~----------------------

Location: t\SVj Ola 12V\c0V)0~t[W1 ~o. ~ 

Tax Map Parcel(s):_=5----=8~A- 1 '---'---___________________
-.L___'___'_A

Zoning: R -2- Comprehensive Plan Area: _____________________ 

Election District: _____---.:::...2-_________________________________________ 

# of Acres to be Covered by Conditional Use Permit (if a portion of a parcel or parcels it must be 
delineated on a plat): ______________________________________ 

Is this an amendment to an existing conditional use permit? IfYes, provide 
ErYESDNOCUP # or approval date: kpn I 12.,20 I ~ 

A Preliminary Site Plan is Required with Application for a CUP. Have you ~SDNO 
submitted a preliminary site plan? 

Is this a proposal for a shopping center or telecommunication tower? If so, DYES~ additional information is required additional conditions/use restrictions 

apply. Please see the Planning & Zoning Dept. for more info. 


Is an amendment to the subdivision or zoning ordinance also proposed as DYES~Opart of the CUP application? If so, complete and attach the Code 

Amendment application. 


Contact Person (who should we call/write concerning this project?): W\r) rt:rv..,y 1iQSLOrvili 

- l~" v 1'"\ D? Vt - Cl 
Address:2DW Ilmvu ltf.U( Farm City: f11rm\Al) & tate: V(Jv· Zip:2/) 0 I 
Daytime Phone: &2t q?-I ,.g,211 Fax #: L-J Email :jYlfo(~n(ffufiudfla 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110. Cumberland, VA 23040.804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

80



Page 2 ofS 

Owner of Record (who currently owns the property?):tirs+ ±(ZV1J &VU::..1 

Attn-. 11 m BylDV\I 

Address:4 30D Si x For~5 ~ItA City:~ I -e-'9~ State: NC Zip: 2/~0 1 

Daytime Phone: (~ ______ Fax # : (_) ______ Email:________ 

Applicant (who is the contact person representing?): _______________ 

Address:_____________City:___ __State:____.Zip: _____ 

Daytime Phone: ~______ Fax #: (__) ____ __ Email:___ _ _ ___ 

Does the owner of this property own (or have any ownership interest) in any abutting 
property? Ifyes, please list those tax map parcel numbers. _____ _______ _ 

Section 74-702 of the Cumberland County Zoning Ordinance provides guidelines for 
conditional use permit applications. 

Please address the following standards which will be reviewed by the staff in analysis of your 
request. Ifyou need assistance filling out these items, staff is available. 

Provide a written statement demonstrating that: 

1. 	 The establishment, maintenance or operation of the CUP will not be detrimental to or 
endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort or general welfare; 

2. 	 The CUP will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property in the immediate 
vicinity for the purposes already permitted, nor substantially diminish and impair property 
values within the neighborhood; 

3. 	 The establishment of the CUP will not impede the normal and orderly development and 
improvement of the surrounding property for uses permitted in the district; 

4. 	 The exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of any proposed structure will not be so 
at variance with either the exterior architectural appeal and functional plan of the structures 
already constructed or in the course of construction in the immediate neighborhood or the 
character of the applicable district as to cause a substantial depreciation in the property values 
within the neighborhood; 

5. 	 Adequate utilities, access roads, drainage or necessary facilities have been or are being 
provided; 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 • 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

81



Page 3 of 5 

6. 	 Ingress and egress to property and structures on the property with particular reference to 
automotive and pedestrian safety and convenience, traffic flow and control, and access of fire 
or catastrophe are adequately provided for; 

7. 	 Off-street parking and loading areas where required with particular attention to the items in # 
1. above and the economic, noise, glare or odor effects of the special exception on adjoining 
properties and properties generally in the district are adequately provided for; 

8. 	 Refuse and service areas, with particular reference to the items in #s 1. and 2. above are 

adequately provided for; 


9. 	 Appropriate screening and buffering with reference to type, dimensions and character of the 
use are adequately provided for; 

10. Any signs and exterior lighting are compatible and in harmony with properties in the district 
with reference to aesthetics, glare, traffic safety and economic effect; 

11. 	Required building setbacks and other open spaces are adequately provided for; 

12. The proposed use is compatible with adjacent properties and other property in the zoning 
district; 

13. An adequate supply of light and air to adjacent property is adequately provided for; and 

14. The CUP shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations of the zoning district 
in which it is located, except as such regulations may, in each instance, be modified by the 
Board of Supervisors. 

Describe your request in detail and include all pertinent information such as the number of persons 

involved in the use, operating hours, and any unique features of the proposed use: _______ 

Describe briefly the improvements proposed. State whether new buildings or structures are to be 
constructed, existing buildings or structures are to be used or additions made to existing buildings or 
structures. Give dimensions of the buildings that are to be constructed and the dimensions of any 

existing buildings on the property (attach any necessary information). ____________ 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040.804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

82



Page 4 ofS 

Attachments Required - provide two (2) copies of each 

1. 	 Recorded plat or boundary survey of the property requestedfor the permit. If there is no 
recorded plat or boundary survey, please provide legal description of the property and the 
Deed Book and page number or Plat Book and page number. 

Note: Ifyou are requesting a permit for a portion of the property, it needs to be described or 
delineation on a copy of the plat or surveyed drawing. 

2. 	 Ownership information - Ifownership of the property is in the name of any type of legal entity 
or organization including, but not limited to, the name ofa corporation, partnership or 
association, or in the name of a trust, or in a fictitious name, a document acceptable to the 
County must be submitted certifying ~at the person signing below has the authority to do so. 

Ifthe applicant is a contract purchaser or an agent ofthe owner, an owner/agent 
agreement must be attached (ask staff for form if needed). 

Owner/ Applicant Must Read and Sign 

I hereby certify that I o\o\-'Il the subject property, or have the legal power to act on behalf of the owner 
in filing this application. I also certify that the information provided on this application and 
accompanying information is accurate, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Print Name of Owner/ Applicant 	 Date 

Daytime Phone # of Signatory 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

83



Proposed Use: 

This event facility and bed and breakfast inn will hold events throughout the week. Types of events may 

include, but are not limited to, weddings, charity events, and community events. Tours will be by 

appointment only. Event hours are expected to be between 10 AM and 11 PM . All guests will be 

required to comply with the Cumberland County noise ordinance. Staff will be ava ilable at each event 

and guests will have the option of staying in the main house or guest cottage . 

Improvements: 

There are currently no plans to build any new buildings. Our long-term goal is to use the existing dairy 

barn, stables, and silos for events. All existing structures will be restored as needed for preservation and 

safety. We will be adding a small addition to the guest cottage, which includes three bathrooms to 

include outdoor handicap facilities (12x20) . 

For further information, see the attached map. Bathrooms will be connected to the existing septic as 

permitted by the Virg inia Department of Health. All future improvements will be subject to building 

inspections. 

84



Northfield Plantation 


CU P Application 


1. This is an establishment that has previously been approved for a sim ilar CUP 

2. Same as above. With the planned improvements to the property it will only increase the value of 

surrounding properties. Holding weddingsl and community events would certainly not be injurious to 

surrounding properties. 

3. Same as #2 . 

4. The plans for the property is to restore and preserve the existing structures. 

5. Minimal utilities are needed for the proposed use. 
There are already 4 access roads on the property. 
Drainage is not an issue 
There is already an existing commercial drain f ield in place 
Restroom trailers and/or porta johns will be required depending on expected attendance 

6. The Northfield Road and Anderson Highway entrances have excellent visibility for ingress and regress. 
There is no concern at any entrance for pedestrian safety. Easily accessible at 3 entrances for fire and 
rescue. 

7. Not applicable 

8. There will not be a long-term storage of refuse and no adjoining properties would be affected. 

9. Not applicable 

10. There w ill only be normal resident ial landscape and bistro lighting. Any signs would be temporary. In 
the event a permanent sign is needed, we will obtain any necessary permits through the building 
inspectors office. 

11. Not applicable 

12. Yes 

13. Not applicable 

14. Yes it does conform to regulat ions of the previously approved CU P 

85



....... 


ffi 
o 
c:: 
OJ 
c 
() 
A
::i" 

<0 
':J 
Q) 

3 
::0 
~ 
a. 

86



~ c:..,
;:;: ::s(1) _... 
D) ..a. -
(1) 
fIl CD 
0.., C.-a. 

s::Q-. 
0 
::l m0'.., " 


I"'" 
• CD

CQ 
....... CD 

en ~ 
<0 Q. 
o 
a. 
m 
c 
o 
a. 
::l 
<0 
'::F 
D) 

3 
:;0 
g 
a. 

87



I S , R O r€ ~o 
/J ?S ·00'5 'C3 "e

, , 53 , ~8' 
I ' 1-1 7':" c t:;, ·E8 ·'G- / 14 1.<'- 9 ..v 7,3·C'Se::: ··s - 6 0/.OS , ,, 

'1 II 0, P 
IJw.,....../<",,1 I , ""<o;J 

,/ - -- JOe C~/.sS 

oe . ~P.s hG. e96" 

5",,0'"' //'-- -'~'-l
'U' 

~I I ,'/ rl .. ...--..j

~,II') 

~ 
, ,\'i 

t'I) ..! HEiV U' , \ 

, : I '1°' 


i\ " J"O .. :. ,~""'-
Nore:~ fl) ~ 7"HI$ PRope ..er, 49. 4~3 A c. •{I t-}o,~~~ 

<J 7:M. "I". 56 . -4· 1.-1 l'.l\'O • A HdD b~"c;:hVe.
• ',g \ 'I)' -~ oF- ON.!? (i!:ONtG. 

~ ~ 06
o·

,Of/) O· 
III " 

~l ~ I;J I) .,'1 \ 
: ~ J , .'0 . C]"'/CP o ,~, t" 
~ ~ 

.!..A!!
' ""v~ 

2·;;,TO ~Y 
F,t::I'4.,N'/ 6 f 

- -
. ~ ~ 

4"..( I... '4St; ,97' 

1;:' , 
~ 

~.};9Gc~ ·C!O "w 

O F t. AND t., YIJVG OAJ 
lit '17.3C:'. 5

c'~ro~y ·1e.·Ot:. '''5·'
If (B~/CJ:-"\I, - ' I I' 

!'C",D 'I:t: \~~ Ii.. , IAle- O r U . S . ,lCOt.l
L.J I 

t:'I?AAU7'E'<!!Y} -- . ,.. .,. .... I f MA DISON ' ,?16r/f:.~Cr -"ct/Mei:,
.,:. -i I J 

'!:,. _'- 1: ,I
I .... ...... 

DA7""e.' A,P/C'/<C, ~, cOO<&> -!~~/ve-:-.. ~ i'- ...', 1/;
1'1. ode 

~~.. ____----~~'~~'~)~l.o 1::J4.cc' ,ee:v .. JUNG! 1', eoo(;,'. 9;: ' t 
__~,;,9 C'I :5 'J (/.1 444-. e? ....:!- .5~'J "2-4 'c9"/AI~ ,£,l. - ~ .' '" ' ,~, " 

.... 4-08.1;:' 

$ 7A7G /<odre Alo. ,3 
WOOaROW k, CClre,E 

ceRT/F/€O L,..qNO .s(/~ 

,':::>OWN47AA/, V/..{:"G/A 

( 80 4-) 598 - 2 0/1. 

();) 
...; ~ ) ~ ~04".<J I .. 
-) • .... J.J 

I!J IL O'.s"~ 
~-.~ ':I"
! ~~ 
I~Q
"" F"AMG 

c-WJEi.(.o.l67o 

0'" IiA1! JI 
.~. /;1~ .J 
-::""\- '\- . -- .. -

CUIlllillLAHD co. eulDMIIOH AGItfr.:-'1I" , ' ~ OJI..iJ DAm ~ - I'f-t?p, "1 : 
,. 1\ '-:L 

, / ,'" 
,~ , \ \ 

. • ,;' \ I '" PLATGHOWIAIG 4~' J 

88

http:1::J4.cc


 

 

 

 

 

 

   

STAFF REPORT 

REZ 19-01 

Hamilton Dance Studio 
Rezoning 

 R-2 to B-1 

Cumberland County, Virginia 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 

 

 

General Information: 

 

 Processing schedule:   The Planning Commission unanimously recommended this 

proposal on March 25, 2019 with a public hearing.  The public 

hearing with the Board of Supervisors will be held on May 14, 

2019. 

 

Application Information: 

 

 Applicant:   Chana Hamilton 

 Owner:    Barbara L. Price 

 Requested Action:   To grant a rezoning from R-2 to B-1 

 Tax Map Number: 51-A-29F 

 Location: North side of Anderson Hwy   

 Election District: 2 

 Existing Zoning: R-2, Residential 

 Proposed Zoning: B-1, Business District 

 Lot Size: 17.33 acres 

 Existing land uses: Vacant  

 Comp. plan area:  Moderate growth area  

 Overlay districts: None 

 Proffers: None 

 

Surrounding Area Information: 

 

Direction Adjacent existing uses Adjacent 

zoning 

Adjacent Comp. Plan Area (2013) 

E/W/S Agricultural/Residential R-2 Moderate Growth Area 

North Agricultural/Residential A-2 Not in a Growth Area 

 

  

   

89



  

Summary of Request and Background Information: 

 

This property is located north of Anderson Hwy east of Cumberland near the intersection of Oak 

Forest Road. The proposed rezoning is located on family land that the applicant has been planning on 

developing for a few years.  

 

The current plan is to build a dance studio on the property with the possibility of opening a 

convenience store and a restaurant later on. 
 

Consistency with the 2013 Comprehensive Plan: 

 

The proposed use falls within a moderate growth area of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The following goals, objectives and policies of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan would be achieved by 

the proposed CUP:  

 

Goal 5: It is the goal of this plan to encourage the creation of appropriate economic opportunity for 

current and future citizens of Cumberland County.    

 

Objective 1: Encourage the overall strengthening and diversification of the economic base of 

Cumberland County to provide a sound tax base and to support the provision of needed public 

services.   

 

Objective 4: To encourage the development of essential employment opportunities within 

Cumberland County for the resident workforce. 

 

Consistency with the Zoning Ordinance: 

 

The proposed use of the subject property is compatible with the above intent. This allows for future 

commercial growth. 

 

Allowed Uses in the B-1 District: 

 

(1) Antique shops. 

(2) Auctions. 

(3)Auto/truck sales. 

(4) Bakeries. 

(5) Banks. 

(6) Barbershops and beauty shops, massage therapy. 

(7) Business offices. 

(8) Cabinet-making furniture and upholstery shops. 

(9) Car dealerships. 

(10) Carwashes. 

(11) Childcare centers. 

(12) Clubs and lodges. 

(13) Drugstores. 

(14) Dry cleaners/laundries. 

(15) Event facilities. 

(16) Farm supply stores, equipment and machinery sales and service. 

90



(17) Financial services. 

(18) Florists. 

(19) Funeral homes. 

(20) Gift shops. 

(21) Government offices/post offices. 

(22) Health clinic. 

(23) Home appliance/hardware store. 

(24) Hospitals, general. 

(25) Hotels, motels, restaurants. 

(26) Kennels, commercial (no outdoor confinement). 

(27) Laundromats. 

(28) Liquor store. 

(29) Lumber and building supply (storage under cover). 

(30) Machinery sales and service. 

(31) Medical facilities. 

(32) Newspaper offices. 

(33) Off-street parking (as required by this chapter). 

(34) Office buildings. 

(35) Plumbing/electrical supply (storage under cover). 

(36) Printing presses. 

(37) Professional offices. 

(38) Recreation centers. 

(39) Repair shops: bicycle, shoes, locks, guns, etc. 

(40) Restaurants and drive-in restaurants. 

(41) Retail food store or supermarket. 

(42) Retail stores, shops and building supply store. 

(43) Service stations (major repair under cover). 

(44) Taverns. 

(45) Theatres and assembly halls. 

(46) Vehicle painting, upholstering, repairing, rebuilding and reconditioning. 

(47) Veterinary hospital (no outdoor confinement). 

(48) Wearing apparel stores. 

(49) Wholesale businesses. 

 

(Code 1990, § 14-41; Ord. of 12-10-1997; Ord. of 3-23-2004(3); Ord. No. 10-09, 10-13-2010; Ord. 

No. 12-02, 11-13-2012; Ord. No. 16-05, 4-12-2016) 

 

Permitted uses with conditional use permit in a B-1 district are as follows:  

(1)  Auction barn. 

(2)  Billiard parlor, poolrooms, bowling alleys, dance halls, skating rinks. 

(3)  Childcare. 

(4)  Kennels, commercial (with any outdoor confinement). 

(5)  Mobile home/trailer sales lot. 

(6)  Oil storage, bulk. 

(7)  Public utilities. 

91



  

(8)  Radio stations, television stations and cable TV facilities, communication station an/or 

tower or related facilities; subject to provisions of section 74-731 et seq.  

(9)  Shopping center, subject to provisions of section 74-711 et seq.  

(10)  Veterinary hospital (with any outdoor confinement). 

 

(Code 1990, § 14-41; Ord. of 12-10-1997; Ord. of 3-23-2004(3); Ord. No. 08-02, § 8., 5-13-2008(2); 

Ord. No. 10-09, 10-13-2010)  

 

Public Notification: 

 

Notice was published in the Farmville Herald on May1 and 8, 2019. 

 

Adjacent notice for the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors public hearing was sent by 

certified mail to adjacent property owners on March 8, 2019. 

 

Public Input: 

 

No inquiries have been made. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The requested action is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan goals and the Zoning Ordinance and is 

supportive of the county’s plans to provide for and encourage economic development opportunities.  

 

Recommendation: 

 

The Planning Commission unanimously recommends approval of the rezoning.   

 

 

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

JP Duncan 

Planning Director 

 

92

https://www.municode.com/library/va/cumberland_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=THCO_CH74ZO_ARTXVIICOZOZOAPCOUSPE_DIV2COUSPE_SDIIICOANTO_S74-731DE
https://www.municode.com/library/va/cumberland_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=THCO_CH74ZO_ARTXVIICOZOZOAPCOUSPE_DIV2COUSPE_SDIISHCE_S74-711DE


ANDERSON HIGHWAY

REZ 19-01 Hamilton Dance Studio (51-A-29F)

Date: 3/19/2019 ¯0 200 400 600 800100
Feet93



ANDERSON HIGHWAY

REZ 19-01 Hamilton Dance Studio (51-A-29F)

Date: 3/19/2019 ¯0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

Zoning District
CUP
A-2, Agricultural
M-1, Industrial
M-2, Industrial
R-2, Residential

94



-6 
t · 
./ 

>1
.t:' 

z 

Internal Use Only 
FI L ' # STAFF 
RECEJV m --
COMPLETED ____ 
FEE/Ck . #.,.,..-____ 
RECEIPT # 

\\BtR/
(. -·1 /~' 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA 

COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND 

Application for Change in Zoning 
(A.K.A. Rezoning/Zoning Map Amendment) 

Last revised 12/20/ 17 

Form must be completed in ink, Pencil will not be accepted. 

NOTES: REZONINGS MAY REQUIRE A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS IN COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW. If 
required, the subdivision application will not be deemed complete until such analysis has been prepared and submitted. 
For more information, please obtain an information packet prepared by county staff and available in the Planning Dept. 
entitled, "Traffic Impact Analysis Information ." Please contact the Planning Dept. with any questions. 

The application fee associated with a rezoning application is directly associated with meeting the specific legal 
advertisement and public notification requirements required by state law. Such application fee has been the same amount 
for over 10 years. 

Project/Development Name (how should we refer to this application?): 

Hamilton 

of z~ng being re~uested (i.e. how are proposing to amend the zoning map?) : 

rl-'l + c\ -- ( 

Address/ Location: North side of Anderson Hwy 


CurrentZoning:~A~~2___ _ ____ _____ _ _ _ _______ _ _ _ __________
-

Tax Map Parce1(s):~5.!..:1-~A~-=.:29~FL-_____ _ ____ ____ _ ____ _____ 

Election District:----'=2'--________ ________ ________ _ ___ _ _ _ ___ _____ 

Are you submitting proffers with this application? If so, attach proffer(s). DYES I?J NO 
Is this an amendment to an existing zoning application or to any existing 
zoning conditions? If so, provide copy of items to be amended. 
Are you proffering a site/design plan with this application? If so, attach 
planes). 
Is a Traffic Impact Analysis (TlA) required for this request? If so, attach TlA. 
See TlA info sheet and checklist for more information. 
Is an amendment to the subdivision or zoning ordinance also proposed as 
part of the rezoning application? If so, complete and attach the Code 
Amendment application. 

DYES~NO 

DYES~NO 

DYES,KI NO 

DYES~NO 

Contact Person (who should we call/write concerning this project?): Chana Hamilton 

Address: 47 Stuyvesant Plaza City: Mt. Vernon State: NY Zip: 10552 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

95



Page 2 of 5 

Daytime Phone: (~) --,-70=3~---L7=2=0v-3____ Fax #: ( _ _ ) _ _____ 
Email:_ _______ 

Owner of Record (who currently owns the property?):~~~~ra L"_~P..... ____ _Barba~~ . n-'-'=·co-,=e~___ 

Address:__ 47 Stuyvesant Plaza City: Mt. Vernon State: NY Zip: 10552 

Daytime Phone: (~) 668-0479 Fax #: L_) _ ___~_ Email:_____ _ _ _ 

Applicant (who is the contact person representing?):_--==Sam nta====e:--=a=s~c=o-,-,==ct,--______ ~ 

Address:_ ________ _ _ _ _ City:_ _ _ __State:___ _ Zip:_ ____ 

Daytime Phone: (---.J _ _ _ _ _ _ Fax #: (_ _ ) __~_ _ _ Email:_ ____ ___ 

Does the owner of this property mvn (or have any ovmership interest) in any abutting property? Ifyes, 
please list those tax map parcel numbers. _ _ _ N~o'___ _ _ _ _ _ ~_ _ ~_ ___ ___ _ 

Section 15.2-2284 of the Code of Virginia states that, "Zoning ordinances and districts shall be dravvn 
and applied ,,,rith reasonable consideration for the existing use and character of property, the 
comprehensive plan, the suitability of property for various uses, the trends of growth or change, the 
current and future requirements of the community as to land for various purposes as determined by 
population and economic studies and other studies, the transportation requirements of the 
community, the requirements for airports, housing, schools, parks, playgrounds, recreation areas and 
other public services, the conservation of natural resources, the preservation of flood plains, the 
preservation of agricultural and forestal land, the conservation of properties and their values and the 
encouragement ofthe most appropriate use ofland throughout the locality." 

The items that follow will be re\riewed by the staff in their analysis of your request. Please complete 
this form and prmride additional information which ",rill assist the County in its re\riew of you request. 
Ifyou need assistance filling out these items, staff is available. 

What public need or benefit does this rezoning serve? 

The rezoning change from agricultural/residential to business will serve as aplace where 

people can purchase their basic commodities (food. drinks. toiletries. etc.) along with a 

place that pro\rides physical fitness for all ages. This will encourage quality health and a 

positive atmosphere for everyone. It ,viII also bring jobs and businesses to the community, 

which will raise the employment rate. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040 .804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

96



·~------------------------~~~------------------------, 

Page 3 of 5 

Are public water, sewer and roads available to serve this site? Will there be any impact on 
these facilities? 
The parcel is located on a primary highway. No public utilities are available. 

Explain the present unavailability ofland in the community or adjacent communities zoned 

to permit proper location of the proposed use. 


There is a limited number of parcels in Cumberland County that are zoned for these types 

of uses. 

What impact will there be on the County's natural, scenic and historic resources? 


The location of this rezoning is along a primary route, which minimizes any potential 

impacts on the County's resources. 

Do you have plans to develop the property if the rezoning is approved? If so please 

describe including land uses, maximum number of lots or maximum business square feet. 

State whether new buildings or structures are to be constructed, existing buildings or 

structures are to be used or additions made to existing buildings or structures: 


The current plan is to use the parcel as a restaurant, convenience store, and dance studio. 


All buildings would be constructed as the property is currently vacant. 


Describe your request in detail including why you are requesting this particular zoning 

district and it's compliance ,,,,ith the comprehensive plan: 


This property was chosen because it is family land that has been passed down for a 

number of generations. This rezoning is in compliance with the comprehensive plan in that 

it is located in a moderate intensity growth area. The proposed land uses would help 

achieve multiple goals and objectives of the comprehensive plan. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040.804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

97



Page 4 of 5 

Ifyou would like to proffer any restrictions on the development of the property, please list 
these proffers on an attachment in a form acceptable to the County. Proffers are voluntary 
offers to use property in a more restrictive way than the overall zoning district classification 
would allow. By State Code, proffers must have a reasonable relationship to the rezoning 
and are not mandatory. The rezoning must give rise to the need for the proffers; the 
proffers must be related to the physical development or physical operation of the property; 
and the proffers must be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Are there any liens against the property? 0 YES,PI NO (IjYes, please list them below:) 

Attachments Required - provide two (2) copies of each: 

1. 	 Recorded plat or boundary survey of the property requested for the rezoning. If there is no 
recorded plat or boundary survey, please provide legal description of the property and the 
Deed Book and page number or Plat Book and page number. 

Note: Ifyou are requesting a rezoning for a portion of the property, it needs to be described or 
delineation on a copy of the plat or sunreyed drmving. 

2. 	 Ownership information - Ifovvnership of the property is in the name of any type of legal entity 
or organization including, but not limited to, the name of a corporation, partnership or 
association, or in the name of a trust, or in a fictitious name, a document acceptable to the 
County must be submitted certifying that the person signing below has the authority to do so. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

98



Page 5 of 5 

Ifthe applicant is a contract purchaser or an agent of the owner, an owner/agent 
agreement must be attached (ask staff for form if needed). 

Owner/ Applicant Must Read and Sign 

I hereby certify that I own the subject property, or have the legal power to act on behalf of the owner 
in filing this application. I also certify that the information provided on this application and 
accompanying information is accurate, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

//26/;' 

Print Name of Owner/ Applicant Dat; 7 

~~ rk?1 f!3- jl;;?63 
Signature of Owner/ Applicant Daytime Phone # of Signatory 

The below is to only be completed by County staff. 

Rezoning Package Completeness Review: I have reviewed the rezoning package and find it to 
complete. If the scope ofthe rezoning request is such that a traffic impact analysis is required, such 
rezoning package shall include a completed TIA and applicable fee. A complete rezoning package will 
contain this completed application, proffers (if proposed), TIA Cif required), plan of development, 
county application fee and VDOT TIA fee (ifTIA required). 

By signing the below, County staff is stating the rezoning package is complete; it does not and should 
not imply any approval or denial of the request . 

Signature of Zoning Administrator Date 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box llO • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

99



~ Q
~\j~
'< ~ "\ 

750.00 . 

34-8 .·;;r?' 

PA,€C€ L '0' 

/1. ~oO Ac. 

50' ~CCE?55 F 
.£:: /1<.1 T"Y £.5,4 'r 

~9;'; ;-\-8U. ;:; ~\ 

\I'll" "18 ' o D "w 
189.09 ' 

'I pUt g:~-' A~__ PA,eCeL €' 
..II-r ~ . c.OOO Ac, 

1,0 

~ 

pt.! uJ 

'J 

\! ~ 
~ ~ 
~ ~ 

~ 

,vIF 
,LJ/'&

.;tR/ON 
,o.-.JA/ltEL 


D8.C'OI P6.~'fJ 


d 
J 	 .5 €ltd " .ee 'oo ".1£ ~ ! ~3~. oa ' -+ ~~- Q 

/~59. ~4 ' I"i "B~.~~·~!I)r 

N/~ 

O/J,v/EL 

oe.~8 P.'; .53 

ER 
P6, ~ 

/-sro'€Y 
Ftfi?,qME 

C? 

. 0"6 
.to 0 , " 

rJ7& 4-.1t , / 
~ II 

"I' 

'ti 

tI 
/1 
II 

~I I 
~, I 
Q I 

?A.ece~ . 'e' 
II. ~OO )JC. 

,II" 895 . 20 jJ 

~;./8'?·45'OO 

,PA.RCet ' 

//.GOO Ac, 


.s#6·00'a:::> "C" 

/7/.94' I ez 'fJ . 

- ~ ~ 
.\) ti ~ ~ 
,,~ \"'IF ~ ~ ~ .Nf l ? ? ~\)~~ •. 19. \I) ~ ~ ~ 

III (~ \ij 
~ 
~ 

~ 
~ 

"t-v\' 13 

,v/,c 

A4A£/O/J 


.,e. 117 PG . i?48 


N C'Tc5 . 
.""" 3) ?/IE PARCeLS 5NOWAI ON r"f/sI) £>ITE ' J;itl/~AI~y 1')• .?OC4 ~ e : / "' . ~Ot:? ' 

?,c AT .5/1.-</ L L Bt!' co,vt:; /061'20 

AJOA/- RES/PeNT/At. UNT IL 
...q PP-;COVAC Or 7'rle' 1·1€~t:. 7"h' 

2) 7HIS P~A T BE/A./S A D/ V/ SIOA./ OF D £"r=--A ;(27',;fA£.AI r. 

7 ;/14• .-t lo. S"I .A<l~rOF ,q4.<?C £ L. 29. 
 Ct!F. 	

v N ,' 2?.E" 

100

http:27',;fA�.AI


I BARt34AA- L . PR\C~ agree to equally share 17.330 acres of 
land, Tax Map Parcel(s) 051A29F Anderson Highway in Cumberland 
County Virginia, ( Hamilton District) with my granddaughter Chana 
Hamilton, to build businesses and residencies under an agreed project 
development named Daniels Drive, changing our residential zone into a 
commercial zone. In the event if anything should happen to me, my 
granddaughter Chana Hamilton will be given the entire 17.330 acres of 
land, Tax Map Parcel(s) 051A29F to continue our project development. 
Thank-you! . 

Sincer~ly, .JJ 0 ' 
8~Me o<~~ 
Barbara L. Price 

~> 
~ .'f : "
~ l :" 

101



 

 

 

 

 

 

   

STAFF REPORT 

REZ 19-02 

Price Right Mini Storage 
Rezoning 

 A-2 to B-3 

Cumberland County, Virginia 

Planning Commission Public Hearing 

 

 

General Information: 

 

 Processing schedule:   The Planning Commission unanimously recommended this 

proposal on March 25, 2019 with a public hearing. The public 

hearing with the Board of Supervisors will be held on May 14, 

2019. 

 

Application Information: 

 

  Applicant:   Cumberland County for Marion R. Coblentz 

  Owner:    Marion R. Coblentz 

  Requested Action:   To grant a rezoning from A-2 to B-3 

 Tax Map Number: Part of 96-A-57 

 Location: 235 Raines Tavern Road   

 Election District: 5 

 Existing Zoning: R-2, Residential 

 Proposed Zoning: B-3, Limited Business 

 Lot Size: Approximately 1.5 acres of a 24.76 acre parcel 

 Existing land use: Residential and Mini-storage warehouse 

 Comp. plan area:  Not in a growth area  

 Overlay districts: None 

 Proffers: None 

 

Surrounding Area Information: 

 

Direction Adjacent existing uses Adjacent 

zoning 

Adjacent Comp. Plan Area (2013) 

All Agricultural/Residential A-2 Not in a Growth Area 
 

  

   

 

 

102



  

Summary of Request and Background Information: 

 

A mini-storage warehouse was built on this property around 20 years ago. The owner would like to 

subdivide this parcel to separate the dwelling from the mini-storage warehouse. This rezoning would 

allow for such subdivision as well as bring the property into compliance with Cumberland County 

Code.  

 

Currently the use is considered legal nonconforming as mini-storage warehouse is not an allowed use 

in the A-2 zoning district. 
 

Consistency with the 2013 Comprehensive Plan: 

 

The proposed use does not fall within a growth area of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan. 

 

The following goals, objectives and policies of the 2013 Comprehensive Plan would be achieved by 

the proposed CUP:  

 

Goal 5: It is the goal of this plan to encourage the creation of appropriate economic opportunity for 

current and future citizens of Cumberland County.    

 

Objective 1: Encourage the overall strengthening and diversification of the economic base of 

Cumberland County to provide a sound tax base and to support the provision of needed public 

services.   

 

Objective 4: To encourage the development of essential employment opportunities within 

Cumberland County for the resident workforce. 

 

Consistency with the Zoning Ordinance: 

 

The proposed rezoning would bring the parcel into compliance with the zoning ordinance. 

 

Permitted uses in a B-3 district 

 

(1) Adult care facilities.  

(2) Barbershops and beauty shops, massage therapy.  

(3) Churches, libraries.  

(4) Drugstores.  

(5) Dry cleaners/laundries.  

(6) Financial services.  

(7) Fire and rescue stations.  

(8) Funeral homes. 

(9) Gift shops.  

(10) Government offices/post offices.  

(11) Greenhouses and nurseries.  

(12) Kennel, commercial (no outdoor confinement).  

(13) Laundromats.  

(14) Mini-storage warehouse.  

(15) Professional offices.  

(16) Retail farm and garden center.  

103



(17) Retail food stores.  

(18) Storage warehouse.  

(19) Truck, automobile, trailer, and equipment rental as an accessory to an existing establishment.  

(20) Veterinary hospital (no outdoor confinement). 

 

(Code 1990, § 14-45P; Ord. of 3-23-2004(5); Ord. No. 08-02, § 8., 5-13-2008(2); Ord. No. 10-09, 10-

13-2010; Ord. No. 12-01A, 8-14-2012) 

 

Sec. 74-503. - Conditional uses.  

Permitted uses with conditional use permit in a B-3 district are as follows: 

 

(1) Cabinet-making furniture and upholstery shops.  

(2) Childcare.  

(3) Convenience stores with or without gas.  

(4) Event facilities.  

(5) Hotels, motels.  

(6) Kennels, commercial (with any outdoor confinement).  

(7) Printing businesses.  

(8) Public utilities.  

(9) Radio, television or communication station and/or tower or related facilities, subject to the 

provisions of section 74-731 et seq.  

(10) Restaurants.  

(11) Restaurants, drive-in.  

(12) Utility booster/relay stations transformer substations, towers, railroads.  

(13) Veterinary hospital (with any outdoor confinement). 

 

(Code 1990, § 14-45Q; Ord. of 3-8-2000; Ord. of 3-23-2004(5); Ord. No. 08-02, § 8., 5-13-2008(2); 

Ord. No. 10-09, 10-13-2010; Ord. No. 16-05, 4-12-2016) 

 

Public Notification: 

 

Notice was published in the Farmville Herald on May 1 and 8, 2019. 

 

Adjacent notice for the Planning Commission and Board of Supervisors public hearing was sent by 

certified mail to adjacent property owners on March 8, 2019. 

 

Public Input: 

 

No inquiries have been made. 

 

Conclusion: 

 

The requested action will bring the parcel into compliance with the Cumberland County Code. 

 

Recommendation: 

 

The Planning Commission unanimously recommends approval of the rezoning.   

 

 

104



  

Respectfully submitted by: 

 

JP Duncan 

Planning Director 

 

105



RAINES TAVERN ROAD

REZ 19-02 Price Right Mini Storage (96-A-57)

Date: 3/19/2019

¯0 250 500 750 1,000125
Feet106



RAINES TAVERN ROAD

PL
AN

K R
OA

D

CR
OO

KE
D 

LA
NE

PERKINS LANE

CUMBER
LA

ND ROAD

BENT LANE

GOSPEL LANE

PLANK ROAD

RAINES TAVERN ROAD

REZ 19-02 Price Right Mini Storage (96-A-57)

Date: 3/19/2019 ¯0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000500
Feet

Zoning District
A-2, Agricultural

107



108



Internal lise Only 
fiLE II__STAFF__ 

COMMONWEALTH OF VIRGINIA RECEIVCD _ _ _ _ 
OMPLETED 

FEE/Ck. # '--- 

RECEIPT II 
COUNTY OF CUMBERLAND 

Application for Change in Zoning 
(A.K.A. Rezoning/Zoning Map Amendment) 

Last revised 12/ 20/ 17 

Form must be completed in ink, Pencil will not be accepted. 

NOTES: REZONINGS MAY REQUIRE A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS IN COMPLIANCE WITH STATE LAW. If 
required, the subdivision application will not be deemed complete until such analysis has been prepared and submitted. 
For more information, please obtain an information packet prepared by county staff and available in the Planning Dept. 
entitled, "Traffic Impact Analysis Information. " Please contact the Planning Dept. with any questions. 

The application fee associated with a rezoning application is directly associated with meeting the specific legal 
advertisement and public notification requirements required by state law. Such application fee has been the same amount 
for over 10 years . 

Project/Development Name (how should we refer to this application?): 

Price Right Mini Storage 

Describe the change of zoning being requested (i.e. how are proposing to amend the zoning map?): 

A-2 to B-3 

Address/ Location: 235 Raines Tavern Road 


Current Zoning:_..£.A.!...--",2~____________________________ 


Tax Map Parcel(s): g6-A-S7 f ~ (~ o~ 

Election District :, _ ------:.5J.....-_ _ ___________________________ 


Are you submitting proffers with this application? If so, attach proffer(s). DYESDNO 
Is this an amendment to an existing zoning application or to any existing DYESDNOzoning conditions? If so, provide copy of items to be amended. 
Are you proffering a site/design plan with this application? If so, attach DYESDNO
planes). 

Is a Traffic Impact Analysis (TlA) required for this request? If so, attach TlA. 
 DYESDNO
See TIA info sheet and checklist for more information. 
Is an amendment to the subdivision or zoning ordinance also proposed as 
part of the rezoning application? If so, complete and attach the Code DYESDNO 
Amendment application. 

Contact Person (who should we call/write concerning this project?): James Duncan 

Address: 1 Courthouse Circle City: Cumberland State: VA Zip: 23040 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520 • Fax - 804-492-9224 

109



Page 2 of 5 

Daytime Phone: ( __) ______ Fax #: ( _ _ ) _ _____ Email:_____ ___ 

Owner of Record (who currently owns the property?): Marion R. Coblentz 

Address: 8Z2 Evans Mill Rd City: Dillwyn State: VA Zip: 23936 

Daytime Phone: (43.4) 390-7116 Fax #: ( _ _ ) ______ Email:_ _______ 

Applicant (who is the contact person representing?): Cumberland County for Marion R. 
Coblentz 

Address:_____ _________City:_ _ ___State:_ ___Zip:____ _ _ 

Daytime Phone: ( __- ) ______ Fax #: ( _ _ ) ______ Email:________ 

Does the owner ofthis property ovvn (or have any ownership interest) in any abutting property? If yes, 
please list those tax map parcel numbers. __......:9:u6L-~A~-~6..:.1_ _ _ _ ____~_____ ___ 

Section 15.2-2284 of the Code of Virginia states that, "Zoning ordinances and districts shall be drawn 
and applied with reasonable consideration for the existing use and character of property, the 
comprehensive plan, the suitability of property for various uses, the trends of growth or change, the 
current and future requirements of the community as to land for various purposes as determined by 
population and economic studies and other studies, the transportation requirements of the 
community, the requirements for airports, housing, schools, parks, playgrounds, recreation areas and 
other public services, the conservation of natural resources, the preservation of flood plains, the 
preservation of agricultural and forestal land, the conservation of properties and their values and the 
encouragement of the most appropriate use of land throughout the locality." 

The items that follow will be reviewed by the staff in their analysis of your request. Please complete 
this form and provide additional information which ,,,,ill assist the County in its review of you request. 
Ifyou need assistance filling out these items, staff is available. 

What public need or benefit does this rezoning serve? This rezoning would bring the 
current land use of Mini-storage warehouse in to compliance with Cumberland County 

Code. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110. Cumberland, VA 23040.804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

110



Page 3 of 5 

Are public water, sewer and roads available to serve this site? Will there be any impact on 
these facilities? 
No 

Explain the present unavailability of land in the community or adjacent communities zoned 
to permit proper location of the proposed use. 

N/A 

What impact win there be on the County's natural, scenic and historic resources? 

None. 

Do you have plans to develop the property if the rezoning is approved? If so please 
describe including land uses, maximum number oflots or maximum business square feet. 
State whether new buildings or structures are to be constructed, existing buildings or 
stluctures are to be used or additions made to existing buildings or structures: 

The property is already developed. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box uo. Cumberland, VA 23040.804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

111



Page 4 of 5 

Describe your request in detail including 'why you are requesting this particular zoning 
district and it's compliance 'with the comprehensive plan: 

This rezoning is to bring the current land use into compliance with the Cumberland 

County Code. 

Ifyou would like to proffer any restrictions on the development of the property, please list 
these proffers on an attachment in a form acceptable to the County. Proffers are voluntary 
offers to use property in a more restrictive way than the overall zoning district classification 
would allow. By State Code, proffers must have a reasonable relationship to the rezoning 
and are not mandatory. The rezoning must give rise to the need for the proffers; the 
proffers must be related to the physical development or physical operation of the property; 
and the proffers must be in conformity with the Comprehensive Plan. 

Are there any liens against the property? 0 YES 0 NO (If Yes, please list them below:) 

Attachments Required - provide 1\,\'0 (2) copies of each: 

1. 	 Recorded plat or boundary survey of the property requested for the rezoning. If there is no 
recorded plat or boundary survey, please provide legal description ofthe property and the 
Deed Book and page number or Plat Book and page number. 

Note: If you are requesting a rezoning for a portion of the property, it needs to be described or 
delineation on a copy of the plat or surveyed drm,ving. 

2. 	 Ownership information - If mvnership of the property is in the name of any type of legal entity 
or organization including, but not limited to, the name of a corporation, partnership or 
association, or in the name of a trust, or in a fictitious name, a document acceptable to the 
County must be submitted certifying that the person signing below has the authority to do so. 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

112



Page 5 of 5 

If the applicant is a contract purchaser or an agent of the owner, an owner/agent 
agreement must be attached (ask staff for form if needed). 

OwnerI Applicant Must Read and Sign 

I hereby certify that I own the subject property, or have the legal power to act on behalf of the owner 
in filing this application. I also certify that the information provided on this application and 
accompanying information is accurate, true, and correct to the best of my knowledge. 

Print Name of Owner/ Applicant Date 

da<A~ 
Daytime Phone # of Signatory 

The below is to only be completed by County staff. 

Rezoning Package Completeness Review: I have reviewed the rezoning package and find it to 
complete. Ifthe scope of the rezoning request is such that a traffic impact analysis is required, such 
rezoning package shall include a completed TIA and applicable fee. A complete rezoning package will 
contain this completed application, proffers (if proposed), TIA (if required), plan of development, 
county application fee and VDOT TIA fee (if TIA required). 

By signing the below, County staff is stating the rezoning package is complete; it does not and should 
not imply any approval or denial of the request. 

Signature of Zoning Administrator Date 

Cumberland County Department of Planning & Zoning 
• Box 110 • Cumberland, VA 23040. 804-492-3520. Fax - 804-492-9224 

113



Starting at the northeastern corner going west along SR 636 243 feet then south to the edge of the 

baseball field then east to the property line. Approximately 1.5 acres. 

114



115



BOOK 231 PAGE 252 

MAXEY - HINES a ASSOCIATES, p.e,

P.O. BOX 90. FARMVIllE • VIRGINIA· 23901 
TEL: 804-392-8827 


_0.2~ml. 10 
 SET 	 ~0'1. No/If!
S.R ... 600 IRON S. RTc. NO..,£ 636 

.JUNIUS BAKER 
LOUISE 

0.BJ04.p.ll~ 

<:i 

HOWARO 	 ~ 
RUBIN LINOA M. TRO YER 

0.8)$1.1>.80$ .JULIUS E. TRO YER 
D.B.I~6.p..J49 

. i 

ARTHUR ALBRIGHT 
0.8.207.pJ44 

SHARON 

BAPTIST 

CHURCH 


0.8.I78,p.822 
0.B.l76,p.l82 

FORMERLY 
.JAMeS 

LIPSCOMB NQTF.' 
PLA r D.B. .J4.p. .JI 	 l THIS PLAT HAS BaH PR£PAR£D 

wmKJur BElEnr OF A nn£ 
REPORT ANO I>«S NOT 
THEREF'OI?£ NECESSARILY 
WOICATF ALL £NCIIMBRANCES 
ON THE PROPERTY. 

2. LINES AB AND BC TO BE AGREEO 
LEGEND: 	 UPON BY BO(JNDARY AGR£:cMENr 

AND olJlr CLAIM DEEors).
,P • unuTY POLE 

_€ • OVERHE:AD EL1;&TR1C LINErs) 


A!'PP:lV::<:l: ~ 

!lOT .. .. ?' " ,,0: '\ 


O' 300' 600' 
H 

i 
o 

REOUESTED 	

.~ ". \. , 
OWNERISr, 

i LOCATED IN: 


PURl'O$E: To d~I/Mal" bOlJndar/"s I)f Iho Charlio Jaclul)n and 

g Margarol Jackson Randolph Eslafos. Lines AB and 
f BC locolad II) CIJI off 5 acros from Iho formor 

1~____________J_am__a_$_L_I_p_sc_a_m_b__L_a_n_d.______________________~~~~~~~~____~ 

WlGIIIIk CUlIl. orne! 01 M aROJl WJRT Of CUIIBERW~ C;)O~TI 

51. R. Tu (039) ~o 
Co. R. Tu (213) 00 
TraRSfor (2121~ The foregoing Inltrument wllh .cknowledgment was 
Cieri! (301) 0 11 _. ' " 
Ub. (145) 00 .dmlllld to record en ~ / Ii'll. 
Grantor Tu ( :I ) ao . 
Tech.T/. (106) 3 10D '1~1oI. lnD.8•...nL PJatll)~.2.. 
ToUIS .pO.GO TIII1: 

Inltr. ' ~ C;~ D. fi~o.~ . CLERK 


Exam1~ed and dellvered to James P. Baber. Atty. 4/1/99 


116

http:0.8)$1.1>.80
http:0.BJ04.p.ll


040219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 1 of 3 
 

 

 

 

At a meeting of the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors held at 
7:00 p.m. on the 2nd day of April 2019, at the Cumberland County Circuit Court 
Room: 

 
 
Present:  David Meinhard, District 4, Chairman 

Parker Wheeler, District 5, Vice-Chairman 
William F. Osl, Jr., District 1 
Lloyd Banks, Jr., District 2  
Kevin Ingle, District 3  

   Vivian Giles, County Administrator | Attorney  
Nicci Edmondston, Assistant County Administrator 
JP Duncan, Zoning Administrator 

 
Absent:  None 

 
 

1. Call	to	Order	
	

The Chairman called the meeting to order. 
 

2. Welcome	and	Pledge	of	Allegiance	
	

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Chairman. 
 

3. Roll	Call	
	
County Administrator, Vivian Giles, called the roll. 

 
4. Approval	of	Agenda	

	
On a motion by Supervisor Ingle and carried unanimously, 

the Board approved the amended Agenda as presented: 
 
 
 

117



040219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 2 of 3 
 

 

 

 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – aye 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

5.  Public	Hearings	
	

County Administrator, Vivian Giles, gave a presentation to 
the Board and all those in attendance regarding the proposed 
2019-2020 Budget, 2019 tax rates, and the 2019-20 thru 2023-24 
Capital Improvements Program.  A copy of the presentation is in 
the official Board file.   
 
a. Proposed 2019 tax rates 
 

 The Chairman opened the public hearing.  With no 
citizens signed up to speak, the Chairman then closed the 
public hearing.  

 
b. FY 2019-20 Budget 
 

The Chairman opened the public hearing.  Supervisor 
Wheeler proposed an additional two percent increase for 
Sheriff’s Deputies.  Chairman Meinhard proposed to 
increase the contribution to Prince Edward Rescue Squad to 
$50,000 as they requested. With no citizens signed up to 
speak, the Chairman then closed the public hearing. 

 
c. CIP FY2019-20 thru 2023-24 

  
 The Chairman opened the public hearing.  Supervisor 
Osl stated that he would like to see the Cumberland 
Elementary School flooring replaced, and the Social Services 
parking lot paved.    It was the consensus of the Board to 
direct staff to issue a request for proposals to replace the 
flooring at the Cumberland County Elementary School. 
 

118



040219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 3 of 3 
 

 

 

 

6. Adjourn	–		
	

On a motion by Supervisor Wheeler and carried 
unanimously, the Board adjourned the meeting until the next 
regular meeting of the Board on Tuesday, April 9, 2019, to be held 
at 7:00 p.m. in the Court Room A of the Cumberland Courthouse: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – aye 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye	

	
	

				_______________________________________	
       David Meinhard, Chairman 

 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Vivian Giles, County Administrator/County Attorney 

119



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 1 of 17 
 

 

 

 

At a meeting of the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors held at 
7:00 p.m. on the 9th day of April 2019, at the Cumberland County Circuit Court 
Room: 

 
 
Present:  David Meinhard, District 4, Chairman 

Parker Wheeler, District 5, Vice-Chairman 
William F. Osl, Jr., District 1 
Kevin Ingle, District 3  

   Vivian Giles, County Administrator | Attorney  
Nicci Edmondston, Assistant County Administrator 
JP Duncan, Zoning Administrator 

 
Absent:  Lloyd Banks, Jr., District 2  
 

 
1. Call	to	Order	

	
The Chairman called the meeting to order. 
 

2. Welcome	and	Pledge	of	Allegiance	
	

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Chairman. 
 

3. Roll	Call	
	
County Administrator, Vivian Giles, called the roll. 

 
4. Approval	of	Agenda	

	
On a motion by Supervisor Osl and carried unanimously, the 

Board approved the amended Agenda as presented: 
 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

120



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 2 of 17 
 

 

 

 

 
5. State	and	Local	Department/Agencies	

	
a) Dr. Amy Griffin, Superintendent of Cumberland County 

Public Schools 
 

Dr. Griffin gave the following report to the Board: 
 

 The Cumberland HOSA program will host a blood 
drive on April 23, 2019 

 Kindergarten registration will take place on April 18, 
2019 

 5th grade orientation is April 17, 2019 
 April is Military Child appreciation month 
 CHS seniors are hosting an art show on April 11, 2019 
 Prom is April 13, 2019 
 Ward Burton with the Wildlife Foundation visited 

schools April 9, 2019 
 

b) VDOT 
 

There were no VDOT representatives present. 
 

6. Public	Hearing	Notices/Set	Public	Hearings	
 
N/A 
 

7. Public	Hearings 
	
a. CA 19-01 Noise Ordinance 
 

County Administrator and County Attorney Vivian Giles, 
informed the Board that the need for a revised ordinance came 
from the outcry of the citizens, as the previous ordinance was 
considered unenforceable.  The draft ordinance provided to the 

121



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 3 of 17 
 

 

 

 

Board was made in collaboration with the Sheriff’s Office and 
Commonwealth Attorney’s Office.  
 
 The Chairman opened the public hearing.  Ms. Carol Miller 
stated that loud vehicles are a problem.  Mrs. Patty Pedrick raised 
a concern that the proposed ordinance doesn’t refer to residential 
property.  Ms. Barbara Speas asked how the proposed ordinance 
is more enforceable than the previous ordinance.  Mr. Tom 
Leatherwood stated he was glad the Board was addressing this 
issue.  Mr. Ron Tavernier stated that jake brakes from the landfill 
trucks will be loud and should be considered a prohibited noise.  
Ms. Nicole Patterson stated that her neighbor runs a generator 24 
hours a day and the noise needs to stop. 
 

On a motion by Supervisor Wheeler, and carried by the 
following vote, the Board approved CA 19-01 Noise Ordinance 
with 2 suggested edits: 
 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

 
Chapter	34		 ENVIRONMENT 
 
ARTICLE I. -  IN GENERAL 
 
ARTICLE II. -  EROSION AND SEDIMENT CONTROL 
 
ARTICLE III. - LAND APPLICATION OF BIOSOLIDS 
 
 
 
ARTICLE	I.	 IN	GENERAL	
 
Sec. 34-1. Noise 
Sec. 34-2. Disposition of liquid pollutants 
Sec. 34-3 – 34-30. Reserved. 
 
 

122



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 4 of 17 
 

 

 

 

Sec. 34-1. Short title. 
  

This article shall be known as the “Noise Ordinance” of Cumberland County. 
 
Sec. 34-2. Policy. 
  

At certain levels, noise can be detrimental to the health, welfare, safety, peace, and 
quality of life of the citizens of Cumberland County, and in the public interest, noise should 
be controlled. Therefore, it is hereby declared to be in the public policy of the county to 
promote an environment for its citizens free from noise that jeopardizes their health or 
welfare or degrades the quality of life. 
 
Sec. 34-3. Definitions. 
  

The following words and phrases, when used in this Article I, shall have the meaning 
assigned to them in this section. 
 
 Dwelling	unit means one (1) or more rooms arranged, designed, or intended to be 
occupied as separate living quarters by one (1) or more persons and including permanent 
provisions for living, sleeping, eating, cooking, and sanitation. 
 
 Emergency	work means work made necessary to restore property to a safe condition 
following a public calamity, or work required to protect persons or property from 
immediate exposure to danger, including work performed by public service companies 
when emergency inspection, repair, or facilities or restoration of services is required for 
the immediate health, safety, or welfare of the community. 
 
 Motor	vehicle means the following self-propelled vehicles:  passenger cars, trucks, 
truck-trailers, semitrailers, campers, motor boats, racing vehicles, and any motorcycles 
(including, but not limited to, motor scooters, mini-bikes, all-terrain vehicles, and three-
wheelers) as defined in the Code of Virginia § 46.2-100. 
 

Noise or noise	disturbance means any sound which (a) endangers or injures the 
safety or health of any person; (b) causes or tends to cause an adverse psychological or 
physiological effect on any person; or (c) negatively impacts the value of personal or real 
property. 

 
Owner means the person owning, controlling, or possessing land, premises, or 

personalty. 
 

123



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 5 of 17 
 

 

 

 

Person means any individual, corporation, cooperative partnership, firm, 
association, trust, estate, private institution, group, agency, or any legal successor, 
representative, agent, or agency thereof. 

 
Plainly	audible means any sound that can be detected by a person using his or her 

unaided hearing faculties. 
 
Public	property means any real property owned or controlled by Cumberland 

County or any other governmental entity. 
 
Sound means an oscillation in pressure, particle displacement, particle velocity, or 

other physical parameter, in a medium with internal forces that cause compression and 
rarefaction of that medium, and which propagates at finite speed.  The description of sound 
may include any characteristic of such sound including duration, intensity, and frequency. 

 
Sound‐amplifying	equipment means any machine, device, or equipment for the 

amplification of the human voice, music, or other sound as defined herein.  This term shall 
not include warning devices on authorized emergency vehicles or horns or other warning 
devices on other vehicles used only for traffic-safety purposes. 
 
Sec. 34-4. Prohibited Sounds. 

 
(1) No person shall make, continue, or cause to be made, continued, or permitted any 

noise disturbance wherein the sound is plainly audible at a distance of fifty (50) feet 
or more from the property boundary line of the lot containing the source of the 
sound, or, where dwelling units adjoin, wherein the sound is plainly audible through 
partitions common to two (2) dwelling units within a building unless such noise is 
permitted in section 34-7 below.   

(2) No person shall play, or permit the playing of, any device to play music or amplify 
sound within a motor vehicle and which is plainly audible from outside the motor 
vehicle at a distance of fifty (50) feet or more from the vehicle. 

 
 
Sec. 34-5. Exceptions from article. 
 
The provisions of this Article I do not apply to the following: 
 
(1) Sound generated for the purpose of alerting persons to the existence of an 

emergency, the emission of sound in the performance of emergency work, and the 
emission of sound necessary for the protection or preservation of property or the 
health, safety, life, or limb of any person, including, but not limited to, sirens, loud 

124



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 6 of 17 
 

 

 

 

speakers, emergency communications equipment, radios in public safety vehicles, 
motor vehicle alarms, and other security devices. 

(2) Sound generated from any bona fide agricultural activity, including, but not limited 
to, sounds generated by animals which constitute a part of the agricultural activity. 

(3) Sound generated during any lawful and bona fide hunting or shooting activity so 
long as the sound is not injurious to any lawful and bona fide business or 
agricultural activity.  

(4) Sound generated by an animal when the sound is due to the harassment of, or injury 
to, the animal or due to the trespass upon the premises where the animal is located. 

(5) Sound generated from government-sponsored or school-sponsored athletic, 
academic, or recreational events. 

(6) Sound generated by activities which are an official or approved part of the Patriot 
Day Festival. 

(7) Sound generated by land uses which have been granted a permit by the Cumberland 
County Board of Supervisors, including, but not limited to, conditional use zoning 
permits and festival permits. 

(8) Sound generated in commercial and industrial use districts which is necessary and 
incidental to the uses permitted therein. 

(9) Sound or noise which is necessary for the maintenance or construction of roads, 
highways, and buildings between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 

(10) Sound or noise which is necessary for emergency work on roads, highways, and 
buildings. 

(11) Sound or noise generated in the repairing, rebuilding, or modifying of any motor 
vehicle or other mechanical device between the hours of 7:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 

(12) Sound or noise generated for the collection of trash or refuse between the hours of 
6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 

(13) Sound or noise generated in connection with lawn care, leaf removal, gardening, 
tree maintenance or removal, or other landscaping, lawn, or timbering activities 
between the hours of 6:00 a.m. and 9:00 p.m. 

(14) Sounds generated by airplanes and trains. 
(15) Sounds generated by motor vehicles with factory installed mufflers or the 

equivalent. 
(16) Sound or noise generated as a part of religious or political services, observations, or 

gatherings, or as a part of other activities protected by the First Amendment to the 
United States Constitution. 

(17) Sound or noise generated as a part of any military activities of the Commonwealth of 
Virginia or of the United States of America. 

(18) Sound generated where the regulation of noise has been preempted by federal law. 
 

Sec. 34-6. Undue hardship variances. 
 

125



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 7 of 17 
 

 

 

 

(1) Any person responsible for noise may apply to the Board of Supervisors for a 
variance or partial variance from the provisions in this article. The Board of 
Supervisors may grant such variance or partial variance if they find that: 
 
(a) The noise does not endanger the public health, safety, or welfare; or 
(b) Compliance with the provisions of this article from which variance is sought 

would produce serious hardship without producing equal or greater benefit 
to the public. 

 
(2) In determining whether to grant such variance, the Board of Supervisors shall 

consider the time of day the noise will occur, the duration of the noise, whether the 
noise is intermittent or continuous, the extensiveness of the noise, the technical and 
economic feasibility of bringing the noise into conformance with this article, and 
such other matters as are reasonably related to the impact of the noise on the 
health, safety, and welfare of the community and the degree of hardship which may 
result from the enforcement of the provisions of this Article I. 
 

(3) No variance or partial variance issued pursuant to this Article I shall be granted for a 
period to exceed one (1) year, but any such variance or partial variance may be 
renewed for like periods if the Board of Supervisors shall find such renewal is 
justified after again applying the standards set forth in this Article I.  No renewal 
shall be granted except upon application thereof. 

 
Sec. 34-7. Penalties. 
  
 A violation of any provision of this article constitutes a misdemeanor on the 
following schedule: 
 
(1) First violation: class 4 misdemeanor. 
(2) Second violation within twelve (12) months of the first violation (“twelve month 

period”): class 3 misdemeanor. 
(3) Third violation within the twelve-month period: class 2 misdemeanor. 
(4) Fourth and subsequent violations within the twelve-month period: class 1 

misdemeanor. 
 

Each separate act on the part of the person violating this article shall be deemed a 
separate offense, and each day a violation is permitted to continue unabated constitutes a 
separate offense.  Criminal enforcement against a person violating this article shall not be a 
bar against, or a prerequisite for, taking any other action permitted by this Code or the 
Code of Virginia to abate the violation. 

 
 

126



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 8 of 17 
 

 

 

 

8. County	Attorney/County	Administrator	Report	
	
a) Consent Agenda 

1) Approval of Bills for March 2019 and April 2019.  
Ratified bills for March 13, 2019 to April 8, 2019 of 
warrants total $757,331.42 with check numbers 
ranging from 79360-79514.  Ratified bills consist of 
$536,825.19 Accounts Payable and $220,506.23 
Payroll. 

2) Approval of Minutes – March 12, 2019  
 
On a motion by Supervisor Osl and carried unanimously, the 

Board approved the consent agenda as presented: 
 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

 
b) Adopt calendar year 2019 tax rates 

 
A motion was made by Supervisor Wheeler to 

approve the tax rates as presented.  Supervisor Meinhard 
then made a substitute motion to reduce the real estate and 
personal property tax rates by $0.05.  This motion failed by 
the following vote: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – nay   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – nay    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – nay 

 
The original motion by Supervisor Wheeler to 

approve the tax rates as presented, passed by the following 
vote: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – nay 

127



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 9 of 17 
 

 

 

 

  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

Levy                  2019 Adopted Levy 
Real Estate & Manufactured Homes                $   .78 
Personal Property                         $ 4.50 
Personal Property – Emergency Services              $ 4.50     
Personal Property – Disabled Veterans                 $   .01          
Airplanes                               $   .50   

  Machinery & Tools                   $ 3.75   
  Heavy Construction Machinery                            $ 3.75     

Public Service Corporations                          $   .78     

 
 

c) Adopt FY 2019-20 Budget 
 

On a motion by Supervisor Wheeler, and carried by 
the following vote, the Board adopted the FYE20 Budget as 
presented including an additional 2% raise for Sheriff’s 
Deputies for a total of 5%: 
 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – nay 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

 
 

d) Adopt CIP FY 2019-20 thru 2023-24 
 

On a motion by Supervisor Ingle and carried by the 
following vote, the Board approved the Capital 
Improvement Program for FY 2019-20 thru 2023-24: 
 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – nay 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

 
e) DSS Board Appointment 

128



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 10 of 17 
 

 

 

 

 
On a motion by Supervisor Wheeler, and carried by 

the following vote, the Board appointed Mr. Michael Ross to 
the Social Services Board to fill the unexpired term of Susan 
Oertel beginning June 1, 2019 and ending June 30, 2022: 
 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

f) Appointments needed 
 

County Administrator, Vivian Giles, informed the 
Board that volunteers are needed to fill 1 vacancy on the 
VASAP Board of Directors, and 2 vacancies on the 
Workforce Development Board of Directors.  No action was 
taken at this time. 

 
9. Finance	Director’s	Report	

 
a) Monthly budget Report 

 
There was no discussion regarding the monthly 

budget report. 
 

b) Supplemental appropriation request from Social Services  
 

On a motion by Supervisors Osl and carried 
unanimously, the Board approved a supplemental 
appropriation in the amount of $205,798.93, for the 
Department of Social Services which include no additional 
local funds: 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

129



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 11 of 17 
 

 

 

 

 

10. Planning	Director’s	Report	
 

a) Planning Project Update 
 
 There was no discussion regarding this item. 
 

  b) Set public hearing for CA 18-04 Setbacks and road frontage 
  

On a motion by Supervisor Meinhard and carried 
unanimously, the Board set CA 18-04 Setbacks and road 
frontage for public hearing on May 14, 2019: 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 
 
 
 
  c) Set public hearing for CUP 19-02 Rt. 606 Truck & Auto 
 

On a motion by Supervisor Meinhard, and carried 
unanimously, the Board set a public hearing for CUP 19-02 
Rt. 606 Truck & Auto for May 14, 2019: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 
  d) Set public hearing for CUP 19-03 Timber Creek Event Barn 
 

On a motion by Supervisor Meinhard, and carried 
unanimously, the Board set a public hearing for CUP 19-03 
Timber Creek Event Barn for May 14, 2019: 

 

130



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 12 of 17 
 

 

 

 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 
  e) Set public hearing for CUP 19-04 Northfield Plantation 

 
On a motion by Supervisor Meinhard, and carried 

unanimously, the Board set a public hearing for CUP 19-04 
Northfield Plantation for May 14, 2019: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

f) Set public hearing for REZ 19-01 Hamilton Dance Studio 
 

On a motion by Supervisor Meinhard and carried 
unanimously, the Board set a public hearing for REZ 19-01 
Hamilton Dance Studio for May 19, 2019: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 

 
g) Set public hearing for REZ 19-02 Price Right Mini Storage 

 
On a motion by Supervisor Meinhard and carried 

unanimously, the Board set a public hearing for REZ 19-02 
Price Right Mini Storage for May 14, 2019: 
 

Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

11. Old	Business	
	

131



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 13 of 17 
 

 

 

 

Supervisor Ingle stated his concern with increasing building 
height restrictions due to fire safety concerns. 

 
12. New	Business	

	
None 

  
13. Public	Comments	

 
Mr. Chris Rankin discussed a 2016 article regarding the 

Waverly landfill leakage contaminating water at a rate of 9 million 
gallons of leachate per month.  He also stated that the county will 
experience problems when Green Ridge opens.   
 

Mrs. Patty Pedrick informed those in attendance that April 
is child abuse awareness month.  Pinwheels were placed in 
various areas around the county by the Woman’s club and 
Commonwealth’s Attorney.  The County needs a code 
enforcement officer.  The Land Use Program needs to be repealed.  
The county looses $600,000-$700,000 each year under this 
program.   
 

Mr. Ron Tavernier asked the Board how can we be poor and 
still give a three percent raise to employees?  The Waverly landfill 
must now haul 3.5 million gallons of leachate per week, that’s 466 
trucks per day.  Green Ridge will store the leachate in tanks and it 
will leak.  Leachate will go to a treatment facility but it will still 
contain contaminants.   

 
Mrs. Betty Myers stated that the rezoning of parcels of the 

Mill Race Subdivision was wrong.  She also stated that many 
citizens who signed the property protection plan under the Host 
Agreement felt threatened.  Those who signed are here in spirit.  
Supervisor Ingle suggested a study to be done on Route 60 near 
Southworth.  Has this study been done? 
 

132



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 14 of 17 
 

 

 

 

Mr. William Knoll stated that he is shocked that the county 
still thinks the dump is a good idea.  Also, he asked if we have no 
money, how can we give $50,000 to another county? 

 
Mr. Bernard Pond stated that there is trash on Rt. 600.  He 

states that he and his daughter will pick up the trash themselves 
and bring it to the Board at their next meeting. 
 

14. Supplemental	Information	
 

N/A 
 

15. Board	Member	Comments	
 

Supervisor Osl clarified that the Board has not approved 
$50,000 to another county. 

 
Supervisor Ingle explained that the state mandated a three 

percent increase for employees that are partially funded by state 
and federal money.  The three percent increase across the board 
created a level playing field for employees and ensures that none 
are treated differently.  He also stated that he is still looking into 
reducing the speed limit near the intersection of Route 60 and 
Route 13.  Prince Edward Rescue Squad covers 1/3 of 
Cumberland County, and requested additional funding in the 
amount of $50,000.  Supervisor Ingle stated that he is moving 
forward with cleaning up the county.  He also stated that if 
residents pick up the roadside litter, the county will pick up the 
bags. 

 
Chairman Meinhard thanked those in attendance for coming 

and speaking.  He also stated that he will not seek re-election.  
During his tenure, he has voted his conscience and what was in 
the best interest of Cumberland County. He has been 

 
16. Adjourn	into	Closed	Session	

133



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 15 of 17 
 

 

 

 

	

On a motion by Supervisor Osl and carried, the Board 
entered into closed meeting pursuant to the Virginia Code Section 
set for the below to discuss the subject identified: 

 
 Virginia Code § 2.2-3711.A.1: Personnel; 

Subject: Assignment and reassignment of administrative 
duties 

 Virginia Code § 2.2-3711.A.7: Consultation with Legal; 
Counsel 
Subject: Pending litigation 

 Virginia Code § 2.2-3711.A.5: Discussion of prospective 
business where no previous announcement has been made; 
Subject: Development and occupancy of the Cumberland 
Business Park 
	

17. Reconvene	in	Open	Meeting	

The Board returned to regular meeting on a motion by 
Supervisor Osl.  
 
  A motion was made by Supervisor Osl and adopted by 

the following vote: 
 
    Mr. Osl - aye 
   Mr. Banks – absent 
   Mr. Ingle – aye 
   Mr. Meinhard - aye 
   Mr. Wheeler - aye 
  
 That the following Certification of a Closed Meeting be 

adopted in accordance with The Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act: 

134



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 16 of 17 
 

 

 

 

  
   WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Cumberland 

County has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant 
to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the 
provisions of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and  

  
  WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia 

requires a certification by this Board that such closed 
meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 

  
  NOW,	THEREFORE,	BE	IT	RESOLVED that the Board 

of Supervisors of Cumberland County hereby certifies that, 
to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public 
business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 
requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed 
meeting to which this certification resolution applies, (ii) 
only such public business matters as were identified in the 
motion convening the closed meeting were heard, discussed 
or considered by the Board of Supervisors of Cumberland 
County, and (iii) no action was taken in closed meeting. 

 
18. Additional	Information	

a) Treasurer’s Report 
b) DMV Report 
c) Monthly Building Inspections Report 
d) Approved Planning Commission meeting minutes – February 

25, 2019, and March 11, 2019 
e) Approved EDA meeting minutes – January 22, 2019 

 
 

19. Adjourn	–		
	

On a motion by Supervisor Osl and carried unanimously, the 
Board adjourned the meeting until the next regular meeting of the 
Board scheduled for Tuesday, May 14, 2019, to be held at 7:00 
p.m. in the Court Room A of the Cumberland Courthouse: 

135



031219 BOS 7:00pm  Page 17 of 17 
 

 

 

 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye  Mr. Banks – absent 
  Mr. Ingle – aye  Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye	

	
	

				_______________________________________	
       David Meinhard, Chairman 

 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Vivian Giles, County Administrator/County Attorney 

136



041819 BOS 5pm Page 1 of 4 
 

At a meeting of the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors held at 
7:00 p.m. on the 18th day of April, 2019 at the Circuit Courtroom of the 
Cumberland Courthouse located at 17 Courthouse Circle, Cumberland, 
Virginia: 
 
 Present: William F. Osl, Jr., District 1 

Lloyd Banks, Jr., District 2 
Kevin Ingle, District 3,    

   David Meinhard, District 4, Chairman 
Parker Wheeler, District 5, Vice-Chairman 

   Vivian Seay Giles, County Administrator | County Attorney 
   Nicci Edmondston, Finance Director 
    
 Absent: None 
  
 

1. Call	to	Order	
 

The Chairman called the meeting to order. 
 

2. Welcome	and	Pledge	
 

The Pledge of Allegiance was led by the Chairman. 
 

3. Roll	Call	
 

County Administrator, Vivian Giles, called the roll. 
 

4. Approval	of	Agenda	
 

On a motion by Supervisor Ingle and carried unanimously, 
the Board approved the agenda as presented: 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – aye 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

137



041819 BOS 5pm Page 2 of 4 
 

5. Adjourn	into	Closed	Meeting	
 

On a motion by Supervisor Osl and carried, the Board 
entered into closed meeting pursuant to the Virginia Code Section 
set for the below to discuss the subject identified: 

 Virginia Code § 2.2-3711.A.1: Personnel; 
Subject: Salaries and assignment and reassignment of duties 
in county administration; disciplinary matters of 
administration staff. 
 
 

6. Reconvene	in	Open	Meeting	
 

The Board returned to regular meeting on a motion by 
Supervisor Osl.  
 
  A motion was made by Supervisor Osl and adopted by 

the following vote: 
 
    Mr. Osl - aye 
   Mr. Banks – aye 
   Mr. Ingle – aye 
   Mr. Meinhard - aye 
   Mr. Wheeler - aye 
  
 That the following Certification of a Closed Meeting be 

adopted in accordance with The Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act: 

  
   WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Cumberland 

County has convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant 
to an affirmative recorded vote and in accordance with the 
provisions of The Virginia Freedom of Information Act; and  

  
  WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia 

requires a certification by this Board that such closed 
meeting was conducted in conformity with Virginia law; 

138



041819 BOS 5pm Page 3 of 4 
 

  
  NOW,	THEREFORE,	BE	IT	RESOLVED that the Board 

of Supervisors of Cumberland County hereby certifies that, 
to the best of each member’s knowledge, (i) only public 
business matters lawfully exempted from open meeting 
requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed 
meeting to which this certification resolution applies, and 
(ii) only such public business matters as were identified in 
the motion convening the closed meeting were heard, 
discussed or considered by the Board of Supervisors of 
Cumberland County 

 
7. New	Business	

 
On a motion by Supervisor Wheeler and carried, the Board 

approved the funding of two budget requests with existing 
economic development funds: 

 
 Virginia’s Crossroads request for maintenance of Civil 

Rights in Education Heritage Trail signs (existing Hamilton 
High School and Rosenwald School Cartersville, and new 
sign at the Luther P. Jackson school on Rt. 60) - $600.00 

 Civil War Trail sign at Cumberland Presbyterian Church - 
$200.00 

 
 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – aye 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 

8. Adjourn		
 
On a motion by Supervisor Osl and carried unanimously, the 

Board adjourned the meeting until the next regular meeting of the 
Board to be held on Tuesday, May 14, 2019 at 7:00 p.m. in Circuit 
Courtroom A of the Cumberland Courthouse located at 17 
Courthouse Circle, Cumberland, Virginia: 

 

139



041819 BOS 5pm Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Vote:  Mr. Osl – aye   Mr. Banks – aye 
  Mr. Ingle – aye    Mr. Meinhard – aye 
  Mr. Wheeler – aye 
 
 
       _________________________________________ 
       David Meinhard, Chairman 
 
____________________________________________________________ 
Vivian Giles, County Administrator | County Attorney 

140



 

 

Recommendation 

Ratify the amendments to the Prince Edward County and Cumberland County Solid Waste 

Management Plan (the Plan) that were adopted by the Prince Edward County Board of 

Supervisors on April 9, 2019. 

 

Information 

At the regular meeting of the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors held on January 8, 2019, 

the Board held a required public hearing and approved amendments to the Prince Edward County 

and Cumberland County Solid Waste Management Plan.  The amendments, which constituted 

major plan amendments thereby requiring a public hearing, related primarily to the removal from 

the plan of the proposed Allied/Republic landfill and the replacement of that facility in the Plan 

with the proposed Green Ridge landfill.   

 

At its meeting on April 9, 2019, the Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors approved the 

amendments adopted by the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors at the said January 8, 

2019 meeting, but in addition, the Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors made further 

amendments to the Plan to correctly reflect current operations in that county.  The Prince Edward 

County administrator explained the changes he recommended to that Board as follows: 

 

While we are looking at the plan, I am recommending a few minor amendments 

be made to reflect changes to operating practices that have occurred over the last 

few years. These are (1) Amending Chapter 4 to (a) reflect the County now 

operates 7 convenience centers not 6; (b) that the County no longer recycles any 

glass; (c) that tires and white goods are collected at the convenience sites; (d) 

more landfill cells have been constructed; (e) the County now operates the landfill 

and (f) the County’s fund balance is larger – (2) Amending Chapter 5 to state the 

site life is based on updated data – (3) Amending Chapter 7 to eliminate the 

sentence stating the County plans to open a convenience site in Pamplin. These 

are considered minor plan amendments and do not require a public hearing prior 

to approval by the Board. 

 

Because the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors approved the Plan prior to the 

amendments subsequently made by the Prince Edward County Board of Supervisors, those 

subsequent changes now must be approved by the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors. 

DATE: May 9, 2019 

TO:  Cumberland County Board of Supervisors 

FROM: Vivian Seay Giles 

RE:  Prince Edward County and Cumberland County  

Solid Waste Management Plan Amendments 

141



 
 
 
 

 
       

 
Motion _________________ 

 
Cooper-Jones_____________ 

 
Jones _________________ 

 
Townsend___________ 

Second _________________ Emert____________________ Pride _______________ Wilck_______________ 
 Gilliam____________________ Southall_______________  

 

County of Prince Edward 
Board of Supervisors 

Agenda Summary 

 
Meeting Date: April 9, 2019 
  

Item No.:  
  

Department: County Administration  
  

Staff Contact: W.W. Bartlett  
  

Issue: Solid Waste Management Plan  
  

 
Summary: 
Cumberland County is requesting the Board of Supervisors of Prince Edward County approve 
the amended Prince Edward/Cumberland Solid Waste Management Plan as amended recently by 
Cumberland County (approved at the Board’s February 12, 2019 meeting), Attachment (1).  
Please note that the attached document does not contain any of the appendices because, none of 
those were amended in any way.  The attached document does contain, all of the changes 
approved by t Cumberland County.  The substantive changes are primarily found on pages 13-18 
of the document, though other relevant amendments may be found throughout.  The need to 
amend the document was to remove the Allied/Republic landfill as a solid waste disposal option, 
and to replace that facility with the proposed Green Ridge facility.  The Allied/Republic facility 
will not be constructed.  The company has gone so far as to contact DEQ to surrender their part 
A and part B permits for the construction of the landfill. 
 
In order for the Green Ridge landfill project to proceed, Prince Edward County must 
adopt/approve the amended document.  While Cumberland County had to hold a public hearing 
before approving the amendments Prince Edward does not.  Per section 9 VAC 20-130-130 of 
the Virginia Administrative Code when a Solid Waste Management Plan includes multiple 
localities, the locality submitting a major plan amendment only has to conduct a public hearing 
in the County involved in the major amendment.    
 
While we are looking at the plan, I am recommending a few minor amendments be made to 
reflect changes to operating practices that have occurred over the last few years.  These are (1) 
Amending Chapter 4 to (a) reflect the County now operates 7 convenience centers not 6; (b) that 
the County no longer recycles any glass; (c) that tires and white goods are collected at the 
convenience sites; (d) more landfill cells have been constructed; (e) the County now operates the 
landfill and (f) the County’s fund balance is larger – (2) Amending Chapter 5 to state the site life 
is based on updated data – (3) Amending Chapter 7 to eliminate the sentence stating the County 
plans to open a convenience site in Pamplin.  These are considered minor plan amendments and 
do not require a public hearing prior to approval by the Board. 
 
Attachment: 

1. Proposed Amended Regional Solid Waste Management Plan 
2. 9 VAC 20-130-130 

 

142



 
 
 
 

 
       

 
Motion _________________ 

 
Cooper-Jones_____________ 

 
Jones _________________ 

 
Townsend___________ 

Second _________________ Emert____________________ Pride _______________ Wilck_______________ 
 Gilliam____________________ Southall_______________  

 

County of Prince Edward 
Board of Supervisors 

Agenda Summary 

Recommendation:  
The Board will wish to review the proposed amendments and determine if it wishes to approve the 
plan with the proposed amendments. 
 

143



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AMENDED AND RESTATED 
 

PRINCE EDWARD COUNTY and 

CUMBERLAND COUNTY  
 

SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT PLAN  
 
 
 
 

                                                       
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Originally prepared by:  
Resource International, LTD. 

9560 Kings Charter Drive 
Ashland, VA 23005 

144



TOC-1 

Table of Contents 
 

 
 

Chapter 1    Introduction……………………………………………………………………………………………………...  1 
       
  A.  Background…………………………………………………………………………………………………………  1 
  B.  Purpose……………………………………………………………………………………………………………...  2 
  C.  Scope…………………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  2 
  D.  Pan Development Responsibilities……………………………………………………………………..  3 
  E.  Plan Development & Adoption……………………………………………………………………………  3 
  F.  DEQ Review Process……………………………………………………………………………………………  4 
  G.  Intent to Amend Plan………………………………………………………………………………………….  4 
       
Chapter 2    SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION……………………………………………………………………………….  5 
       
  A.  Existing Developmental Trends……………………………………………………………………………  5 
  B.  Future Development Trends……………………………………………………………………………….  7 
       
Chapter 3    GENERAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES………………………………………………………………………  9 
       
  A.  Goals……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  9 
  B.  Objectives……………………………………………………………………………………………………………  9 
  C.  Milestones…………………………………………………………………………………………………………..  9 
       
Chapter 4    EISTING SOLID WASTE MANGEMENT SYSTEM…………………………………………………….  10 
       
  A.  Prince Edward County…………………………………………………………………………………………  10 
  B.  Cumberland County…………………………………………………………………………………………….  13 
  C.  Solid Waste Management Planning (SWMP) Unit Recycling Rate………………………..  15 
  D.  Collection and Transfer……………………………………………………………………………………….  15 
  E.  Central Archive……………………………………………………………………………………………………  17 
  F.  Recycling Markets……………………………………………………………………………………………….  17 
       
Chapter 5    WASTE GENERATION AND COMPOSITION…………………………………………………………..  19 
       
  A.  Waste Generation……………………………………………………………………………………………….  19 
  B.  Waste Composition…………………………………………………………………………………………….  19 
  C.  Waste Character…………………………………………………………………………………………………  21 
       
Chapter 6    Solid Waste Assessment……………………………………………………………………………………..  22 
       
  A.  Prince Edward County…………………………………………………………………………………………  22 
  B.  Cumberland County…………………………………………………………………………………………….  22 
       
Chapter 7    PREFERRED WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS……………………………………………………..  23 
       
  A.  General……………………………………………………………………………………………………………….  23 
  B.  Prince Edward County……………………………………………………………………………………….  25 
  C.  Cumberland County…………………………………………………………………………………………….  26 

145



TOC-2 

       
Chapter 8    IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES…………………………………………………………………………………..  28 
       
REFERENCES    ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………………………  29 
       
  A.  Publications…………………………………………………………………………………………………………  29 
  B.  Personal Interviews…………………………………………………………………………………………….  30 
       

 
 
 
Appendices     
Appendix A    Excerpts from PPDC Comprehensive Economic Development Strategy 
Appendix B    Resolutions of Plan Approval 
Appendix C    Public Hearing 
Appendix D    Future Capital Outlays for Cell Construction and Closures 
Appendix E    Demographics References 
Appendix F    Recycling Reports 
Appendix G    Comprehensive List of Solid Waste Disposal Facilities in the Planning Region 
Appendix H    Documentation of Proposed New Disposal Facility Inclusion 
Appendix I    DEQ Approval Letter of Original Solid Waste Management Plan 

146



1 

 
CHAPTER 1 -INTRODUCTION  
 
 A.  Background 

 
This Solid Waste Management Plan represents a revision of the original Regional 
Solid Waste Management Plan, dated July 1, 1991 and subsequent update of that 
regional plan on July 1, 1997.  The original plan and the subsequent update were 
prepared by the Piedmont Planning District Commission (PPDC).  This plan is a 
"sub-regional" plan involving two of the six counties that were sponsors of the 
previous planning efforts: Prince Edward County and Cumberland County. 

 
This sub-regional approach was the culmination of several meetings of the Piedmont 
Planning District Commission and a Solid Waste Management Planning Forum.  All 
of these meetings were open to the public for comments and input.  A detailed 
account of each of these meetings is presented in Appendix A.  An overview of each 
of these meetings is provided below: 

 
At the April3, 2003 full commission meeting, two representatives of the Virginia 
Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) made a presentation regarding the 
requirements of the Regulations for Solid Waste Management Planning, 
Amendment 1. During the discussion that ensued, several people questioned 
whether they could provide an update to the old plan. The DEQ response was that 
the localities can review their old plan, bring it up to date, and submit it to the DEQ. 
Several commissioners expressed concern that the update of the solid waste plan 
represented an unfunded mandate. The discussion concluded with the consensus of 
the Commissioners being to take the regional approach for the preparation of the 
Solid Waste Management Plan. 

 
On April1 17, 2003, the PPDC held an open forum pertaining to Solid Waste 
Management Planning for the region. As a result of the discussions held 
regarding the three approaches identified by PPDC staff: 

 
1)  Individual plans for each jurisdiction 

 
2)  Mini-Regional Plans 

 
3)  Regional Plan 

 
It was determined that the majority of the localities were leaning towards Options 
1 and 2. PPDC, therefore, concluded that there was no consensus for the 
development of a regional solid waste plan. 

147



2 

 

At the May 1, 2003 full commission meeting, the Solid Waste Management Plan 
status was a major agenda item with a status report from the Executive Director that 
provided the results of the April 17, 2003 solid waste planning forum and a 
recommendation that PPDC suspend further consideration of the development of 
a regional plan, but be prepared to provide technical assistance to interested 
localities regarding demographic statistical data. The matter was tabled by the 
PPDC for further discussion at a subsequent meeting. 

 
At the June 5, 2003 full commission meeting, an update of the Solid Waste 
Management Plan status was again provided by the Executive Director of the PPDC. 
Only one other locality had sent a letter to PPDC regarding its preference regarding 
the three options (approaches) to the development of a solid waste management plan. 
It was reported that this did not change the weighted preference of options chosen 
and, therefore, it was determined that there remained no consensus for a regional 
Solid Waste Management Plan. 

 
As a consequence of these meetings and the stated preferences of a majority of the 
localities within the PPDC, Prince Edward County and Cumberland County decided 
to develop a sub-regional plan that would be used to guide the management of the 
solid wastes generated within their respective jurisdictions for the duration of the 20-
year planning period. 

 
B.  Purpose 

 
The Solid Waste Management Plan (Plan) for Prince Edward and Cumberland 
Counties has been prepared to meet the requirements and provisions of the 
Regulations for Solid Waste Management Planning (9 VAC 20-130-10 et seq., 
Amendment 1).  This sub-regional plan is the outgrowth of the PPDC meetings 
highlighted above. The Plan will: 

 
• describe the existing solid waste management infrastructure of the two counties; 
• define future solid waste management needs; and 
• describe the preferred waste management systems. 

 
C.  Scope 

 
The Plan includes discussions on the following elements of the solid waste 
management spectrum for the municipal solid waste (MSW) generated within the 
two counties: 

 
• generation; 
•  collections; 

148



3 

 
• recycling; and 
• disposal 

 
The plan considers the elements of the Solid Waste Management Hierarchy as 
they relate, in a practical manner, to the relevant demographic characteristics of 
the service area. The hierarchy ranks methods of solid waste management from 
most preferred to least preferred as follows: 

 

 

• Source Reduction 
• Reuse 
• Recycling 
• Resource Recovery (Waste - to- Energy) 
• Incineration 
• Landfilling 

 
The Plan does not address infectious medical wastes and other items not normally 
considered as MSW such as: 

 

 

• radioactive wastes; 
• sewage sludges and biosolids; 
• industrial wastes; and 
• hazardous wastes (as defined by the Virginia Hazardous Waste Management 

Regulations) 
 

D. Plan Development Responsibilities 
 

The Plan has been developed by Prince Edward County in collaboration with 
Cumberland County. Prince Edward County has retained the services of Resource 
International, Ltd., to assist it in developing the sub-regional plan and providing 
technical input. 

 
E.  Plan Development and Adoption 

 
The Plan was developed in the second quarter of calendar year (CY) 2004.  It was 
formally adopted early during the third quarter of CY 2004. Copies of the 
resolutions of Plan approval from each of the two jurisdictions are included as 
Appendix B. A public hearing on the Plan was held on June 28, 2004, at the Prince 
Edward County Courthouse.  The results of the public hearing are included in 
Appendix C. A public hearing on the Plan was conducted on July 13, 2004 at the 
Cumberland County Courthouse.  The results of the public hearing are included in 
Appendix C. The Plan was submitted to the Virginia Department of Environmental 
Quality (VDEQ) on July 1, 2004, with the resolutions and public 

149



4 

 
hearing results submitted in follow-up correspondence to the VDEQ. 

 
F.  DEQ Review Process 

 
Correspondence from the DEQ dated November 12,2004 was received on or 
about November 22,2004 to which was attached DEQ's "Waste Management 
Plan Completeness Review" checklist.  In response to the completeness review 
comments, the Prince Edward County and Cumberland County Solid Waste 
Management Plan was revised and re-submitted to the DEQ on February 10, 
2005. 

 
In a letter dated June 28, 2006, the DEQ submitted its Technical Review Comments 
regarding the Prince Edward County and Cumberland County Solid Waste 
Management Plan. Responses to the Technical Review Comments were developed 
by Resource International and submitted to DEQ on August 31, 2006. On December 
7, 2006, DEQ requested that the Plan include all solid waste facilities currently 
within Prince Edward and Cumberland Counties as they appear in DEQ's database.  
This listing of active, inactive, and closed facilities is incorporated as Appendix G.  
Appendix I is a copy of the DEQ approval letter of the "original" Solid Waste 
Management Plan. 

 
G.  Intent to Amend Plan 

 
The Plan is currently being amended to reflect preliminary information about a 
planned municipal waste landfill facility to be located in Cumberland County. 
Information regarding existing facilities is already incorporated into this Plan. 
Addition of the planned facility to the Plan will require a major amendment to the 
current Plan and requires public participation.  Documentation from the public 
participation/hearings, responses to citizen comments and the final outcome of the 
anticipated board resolution process will be included in Appendix H.  Additional or 
updated information about the planned facility that becomes available will be 
incorporated into the Plan prior to the VADEQ's final review and acceptance of the 
Amended Plan. 

150



5 

TABLE 1 
UNEMPLOYMENT RATES/ANNUAL AVERAGES 

 

JURISDICTION 1991 1995 2001 
 

2002 
 

Cumberland County 7.4% 2.6% 2.4% 2.9% 
 

Prince Edward County 10.5% 5.3% 3.9% 4.9% 
 

Virginia 5.8% 4.5% 3.6% 4.1% 

 
CHAPTER 2 -SERVICE AREA DESCRIPTION 

 
The service area encompassed within the Plan is shown graphically in Figure 1. 

 
A. Existing Development Trends 

 
The information within this Section (2.A) and the following section (2.B) has been 
primarily derived from the PPDC 2003 Comprehensive Economic Development 
Strategy.  The planning district within which Prince Edward and Cumberland 
County are a part of is described as "one of the most economically challenged 
regions in the State of Virginia". Both Prince Edward County and Cumberland 
County are largely rural with few large industries and manufacturing facilities.  
Approximately 71% of the Prince Edward County work force finds employment 
within the County.  This compares with 29% for Cumberland 
County.  Unemployment rates for the two counties from the Virginia Employment 
Commission (VEC) indicates a slight increase in unemployment for both counties 
between 2001 and 2002.  Cumberland County's unemployment rate increased 
from about 2.4% to 2.9% during this period and Prince Edward County's increased 
from about 3.9% to 4.9%.  Overall, in the State of Virginia, the rates increased from 
about 3.6% to 4.1%. Table 1 is an update of Table 3 that appeared in the July 1, 
1997 Solid Waste Plan prepared by the PPDC. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Median household income has increased as illustrated in Table 2, but continues to 
trail significantly the median for the State as shown in Table 2. 

 

TABLE2 
MEDIAN HOUSEHOLD INCOME - 1970-2000 

 

JURISDICTION 
 

1970 
 

1980 1990  

2000 
 

Cumberland County $4,606 $11,398 $22,115 $32,000 ± 
 

Prince Edward County $2,482 $12,295 $21,395 $31,000 ± 
 

Virginia $7,176 $17,475 $33,328 $47,000 ± 

151



 

 
 

 
 

152



7 

 
This scarcity of higher paying salaries continues to impact in a negative manner, a 
locality's or region's primary source of income- its tax base.  This in turn, often 
inhibits growth in the locality or region because investments in needed 
infrastructures do not happen or are slow to occur.  This situation is aggravated 
where unemployment rates are elevated.  As can be seen from the previous Table, 
the unemployment rate for Prince Edward County remains above the state-wide 
average. 

 
Environmentally-sound Solid Waste Management within the two counties remains a 
significant public function that demands a continuing allocation of resources. Along 
with highways, railroads, water, wastewater, schools and healthcare providers, well 
run and funded waste management facilities are an attraction to industrial, 
commercial, and residential development. 

 
B.  Future Development Trends 

 
It can be seen from review of Tables 1 and 2, that unemployment within 
Cumberland County and Prince Edward County has been relatively steady since 
1995.  Whether this trend continues depends upon a number of factors, some of 
which are beyond the control or influence of Prince Edward and Cumberland 
Counties (Federal environmental regulations and tax codes; outsourcing; fossil 
fuel supplies, etc.). 

 
However, population projections (provided by the Virginia Employment 
Commission) that span the period of this Plan and then some, show a continued 
modest increase in the population of both Prince Edward and Cumberland 
Counties over the next several decades (as can be seen from Table 3). 

 
TABLE3 

POPULATION HISTORY AND PROJECTIONS 

 
 

1990 
 

2000 
 

2010 
 

2020 
 

2030 
 

Cumberland County 
 

7,825 
 

9,017 
 

10,100 
 

11,000 
 

11,800 
 

Prince Edward County 
 

17,320 
 

19,720 
 

22,500 
 

24,900 
 

27,200 
 

Total for Planning 
Area 

 

25,145 
 

28,737 
 

32,600 
 

35,900 
 

39,000 

 

 
 

The percent increase in the total population for the 20 year period 2000 to 2020 is 
projected to be 24.9%.  That fraction of the infrastructure dealing with solid waste 
management and disposal must be in place to accommodate the needs associated 

153



8 

 
with this forecast of the population within the planning area. In a subsequent 
chapter we will see that, indeed, it does. 

 
Although there has been a service decline noted in the railroad section of the 
transportation infrastructure serving the planning area, the highway infrastructure 
with east-west Route 60 (Cumberland County), east-west Route 460 (Prince 
Edward County) and the north-south Route 15 corridors remain strong with good 
development potential associated with their current design. 

 
With the reasonable possibility that Route 60 will be improved to a four-lane 
corridor through Cumberland County; Route 15 would likewise be improved to a 
four-lane corridor; and Route 460/360 be incorporated in a limited access interstate 
style system connecting the east coast to the mid-west (the TransAmerica Corridor) 
significant industrial, commercial, and residential development could occur during 
the latter half of the planning period. 

154



9 

 
CHAPTER 3- GENERAL GOALS AND OBJECTIVES 
 

A.  Goals 
 

These remain the same as those espoused in the 1997 Solid Waste Management 
Plan Update for Solid Waste District 14 prepared by the Piedmont Planning 
District Commission. 

 
•  Solid Waste Management and disposal to be carried out in accordance with 

pertinent Federal, State, and Local plans, regulations and land use policies 
such that protection of the natural environment and the health and wellbeing 
of the public is achieved.  This is to be accomplished in such a manner that 
the natural assets of Prince Edward and Cumberland Counties (its soil, water 
and air) are utilized wisely for the common good of the public. 

 
•  Develop, operate, and maintain solid waste management facilities and 

programs in an efficient and timely fashion to meet the solid waste 
management needs of the jurisdictions covered by this plan. 

 

 
 

B. Objectives 
 

 

• Establish and maintain an on-going planning, Plan amendment, and Plan 
implementation process to meet the future solid waste management needs of 
Prince Edward and Cumberland Counties. 

 
• Provide adequate flexibility in the Plan to provide for unforeseen needs, 

events, or situations; utilization of new facilities that may come on-line; and 
incorporation of new technologies. 

 
• Establish an integrated waste management strategy focusing on the 

recycling and landfilling elements of the solid waste management 
hierarchy. 

 

 

• Continue to strive to meet or exceed state mandated recycling rate of 15% 
for rural localities. 

 
C.  Milestones 

 
Milestones for the development of disposal cells at the Prince Edward County 
Landfill and milestones for phased closures are presented in Appendix D. 

155



10 

 
CHAPTER 4- EXISTING SOLID WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 

 

 
 

Figure 2 shows the existing active solid waste management sites within or near the Plan 
area. The only landfill within the Plan area is the Prince Edward County Landfill.  There is 
one existing private regional landfill within Amelia County which is adjacent to both 
Prince Edward County and Cumberland County to the east. 

 
A.  Prince Edward County 

 
Collection of municipal solid wastes generated within the County is left up to the 
individual homeowner or business. The generator may elect to contract with a 
private hauler to remove wastes from the premises, or may elect transporting the 
wastes to one of  seven public convenience centers that are located throughout the 
County.  From these facilities the County transports the wastes to the County 
Landfill for disposal. 

 
Recycling containers are located at each of the public convenience centers. 
Materials collected for recycling include, plastics, newsprint, and cardboard. Small 
truck and passenger car tires and white goods are collected at these l. Recycled 
materials are processed locally by a private firm.  Except within the Town of 
Farmville, it is up to the generators to take their recyclables to these facilities.  The 
Town of Farmville provides curbside pick-up of plastics, newsprint,. A private firm 
in the area picks up cardboard from some businesses within the County. For 
calendar year (CY) 2003, Prince Edward County realized a recycling rate of 
13.24%.  For CY 2005 it was 20.4%.  This represents an increase of 54.1% over the 
CY 2003 recycling rate. 

 
There currently are no solid waste treatment programs within Prince Edward 
County as that term is defined in the VSWMR. There are currently no plans to 
implement any such programs in the future. If there are advances in solid waste 
management technology that would result in plans to implement given treatment 
processes, the Solid Waste Management Plan will be revised to reflect the change 
or changes. 

 
Prince Edward County currently utilizes inmate work crews, overseen by VDOC 
and scheduled by VDOT, to keep primary and some secondary highways clear of 
litter. In addition, individuals who receive community service sentences are 
assigned to other secondary roads within the County to pick-up litter. These 
individuals usually have to pick up a certain amount of trash, (measured in filled 
bags) to successfully complete their sentences. 

 
 
 

156



 

 
 
 

157



12 

In the future, Prince Edward County plans to augment these two programs with an 
"Assign-a-Highway" program. In this program, judges will assign a stretch or 
segment of a highway to individuals who are on probation or parole. The individuals 
would be responsible for periodically picking up litter along the assigned highway 
during the time the court oversees them.  Prince Edward County operates its own 
Subtitle D Landfill. It constructed its  fifth lined cell, Cell  E in 
the Summer of 2017. The capital costs associated with the continued operation of 
the landfill as related to new disposal cell construction and partial closures are 
shown in Appendix D. 

 
The Prince Edward County Sanitary Landfill is located off of State Route 648 in 
Prince Edward.  The nearby counties of Buckingham and Cumberland also have 
used the facility.  The landfill site encompasses approximately 99± acres.  In 2018 
the County began operating the landfill with its own employees after the private firm 
contracted to operate the landfill expressed its desire to cease operations. 

 
Only municipal solid waste acceptable for disposal at sanitary landfills are disposed 
of at the facility.  No medical, infectious, or hazardous waste are accepted at this 
facility.  Animal carcasses, such as cats, dogs, and farm animals, are accepted. 

 
Brush and certain yard wastes are burned at the landfill to reduce the volume of solid 
waste placed in disposal cells. The County reuses waste materials such as cinder 
blocks, asphalt and brick for access roads and ramps at the landfill.  Special 
programs that the County, periodically engages in includes property clean-ups 
with trustees from the Piedmont Regional Jail; public education on recycling 
within the County through pamphlets available from the County Administrator's 
Office; and the clean-up of illegal tire dump sites. 

 
Prince Edward County presently has a landfill capital fund that takes in 
approximately $300,000 annually. In the past, General Fund revenues have been 
used to supplement the landfill capital fund as needed. General Fund revenues also 
have been used to fund other County solid waste management and recycling 
programs. General fund revenues will continue to be used to supplement future 
capital expenditures not fully covered by the landfill capital fund during the 
planning period. Prince Edward County maintains a fund 
balance of between $– 8-10 million so there should be sufficient monies available 
for all future solid waste management projects undertaken during the planning 
period. 

158



13 

 
B. Cumberland County 

 
Cumberland County closed its three landfills in the mid-nineteen nineties and 
constructed public convenience centers at each of the three sites. The Hamilton 
Landfill was closed in August 1994; the Madison Landfill in July 1995; and the 
Randolph Landfill in June 1997.  Wastes are transported from these facilities to a 
recycling facility pursuant to the County’s contract with Container Rentals LLC. 
The convenience centers are manned and open Monday through Sunday.  It is up to 
the waste generator to get the waste from his/her premises to the public 
convenience centers.  The approximate location of each of these facilities is shown 
on Figure 2. 

 
Recycling containers are located at each of the public convenience centers. Materials 
collected for recycling include glass containers (all colors), aluminum cans, plastics 
(#1 and #2), cardboard, newsprint, mixed papers, tires (at Madison) and white 
goods.  Yard waste and brush also are collected at the Madison Facility. Recycled 
materials are collected and processed locally by private firms.  For CY 
2003 Cumberland County realized a recycling rate of 33.7%, for CY 2004 it was 
33.5%, and for CY 2005 it was 27.6%. 

 
Cumberland County's current litter control efforts include participation in: the 
Community Diversion Incentive programs operated in direct coordination with the 
general district court; the Adopt-a-Spot and Adopt-a-Highway programs 
sponsored by VDOT; periodic community and/or organization sponsored roadside 
litter pickups and campaigns; and, periodic river cleanups in partnership with the 
Friends of the Appomattox. 

 
Cumberland County periodically promotes public participation in abandoned 
vehicle recovery efforts and special household hazardous waste collection events. 
The success of these programs is due in part to public education efforts by the 
county to increase participation in the event or events.  Cumberland County 
encourages, and will continue to encourage, participation in community anti-litter 
and cleanup campaigns through educational and guest program presentations to 
schools, individuals, and civic or social organizations. 

 
In the future, Cumberland County will continue its efforts in litter control by 
actively participating in and/or promoting the above programs.  Special 
programs in which the County periodically engages include participation in an 
abandoned vehicle recovery program and special household hazardous waste 
collection events. 

159



14 
 

 
Cumberland County does not have an operating landfill. However, funding of its 
current solid waste management programs, such as its convenience centers, have 
been from General Fund revenues. Continued funding of these programs for the 
duration of the planning period will either be from the general fund or through host 
fees if a privately owned and operated municipal solid waste landfill is sited within 
the County. 

 
Green Ridge Recycling and Disposal Facility, LLC (Green Ridge), a private waste 
disposal company, is proposing to site and permit a new Solid Waste Management 
Facility in Cumberland County, Virginia.  The proposed facility is considered to be in 
general conformance with this Solid Waste Management Plan as well as the County's 
Comprehensive Plan and future development plans.  The actual siting and permitting 
of this proposed facility is subject to permit approvals by the DEQ in accordance 
with the Virginia Solid Waste Management Regulations (VSWMR).  The proposed 
landfill will be located approximately eight miles east of Cumberland County 
Courthouse on US Route 60.  Figure 3 shows the approximate location of the 
proposed landfill.  Access to the proposed facility will be from Route 60. The 
specific location of the proposed access road will be subject to VDOT approval. 

 
The proposed Green Ridge landfill will be a sanitary landfill accepting Municipal 
Solid Waste (MSW) primarily serving Cumberland County and the rest of Virginia, 
including the Richmond Metropolitan Area.  Under the terms of the Host Agreement 
with Cumberland County, MSW can also be accepted from a 500-mile radius of the 
landfill. Waste Generation for Cumberland County is not 
projected to increase significantly in the near future, and the estimates provided in 
Table 4 are considered valid. 

 
The landfill's regular operating hours will be twenty-four hours per day on 
weekdays, opening at 6:00 a.m. on Monday morning and closing at 11:59 p.m. on 
Friday evening, and 6:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. on Saturdays. 

 
The proposed landfill would operate under a DEQ permit to be obtained within the 
next 2 to 3 years. No changes to current solid waste disposal practices would occur 
until such time as permits for the new facility are obtained from DEQ.  Actual facility 
details will be determined during the DEQ permitting process.  The disposal area is 
expected to contain approximately 550 acres.  The planned gross capacity of the 
facility has been calculated based on conceptual information at approximately 69 
million cubic yards. The net airspace will be determined during the design of these 
systems and development of the operational parameters for the facility during the 
DEQ Part A and Part B application process.  The allowable waste stream acceptance 
rate will be limited by the Host Agreement, which also provides for free solid waste 
disposal and recycling to residents of Cumberland County. The maximum amount of 
waste that can be accepted on any given day will be 5000 tons.   Because the average 
annual waste receipt and effective in-place waste densities will vary, the practical life 

160



15 
 

of the facility will range from 35 to 50 years. The longer life assumes a higher in-
place waste density and a lower average annual waste receipt. 

 
Due to the conceptual nature of the proposed facility, additional amendments to the 
Plan, if necessary, will be implemented at the appropriate time in accordance with 9 
VAC20-130-10 et seq., Amendment 1.  Any such amendments are anticipated to be 
Minor Amendments. 

 
C. Solid Waste Management Planning (SWMP) Unit Recycling Rate 

 
The recycling rate for the region is approximately 22.4%. The population density 
for the region based upon 2000 Census data (28,737) and a total 649 square miles is 
approximately 44.28 people per square mile. As of July 1, 2006, the mandatory 
recycling rate for a Solid Waste Management Planning Unit (SWMPU) with a 
population density of less than 100 people per square mile is 15%. The Prince 
Edward County I Cumberland County SWMPU meets this requirement. 

 
The Counties will continue to look for improvements in recycling activities and 
practices during the planning period. If the recycling rate for the SWMPU drops 
below the current goal of 15%, then the Solid Waste Management Plan will be 
amended to incorporate a recycling action plan. The recycling action plan will 
cover the required milestones to meet the 15% recycling rate goal. 

 

D. Collection/Transfer 
 

The existing system of solid waste collection and transportation throughout the 
SWMPU is to be continued through the planning period. The existing system is 
functioning well and no significant changes are proposed. The counties will 
continue to evaluate the collection and handling of solid wastes and look for 
improvements that can be made to the system during the planning period. It is not 
intended at this point to supplant the public convenience facilities that faithfully 
serve the needs of the residents within the SWMPU with larger and more expensive 
transfer stations given the nearness of the disposal sites. In the event that a change 
in the current collection and transportation system is warranted, the Solid Waste 
Management Plan will be amended to reflect the change. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

161



17 

 

 

162



18 

 

 

163



19 

E. Central Archive 
 

The United States Environmental Protection Agency and the Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality maintain data on sites and facilities that have been permitted 
as disposal sites under the Solid Waste Management facility 
regulations, and of sites and facilities that have been permitted as treatment, storage, 
and disposal sites under the Hazardous Waste Management Regulations. The office 
of the County Planner of Prince Edward County in Farmville, Virginia will be the 
local Central Archive to receive and record information on permitted and closed 
disposal sites. Such information will be available for public scrutiny. To make 
current information available for public review, the Prince Edward County Planner 
will request periodically during the planning period that the Virginia Department of 
Environmental Quality provide copies of its latest 
database of permitted and closed sites. Similarly, the Prince Edward County 
Planner will periodically request the latest lists of Superfund sites and sites with 
potentially hazardous issues from the EPA. Sites with potential waste disposal 
issues are frequently identified by private entities during the Environmental Site 
Assessment process. To the extent that the results of these site assessments are 
provided to the Prince Edward County Planning Office, the inventory of active and 
closed disposal sites will be updated and forwarded to the director of the DEQ. 
Similarly, new disposal sites will be documented and recorded with a copy of that 
information sent to the director of the DEQ. 
The office of the County Planner for Prince Edward County in Farmville, Virginia 
will also serve as the local Central Archive to receive and record information on the 
amount of solid waste produced within the SWMPU. The waste records from the 
Prince Edward County landfill are maintained in this office as well the County's 
records relative to recycling. Information on waste generation records and recycling 
records from Cumberland County will be submitted to this office. This information 
will, in turn, be submitted to the director of the DEQ. 

 
F. Recycling Markets 

 
Recyclables from the SWMPU are taken to three different privately owned and 
operated facilities. 

 
White goods and other metals are taken to J & J Recycling in Farmville, VA. J & 
J is a scrap metal and salvage yard that collects, processes and transports metals to 
different end users in the mid-Atlantic area. 

 
Tires are taken to Emmanuel Tire's Appomattox location and then are transported to 
Emmanuel's main processing plant in Baltimore, MD. 

164



20 

 
Household recyclables (cardboard, newspaper, plastic containers, and clean glass 
containers) are taken to STEPS, Inc., a recyclable material brokerage and 
processing facility in Farmville, VA. After processing and or sorting, STEPS 
transports the materials by truck to Chesapeake Fibers in Richmond, VA. 

165



21 

 
CHAPTER 5- WASTE GENERATION AND COMPOSITION  
 
A.  Waste Generation 
 

The projected rate of filling and site life of the Prince Edward County Landfill is 
based on the current rate of volume utilization and a 2018 topographic survey.  The 
rate of filling was calculated based on an in-place density of the waste of 1250 
lbs./cu. yd (estimated from a density evaluation performed after Cell A had been in 
operation for approximately at least one year). At present, the facility receives 
approximately 
82 tons of solid waste per day. This amount was escalated by 1 percent per year in 
accordance with area population projections. 

 
Cells A through F of the Prince Edward County Landfill have a combined 
disposal airspace volume (waste and daily/intermediate cover materials) of 
approximately 1,805,954 cubic yards.  Based on the above escalation rate, the 
proposed cells will have a projected site life of approximately  20 years. 

 
Table 4 provides an estimate of the amount of solid wastes generated within Prince 
Edward County and Cumberland County coincident with the population projection 
for the Area.  Published data from the United States Environmental Protection 
Agency was used for per capita generation.  This number is 4.51 pounds per capita 
per day. As a comparison, tonnages received at the landfill and escalated as 
described above, are also provided.  The quantities differ by about 
7%. 

166



22 

 

TABLE 4 
WASTE GENERATION PROJECTIONS 

 
2000 2010 2020 

 

2030 
 

Cumberland County Population 9,017 10,100 11,000 
 

11,800 
 

Prince Edward County Population 19,720 22,500 24,900 
 

27,200 
 

Total Population for Planning Area 
 

28,737 
 

32,600 35,900 
 

39,000 
 

MSW Generation Based Upon 4.51 
Lbs./capita/day 

23,700 26,800 29,500 
 

32,100 

 

MSW Generation Based Upon Weight 
Records 

25,600 28,300 31,200 
 

34,500 

 
B.  Waste Composition 

 
No published waste composition studies for either Prince Edward County or Cumberland 
County are available.  Annual locality recycling rate reports only provide information or 
quantities of materials pulled from the waste stream prior to landfilling.  Table 5 presents 
typical material percentages as published by the EPA and other sources. 

 
 

TABLE 5 
TYPICAL COMPOSITION* OF MUN1ClPAL SOLID WASTE 

 

Material 
 

Current 
U.S. Average 

1993 
Westchester Co., NY 

1953 
Chandler, AZ 

 

Paper and Paperboard 
 

37.4% 
 

39% 
 

42.7% 
 

Glass 
 

5.5 
 

8 7.5 
 

Metals 
 

7.8 
 

9 
 

9.8 
 

Plastics 
 

10.7 
 

7 0.4 
 

Rubber & Leather 
 

2.7 
 

2 1.0 
 

Textiles 
 

4.0 
 

2 1.9 
 

Wood 
 

5.5 3 2.3 
 

Food Scraps 
 

11.2 
 

10 
 

21.8 
 

Yard Trimmings 
 

12.0 
 

18 1.3 
 

Miscellaneous 
 

3.2 
 

2 11.3 

 
 

100% 
 

100% 100% 

*By Weight 

167



23 

 
In reviewing the above information, it is important to note, in particular, the 
increasing role of plastics, not only over the last half century, but also over the last 
10 years. This has a direct impact on recycling rate estimates that are based solely on 
weight. In actuality, we may be recycling more food and beverage containers, but 
because product packaging continues to shift to plastics away from heavy glass and 
metal containers, it appears that we are seeing little or no increase or, in some cases; 
even a decrease in our recycling programs. 

 

 
 

C. Waste Character 
 

Based upon the most recent data from Form DEQ 50-25 (Solid Waste Information 
and Assessment Program Reporting Table), the following represents a current 
percentage breakdown of the waste stream in the defined categories. 

 
Construction/Demolition Debris (CDD) 
Land Clearing Debris (LCD) 
Industrial Waste (IND) 
Tires 

7.4% 
1.5% 
0.3% 
0.1% 

 

 
 

Since the SWMPU is primarily rural in character, and is expected to generally 
remain that way based upon population projections, it is not expected that these 
percentages will vary significantly in the future. Table 4A presents a forecast of 
these waste categories. 

 

 
 
 
 

TABLE4A 
WASTE GENERATION PROJECTIONS BASED UPON CATEGORY 

 
Year 2000 2010 2020 2030 

Category        

MSW (tons) 25,600 28,300 31,200 34,500 
CDD (tons) 1,895 2,095 2,310 2,555 
LCD (tons) 385 425 470 520 
IND (tons) 80 85 95 105 
Tires (tons) 26 28 31 35 

168



24 

 
CHAPTER 6- SOLID WASTE NEEDS ASSESSMENT  
 
A. Prince Edward County 
 

Prince Edward County owns and operates its own Subtitle D Sanitary Landfill with 
an estimated capacity that spans the 20-year Plan period.  This considers the 
continuation of accepting waste from both Cumberland County and Buckingham 
County during this time frame. 

 
The strategic location of the public convenience centers and accompanying 
recycling centers will serve the citizens of the County well during the planning 
period. 

 
The closure of the County's landfill scheduled to occur just beyond the tail-end of 
the planning period will require the County to consider alternative disposal options 
starting midway through the planning period. 

 
B. Cumberland County 

 
Cumberland County currently has no active disposal facility located within its 
borders. It transports waste that are collected at the public convenience centers to a 
recycling facility pursuant to the County’s contract with Container Rentals LLC 

 
The planned Green Ridge facility, if permitted, will provide disposal capacity for 
the foreseeable future at no charge to County residents by the terms of the Host 
Agreement, a copy of which is  available for review in the County's offices and 
on the County’s website. 

 
The strategic location of the three public convenience centers in the north, central and 
southern parts of the County should continue to serve the citizens well for the 
remainder of the planning period. 

 
The closure of the Prince Edward County Landfill just beyond the end of the 
planning period and the continuing availability of other regional landfills are 
critical issues for the County to periodically review and evaluate. 

 
Based on initial projections of capacity and waste receipts, the proposed facility 
would have an expected life of  35 to 50 years. 

169



25 

 

 
 

CHAPTER 7 - PREFERRED WASTE MANAGEMENT SYSTEM 
 

A. General 
 

It is important to recognize that the most appropriate waste management system 
for a given municipality or region is dependent on the demographics, geology, 
and resources of that municipality or region. Thus the extent to which the 
different elements of the Solid Waste Management Hierarchy are incorporated in 
the plan will often vary considerably from municipality to municipality or region 
to region. The Solid Waste Management Hierarchy (originally developed and 
promoted by the USEPA) is usually depicted as a pyramid with the most 
preferred element at the top and the lease preferred at the bottom: 

 

 
 

Source 
Reduction 

Reuse, Reuse, Reuse  
Recycling, Recycling, Recycling 

Resource Recovery, Resource 
Recovery 

Incineration, Incineration, Incineration, 
Incineration 

Landfilling, Landfilling, Landfilling, Landfilling, 
Landfilling, 

 

 
 

Ironically, the least preferred element (landfilling) is the foundational element for 
the remaining elements and is the one element common to all integrated waste 
management strategies.  Although, source reduction, reuse and recycling in 
certain locations can have a significant impact on reducing the amount of solid 
waste material and filled, it is not practical to consider that these three elements, 
in the foreseeable future, would dramatically reduce the amount of waste that 
will have 
to be landfilled. 

 

 

Source Reduction:  This element of the solid waste 
management hierarchy, along with reuse, 
is for all intents and purposes, out of the 
direct control of the municipal 
jurisdiction within the service area of this 
plan. It could involve such disparate 
entities as manufacturers designing, 

170



26 

manufacturing, and packaging products 
to minimize waste, and consumers 
purchasing products and services with an 
eye towards reducing the generation of 
waste materials.  Because the goal of 
source reduction is not to produce waste, 
it is difficult to gauge the effectiveness of 
educational programs (indirect measures) 
that may be instituted by a locality. 
Source reduction practices are not tracked 
within the service area of this plan. 

 
Reuse:  Very similar to source reduction, this element could 

involve one time or multiple reuse of containers or 
packaging materials such as plastic or paper grocery 
bags and food containers (such as plastic margarine 
tubs); and donating clothes (in good condition) to 
charitable organizations for redistribution to others.  
Reuse practices also are not tracked within the 
service area.  Expansion of reuse practices would rely 
heavily upon educational programs, but as with 
source reduction, it would be difficult to measure the 
effectiveness of dollars spent on such educational 
programs. 
 
Thus it is that the top two preferences are difficult to 
implement and problematic to measure.  However, 
the counties will continue to look for economical 
ways to promote source reduction and reuse during 
the planning period.  Existing recycling information 
available to the public will be augmented with 
educational and informational programs on reduction 
and reuse as public funding will allow. 

 
Recycling:  Recycling provides businesses, individuals, and 

families the opportunity to return valuable resources 
(both renewable and non-renewable) back to the 
manufacturing/industrial sector to produce new 
products.  In the process, it reduces the amount of 
virgin materials needed and the production process 
likely will use less energy using recycled feedstocks 
of metals, glass, plastics, and paper.  
 
Localities in the service area of the plan can have 
an impact on recycling activities through programs 
and facilities provided or made available to 
businesses and residences within their respective 

171



27 

jurisdictions.  Drop-off areas and public 
convenience facilities have been designed or 
upgraded to include recycling boxes or containers.  
Future considerations would include limited 
curbside recycling programs in more density 
populated areas within the service area covered by 
this plan. 
 

The mandated recycling rate for the region (SWMPU) 
is being met. If the rate drops below the currently 
mandated 15% for rural areas, the Solid Waste 
Management Plan will be amended to include 
implementation timelines incorporated therein.

 
Resource\Recovery/Incineration  Resource recovery, also referred to as Waste-to-

Energy (WTE), is not a cost effective element of the 
hierarchy for implementation in a service area of the 
size associated with this plan.  Most existing WTE 
facilities are in the 1000 TPD or greater through-put 
capacity. At a per capita generation rate of 4.51 
lbs./day this would reflect a service area population of 
about 440,000.  Such facilities also are difficult to site 
and permit because of stricter air emissions 
requirements, difficulties with jurisdictional 
political agreements, and intense public opposition.  
Incineration is the same as WTE except that energy 
(usually in the Incineration is the same as WTE 
except that energy (usually in the form of steam or 
electricity) is not recovered from the burning 
process.

 
Landfilling:  Landfilling, in the simplest terminology, is the 

engineered burial of solid wastes. Modem landfill 
facilities incorporate composite liner systems of soils 
and flexible membranes to serve as barriers to preclude 
the contamination of groundwater beneath the facility.  
Porous media and piping in a "leachate collection 
zone" above the liner system allows for the 
contaminated liquids to flow to a collection point 
where it is removed and treated on site or hauled or 
pumped to a treatment plant.  Gas generated from the 
decomposition of wastes is vented and/or recovered. 
Groundwater and landfill gas monitoring points 
represent fail safe mechanisms alerting an owner to 
potential problems.   
 
Landfilling of municipal solid waste generation within 

172



28 

the region covered by this plan will remain the most 
viable and economic method for the management of 
the waste stream.  Landfilling will be integrated with 
viable recycling programs and, therefore, recycling 
and landfilling will form the cornerstone of the 
integrated waste management strategy for the region 
covered by this plan. Waste reduction and reuse will 
be promoted as funding permits. 

 

 
 
B. Prince Edward County 
 

Reduction/Reuse  As public funding allows, existing education and 
public information proposed for increasing 
participation in recycling will be augmented to 
include education/ informational programs on waste 
reduction and reuse.

 
Recycling:  The preferred recycling program will continue to 

be the operation of the drop-off centers at the 
public convenience centers and the curbside 
collection within the Town of Farmville.  
 
Institution of curbside collection in more 
densely populated parts of the County could 
be a program to consider to increase 
participation rates and recyclable collections.  
Education and public information efforts will 
continue to be a component of the recycling 
program. The private sector will be relied 
upon to process and market recovered 
materials. 
 
Based upon public hearing comments, Prince 
Edward County will research the economics of 
adding waste oil and antifreeze recycling capabilities 
at one or more of the public convenience centers. 
 

 
Disposal:  The method of disposal for Prince Edward County 

will be the continued use of its Subtitle D Landfill.  
About  10 years into the planning period (2014), 
the County needs to assess whether it can expand 
its existing facility; transport wastes out of County 
to an existing or future facility; or implement a 

173



29 

new or emergent technology to handle its disposal 
needs. 

C. Cumberland County 
 
 
 

Reduction/Reuse:    As public funding allows, existing education and 
public information proposed for increasing 
participation in recycling will be augmented to 
include education/ informational programs on 
waste reduction and reuse.

     
Recycling:    The preferred recycling program for 

Cumberland County is to continue the 
operation of its drop-off centers located at each 
of its three public convenience centers.  
Education and public information programs 
will continue to be relied upon to increase 
participation rates and the collection of 
recyclables. The private sector will continue to 
provide for the processing and market of 
recovered materials.

     
Disposal:    Cumberland County will continue to rely upon 

the services of Container Rentals LLC for the 
recycling and disposal of its solid waste. The 
County will periodically evaluate, during the 
planning period, the development of a new 
County landfill; the use of any new landfill 
within the planning area or nearby as its 
primary means of disposal; or the development 
of new or emergent technology to manage its 
solid waste disposal needs. 
 
For both Counties, existing public and private 
sector partnerships in the collection, and 
transport of municipal wastes, in the collection, 
transport and processing of recyclables and in 
the operation of disposal facilities will be 
maintained. 

174



30 

CHAPTER 8 -IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES 
 

There are no significant implementation issues as the two counties are currently managing 
their solid wastes. Recycling is not mandatory within each county, but if either County 
would decide to implement curbside collection in more densely populated areas, the 
mechanisms would have to be developed to define the area, insure participation, and 
cover the costs.  Provisions of disposal services would be accomplished through 
agreements or contracts with providers.  If new public or private disposal facilities are 
identified, be they landfill or a new/emergent technology, local, state, and/or federal 
permits will need to be filed with their requisite public participation programs involving 
public meetings, public hearings, and comment periods. 

 
In essence the Solid Waste Management Plan for Prince Edward County and Cumberland 
County is self-implementing upon formal approval of the plan by each County and approval 
of the plan by the Department of Environmental Quality. The existing system of solid waste 
management throughout the planning area is functioning well and no significant changes are 
proposed in the near future. 

 
Cumberland County is the site of a proposed municipal waste landfill being developed by 
Green Ridge Recycling and Disposal Facility, LLC.  If this site applies for and receives the 
necessary local government and state government approvals and/or permits, it will be the 
primary disposal facility for Cumberland County. 

 
The Counties will continue to look for improvements to the management system during the 
planning period. In the event that a change is necessary, the Solid Waste Management Plan 
will be amended to reflect that change. 

175



31 

 
REFERENCES 

 
A. Publications 

 
1.  Piedmont Planning District Commission; 1997 Solid Waste Management 

Plan Update; July 1, 1997. 
 

2.  Resource International, Ltd.; Prince Edward County Sanitary Landfill. 
Permit No. 584, Permit Amendment Application No.3; April, 2003. 

 
3.  Piedmont Planning District Commission; 2003 Comprehensive Economic 

Development Strategy (CEDS). 
 

4.  Virginia Employment Commission; "Statistical Labor Market 
Information"; Count Question Resolution Program; May 2, 2003. 

 
5.  American City Business Journals; "Where's the Best Place to Live in 

America"; May, 2004. 
 

6.  Central Virginia Waste Management Authority; Central Virginia Solid 
Waste Management Plan; February, 2004. 

 
7.  American Public Works Association; Municipal Refuse Disposal; 1966. 

 
8.  Herbert Jr. Lund; The McGraw-Hill Recycling Handbook; 1993. 

 
9.  Loudoun County Solid Waste Management Planning District; Public 

Review Draft Solid Waste Management Plan; March, 2003. 
 

10.  Virginia Department of Environmental Quality, Recycling and Litter 
Prevention - Mandatory Recycling Rates for Localities; 3 pages; July 
2006. 

 
11.  Virginia Department of Environmental Quality.  The Virginia Annual 

Recycling Rate Report- CY 2004 Summary. 

176



32 

 
 

 
B.  Personal Interviews 

 
1. Judy Ownby; County Administrator, County of Cumberland, Virginia. 

 
2.   Jack E. Houghton; Executive Director, Piedmont Planning District 

Commission; Farmville, Virginia. 
 

3.  Jonathan Pickett; County Planner, County of Prince Edward, Virginia. 
 

4. Sherry Swinson; Assistant County Administrator, County of Cumberland, 
Virginia. 

 
5. Ray McGowan, BFI Waste Systems of Virginia, LLC 

 
6. Steve Batiste, Brown and Caldwell 

177



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

178



Page 1 of 1 
 

 
 
 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
Appoint Sheriff Darrell Hodges to the Piedmont Alcohol Safety Action Program Board of 
Directors. 
 
Information: 
 
Director of Piedmont ASAP, Ms. Robin Allen, has recommended Sheriff Darrell Hodges for 
appointment to the Piedmont Alcohol Safety Action Program Board of Directors to fill the 
vacancy of the late Ms. Carolyn Helgeson.  Ms. Allen believes that Sheriff Hodges’ experience 
and qualifications would be a tremendous help in this position, and Sheriff Hodges is willing to 
serve in this capacity.  If appointed, Sheriff Hodges’ term will expire October 2020. 
 
 

DATE: May 6, 2019 

TO:  Cumberland County Board of Supervisors 

FROM: Stephany S. Johnson 

RE:  Piedmont ASAP appointment 
  

179



 
 

  
District 2   

District 3 
  

 
  

District 5 

 
   

District 2   
District 3   

   
District 5 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 
 

 

RESOLUTION IN RECOGNITION of 

THE NINETIETH ANNIVERSARY 

BLANTON & PLEASANTS, INCORPORATED 

 

May 14, 2019 

 
WHEREAS, Blanton & Pleasants is a fixture in the Cartersville Community of Cumberland 

County, serving as a retail establishment and a true embassy of good will; and 

 

WHEREAS, since 1929, Blanton & Pleasants has served as a social hub, a community 

service provider, a site for community fundraising, a home for local hunting and fishing 

enthusiasts, and a provider of goods and services to community members and visitors alike; and 

 

WHEREAS, in addition to those goods and services, James “Spanky” Pleasants and his wife 

June serve as a foundation of ministry and goodwill to the community as well; and  

 

WHEREAS, in an age when family-owned businesses all-too-often fall victim to larger 

establishments and chains, Blanton & Pleasants remains rooted strongly in the Cartersville 

Community of Cumberland County; and 

 

WHEREAS, the well-being of local businesses which anchor our communities and form a 

strong foundation in rural Virginia - particularly those businesses like Blanton & Pleasants which 

serve as so much more than for-profit enterprises - is to be celebrated. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of Cumberland 

County, Virginia does recognize and congratulate Blanton & Pleasants for its ninety years of 

success in Cartersville, Virginia and does express its gratitude to the proprietors and employees 

of Blanton & Pleasants for their untiring service to the Cartersville Community, to Cumberland 

County, and to the visitors who pass through their welcoming doors.  

 

 Adopted this 14th day of May, 2019. 

  

      _____________________________________ 

      Mr. David Meinhard, Chairman 

 

 

Attest:  ___________________________________________ 

Vivian Giles, County Administrator 

 

180



5/09/2019 *GL060T1* CUMBERLAND CO PAGE 1 

** GENERAL FUND REVENUES** 

Monthly Financial Report To Council For May 2019 

Revenue 

Balance Forward 

Fund Revenue 

Total Revenue 

Expenditures 

* Board of Supervisors * 
* County Administrator * 

* Legal Services * 

* Independent Auditor * 

* Commissioner of Revenue * 

* Assessor * 

* Treasurer * 

* Accounting * 

* Data Processing * 

* Electoral Board * 

* Registrar * 

* Circuit Court * 

* General District Court * 

* Magistrate * 

* Clerk of Circuit Court * 

* Law Library * 

* Victim and Witness Assistance * 

* Commonwealth's Attorney* 

* Sheriff * 

* School Resource Officer * 

* E911 * 

*Cumberland Vol.FIRE DEPT* 

*Cartersville Volun.* 

*Prince Edward Vol. Rescue Squad* 

*Randolph Fire Dept.* 

*Cartersville Vol. Rescue Squad* 

*Chesterfield Med-Flight Program* 

* Forestry Service * 

* CUMBERLAND FIRE & EMS * 

* Probation Office * 

* Correction & Detention * 

* Building Inspections * 

* Animal Control * 

* Medical Examiner * 

* Refuse Disposal * 

* General Properties * 

* Supplement of Local Health Dept * 

*Piedmont Senior Resources* 

* Chapter 10 Board - Crossroads * 

*.CSA Management * 

* Community Colleges * 

* Recreation * 

Estimated 2018/2019 

Budget to Date 

40,226,859.00 

40,226,859.00 

46,117.00 

298,724.00 

1,000.00 

36,000.00 

259,158.00 

104,000.00 

293,670.00 

157,046.00 

305,491.00 

25,096.00 

97,937.00 

14,800.00 

7,630.00 

1,125.00 

224,407.00 

1,200.00 

69,370.00 

221,898.00 

1,661,393.00 

66,404.00 

25,200.00 

44,500.00 

39,500.00 

10,000.00 

39,500.00 

37,970.00 

400.00 

8,705.00 

480,030.00 

550.00 

285,000.00 

142,981.00 

125,800.00 

200.00 

924,674.00 

753,626.00 

92,417.00 

5,000.00 

34,000.00 

33,381.00 

8,000.00 

·63,827.00 

Actual 2018/2019 (Over} or Under 

Budget to Date 

5,003,542.53 

30,443,133.95 

35,446,676.48 

34,544.70 

261,408.15 

83,576.34 

46,263.57 

199,478.44 

19,745.46 

237,488.88 

277,096.07 

190,664.69 

15,868.88 

68,068.65 

10,676.48 

5,454.01 

196,503.27 

360.31 

15,045.00 

170,945.45 

1,305,046.36 

72,381.58 

4,682.60 

55,701.67 

50,701.67 

10,000.00 

.50,701.67 

37,970.00 

400.00 

512,587.10 

56.00 

617,195.92 

107,883.10 

85,437.52 

40.00 

677,413.09 

624,646.00 

79,615.10 

5,000.00 

34,000.00 

27,844.39 

8,000.00 

47,672.27 

Budget to Date 

9,783,725.05 

4,780,182.52 

11,572.30 

37,315.85 

(82,576.34} 

(10,263.57} 

59,679.56 

84,254.54 

56,181.12 

(120,050.07} 

114,826.31 

9,227.12 

29,868.35 

4,123.52 

2,175.99 

1,125.00 

27,903.73 

839.69 

54,325.00 

50,952.55 

356,346.64 

(5,977.58} 

20,517.40 

(11, 201. 67} 

(11,201.67} 

(11,201.67} 

8,705.00 

(32,557.10} 

494.00 

(332,195.92} 

35,097.90 

40,362.48 

160.00 

247,260.91 

128,980.00 

12,801.90 

5,536.61 

16,154.73 

181



5/09/2019 *GL060T1* CUMBERLAND CO PAGE 2 

** GENERAL FUND REVENUES** 

Monthly Financial Report To Council For May 2019 

Expenditures 

* Local Library * 

* Planning Commission * 

* Planning/Zoning Dept. * 

* Community & Economic Developmnt * 

* Board of Zoning Appeals * 

* Farmville Area Chamber of Commerc 

* Longwood Small Bus. Dev. Ctr. * 

* Southside Violence Prevention * 

*Peter Francisco SWD* 

* Extension Agents * 

* NONDEPARTMENTAL * 

**TRANSFERS** 

COMMONWEALTH'S ATTORNEY 

SHERIFF 

HEALTH INSURANCE 

DENTAL INSURANCE 

PATIENT CENTERED OUTCOME FEE(PCOR) 

* Administration * 

* Elementary School - Lit Loan * 

* COPS97 Loan * 

* High/Middle School - VPSA Loan * 

* HS/MS-VPSA LOAN #2 * 

PUBLIC FACILITY NOTE 2009 

* AMERESCO * 
* SunTrust Loan-HS/MS * 

* Suntrust Loan - Courthouse * 

* SEWER FUND - Enterprise Fund * 
* WATER FUND - ENTERPRISE FUND * 

COMMUNITY CENTER PURCHASE 

MADISON INDUSTRIAL PARK 

Total Expenditure 

Total Revenues 

Less Total Expenditures 

Estimated 2018/2019 

Budget to Date 

115,450.00 

9,950.00 

83' 113. 00 

19,052.00 

650.00 

10,590.00 

1,500.00 

3,000.00 

5,000.00 

10,000.00 

53,329.00 

2,500.00 

19,122.00 

7,703,536.00 

5,000.00 

50,000.00 

2,689,500.00 

115,000.00 

12,500.00 

1,384,961.00 

15,125,590.00 

1,290,402.00 

35,000.00 

211,667.00 

1,200,590.00 

389,067.00 

154,394.00 

892,500.00 

248,579.00 

750,000.00 

272,172.00 

171,328.00 

120,590.00 

23,500.00 

40,226,859.00 

Actual 2018/2019 (Over) or Under 

Budget to Date 

115,450.00 

6,628.44 

68,110.13 

16,623.64 

1,500.00 

3,000.00 

5,000.00 

10,000.00 

39,161.94 

2,500.00 

8,458.95 

5,504,157.98 

2,152.11 

1,095,166.53 

51,378.99 

546.92 

1,182,648.74 

10,523,763.87 

673,811.94 

211,666.67 

770.00 

892,500.36 

1,201,340.00 

361,571.56 

154,394.00 

253,924.97 

835,972.88 

246,987.63 

129,235.88 

102,158.61 

750.00 

13,306.14 

29,962,803.27 

5,483,873.21 

Budget to Date 

3,321.56 

15,002.87 

2,428.36 

650.00 

10,590.00 

14,167.06 

10,663.05 

2,199,378.02 

2,847.89 

50,000.00 

1,594,333.47 

63,621.01 

11,953.08 

202,312.26 

4,601,826.13 

616,590.06 

35,000.00 

.33 

(770.00) 

(892, 500 .36) 

(750.00) 

27,495.44 

892,500.00 

(5,345.97) 

(85,972.88) 

25,184.37 

42,092.12 

18,431.39 

(750. 00) 

10,193.86 

10,264,055.73 

(5,483, 873 .21) 

182



5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

*
G

L
0

6
0

A
A

*
 

C
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
 

PA
G

E
 

1 
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
 

SU
M

M
A

RY
 

T
IM

E
 

1
0

o
2

9
 

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

8
 

5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

B
U

D
G

ET
 

A
P

P
R

. 
C

U
R

R
EN

T 
Y

-T
-D

 
EN

C
U

M
B

R
A

N
C

E 
U

N
EN

C
U

M
B

ER
ED

 
%

 

A
C

C
T

# 
D

E
SC

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
R

E
M

A
IN

IN
G

 

--
F

IN
A

L
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

183



5
/0

9
/2

0
].

9
 

A
C

C
T

ff
 

F
U

N
D

 
ff

-J
.O

O
 

J.
lO

J.
 

J.
1

0
2

 

J.
1

0
3

 

J.
1

0
4

 

J.
1

0
6

 

J.
2

0
J.

 

J.
2

0
2

 

J.
2

0
3

 

1
.2

0
4

 

].
2

0
5

 

J.
2

0
7

 

J.
3

0
J.

 

J.
3

0
3

 

J.
4

0
J.

 

J.
S

O
J.

 

1
5

0
2

 

1
6

0
1

 

J.
6

0
2

 

J.
6

0
4

 

J.
6

0
8

 

J.
6

J.
3

 

J.
6

J.
6

 

J.
8

9
9

 

2J
.O

J.
 

2
2

0
J.

 

2
3

0
J.

 

2
3

0
2

 

2
3

0
3

 

2
3

0
4

 

2
3

0
6

 

2
3

0
7

 

2
3

0
8

 

2
4

0
4

 

3
3

0
J.

 

F
U

N
D

 
ff

-J
.S

O
 

*G
L

O
G

O
A

A
* 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

**
 R

e
a

l 
E

st
a

te
 

T
a

x
es

 
**

 
* 

R
e
a

l/
P

e
r
so

n
a

l 
P

u
b

li
c
 
S

e
r
v

ic
e
 

* 
* 

P
e
r
so

n
a

l 
P

r
o

p
e
r
ty

 
T

a
x

es
 

* 
• 

M
a

ch
in

er
y

 
&

 T
o

o
ls

 
* 

* 
P

e
n

a
lt

ie
s 

&
 
I
n

te
r
e
s
t 

* 
* 

L
o

c
a

l 
S

a
le

s 
&

 U
se

 
T

a
x

es
 

* 
* 

C
o

n
su

m
er

• 
U

ti
li

ty
 T

a
x

es
 

* 
* 

B
u

si
n

e
ss

 
L

ic
e
n

se
 

T
a

x
es

 
• 

* 
F

r
a

n
c
h

is
e
 

L
ic

e
n

se
 

T
a

x
es

 
* 

* 
M

o
to

r 
V

e
h

ic
le

 
L

ic
e
n

se
 

T
a

x
 
* 

* 
T

a
x

es
 

O
n 

R
e
c
o

r
d

a
ti

o
n

 
&

 W
il

ls
 

* 
* 

A
n

im
al

 
L

ic
en

se
s 

* 
* 

P
e
r
m

it
s 

&
 O

th
er

 
L

ic
e
n

se
s 

* 
* 

C
o

u
rt

 
F

in
e
s 

&
 F

o
r
fe

it
u

r
e
s 

* 
* 

R
e

v
e

n
u

e
 

F
ro

m
 U

s
e

 
O

f 
M

o
n

e
y

 
* 

* 
R

e
v

e
n

u
e

 
F

ro
m

 
U

s
e

 
O

f 
P

ro
p

e
rt

y
 

* 
* 

C
o

u
rt

 
C

o
st

s 
• 

* 
C

o
m

m
o

n
w

ea
lt

h
•s

 
A

tt
o

r
n

e
y

 
F

e
e
s 

* 
*

C
h

a
rg

es
 

fo
r
 

F
ir

e
 

&
 R

es
cu

e 
S

e
r
v

ic
e
*

 
* 

C
h

a
rg

es
 

S
a

n
it

a
ti

o
n

 
&

 R
em

o
v

a
l 

* 
* 

C
h

a
rg

es
 

F
o

r 
P

a
rk

s 
&

 R
e
c
r
e
a

ti
o

n
 
* 

* 
C

h
a

rg
es

 
F

o
r 

P
la

n
n

in
g

 
I 

C
om

 
D

ev
 
* 

* 
M

is
c
e
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s 

* 
* 

S
e
r
v

ic
e
 C

h
a

rg
es

 
* 

**
N

O
N

-C
A

T
E

G
O

R
IC

A
L

 
A

ID
**

 
* 

C
or

rn
n

on
w

ea
lt

h
 A

tt
o

r
n

e
y

 
* 

* 
S

h
e
r
if

f 
* 

* 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 
O

f 
R

ev
en

u
e 

* 
* 

T
r
e
a

su
r
e
r
 
* 

* 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
r
/E

le
c
to

r
a

l 
B

o
a

rd
s 

* 
* 

C
le

r
k

 
O

f 
T

h
e 

C
ir

c
u

it
 

C
o

u
rt

 
* 

* 
DM

V 
L

ic
e
n

se
 A

g
en

t 
* 

**
G

R
A

N
T

 
F

U
N

D
S

**
 

**
G

R
A

N
T

 
F

U
N

D
S

**
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
5

0
1

 
IN

T
E

R
E

ST
-S

T
A

T
E

 
2

4
0

2
 

A
S

S
E

T
 

F
O

R
F

E
IT

U
R

E
 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

(S
T

A
T

E
) 

4
1

0
6

 
C

a
rr

y
o

v
er

 
B

a
la

n
c
e
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

F
U

N
D

 
ff

-J
. 7

0
 

1
9

0
2

 
H

E
A

L
T

H
 

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S 

C
U

M
BE

R
LA

N
D

 
CO

 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
 

7
/0

J
./

2
0

].
8

 
-

5
/0

9
/2

0
].

9
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

5
,8

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

8
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

J
.,

9
9

4
,5

0
0

.0
0

 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
4

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

].
7

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

J
.n

' 
0

0
0

.0
0

 
J.

S
,O

O
O

.O
O

 

2
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

6
8

,6
0

0
.0

0
 

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

7
6

,6
0

0
.0

0
 

1
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

J.
S

, 
0

0
0

.0
0

 

4
7

,0
6

0
.0

0
 

B
O

O
. 0

0
 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

1
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

 

1
,7

0
4

,9
0

J
..

O
O

 

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

].
,3

0
4

,5
3

5
.0

0
 

].
7

0
,0

9
9

.0
0

 

s
s
2

, 
a
n

.
 o

o
 

8
2

,4
4

4
.0

0
 

9
8

,2
6

2
.0

0
 

4
2

,4
2

3
.0

0
 

J.
5

9
, 

9
8

4
.0

0
 

J.
9

, 
0

0
0

.0
0

 

5
2

' 
0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
5

,0
8

4
,5

1
9

.0
0

 

3
0

.0
0

 

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
9

,9
7

0
.0

0
 

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,6

8
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

A
P

P
R

. 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

5
,8

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

8
6

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

1
,9

9
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
4

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

5
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

1
7

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

J.
J.

J.
, 
0

0
0

.0
0

 

J.
S

,O
O

O
.O

O
 

2
3

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

6
8

,6
0

0
.0

0
 

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

7
6

,6
0

0
.0

0
 

1
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

4
7

,0
6

0
.0

0
 

8
0

0
.0

0
 

2
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

1
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

. 

J.
, 
7

0
4

' 
9

0
J.

. 
0

0
 

4
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
,3

0
4

,5
3

5
.0

0
 

].
7

0
,0

9
9

.0
0

 

s
s
2

, 
a
n

.
 o

o
 

8
2

,4
4

4
.0

0
 

9
8

,2
6

2
.0

0
 

4
2

,4
2

3
.0

0
 

1
5

9
,9

8
4

.0
0

 

1
9

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

5
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

J
.5

,0
8

4
,5

J
.9

.0
0

 

3
0

.0
0

 

2
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
9

,9
7

0
.0

0
 

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,6

8
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

2
9

J.
, 
2

5
0

.6
5

 

.0
0

 

n
s
,
 O

J.
2

. 
O

J. 

J.
0

,2
6

0
.J

.S
 

4
3

,6
1

8
.4

7
 

3
6

,9
5

7
.4

0
 

1
4

,6
5

4
.3

4
 

J
.6

,2
3

2
. 

7
6

 

.0
0

 

2
0

,8
J
.7

.4
3

 

J.
3

,4
J.

0
.4

9
 

J.
9

9
.0

0
 

J
.0

,3
6

2
.8

0
 

2
2

,2
8

8
.4

5
 

2
' 

J.
6

8
. 

6
5

 
4

2
0

.0
0

 
9

,3
8

2
.1

8
 

J.
7

4
. 

8
9

 

1
5

,0
4

6
 .
2

J.
 

7
5

0
,0

4
0

.0
0

 

5
,1

0
7

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

2
0

' 4
2

0
. 

J.
4 

.0
0

 

3
4

' 
3

2
2

. 
J.

4 

1
4

,J
.B

J.
.3

9
 

5
2

' 
6

6
0

. 
7J

. 
7

,0
7

8
.4

2
 

7
,3

8
3

.6
0

 

.0
0

 

J
.2

,8
9

2
.2

3
 

2
,J

.9
0

.9
0

 

3
,1

6
3

.9
3

 

.0
0

 

1
,5

3
4

,6
9

6
.3

4
 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

Y
-T

-D
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

3
,3

J
.3

,8
0

0
.J

.S
 

4
8

7
, 

O
S

J.
. 

0
2

 

2
,0

5
3

,4
7

5
.5

1
 

2
8

5
,2

1
9

.5
0

 

2
6

7
,0

7
8

.3
3

 

4
4

0
,0

9
4

.1
5

 

J
.4

7
,0

3
6

.7
J
. 

n
3

, 
n

o
. 

7
5

 

.0
0

 

2
3

J
.,

3
7

8
.8

8
 

8
4

,2
3

8
.2

].
 

7
,3

8
5

.0
0

 

5
5

,4
4

J
..

5
1

 

1
0

4
,3

5
8

. 
O

S 

6
4

' 
3

5
8

.9
0

 
3

,0
4

2
.0

0
 

4
4

,5
9

6
.4

6
 

9
9

4
.1

7
 

].
3

3
,5

5
3

.4
8

 

7
5

0
,3

6
0

.0
0

 

1
9

,7
0

0
.5

0
 

1
7

5
.0

0
 

].
,1

7
8

,2
6

7
.6

9
 

8
4

,3
8

J
..

5
8

 

J.
, 

J.
6

3
, 

9
8

4
.2

9
 

J.
3

9
, 
3

0
3

.7
0

 

4
9

7
,5

0
2

.0
8

 

7
0

' 
3

5
9

.8
2

 
7

8
,5

6
J.

.O
O

 

.0
0

 

J.
3

6
, 

0
9

9
.J

.6
 

J.
9

, 
2

3
7

.0
6

 

8
4

,4
7

9
.3

8
 

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

 

].
2

,0
5

9
,8

2
4

.0
4

 

5
9

.0
J
. 

5
,9

8
8

.7
8

 

.0
0

 

6
,0

4
7

.7
9

 

4
6

6
' 

0
9

J.
. 

6
9

 

T
IM

E
 

PA
G

E
 

J.
O

, 
2

9
 

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
,5

3
6

,1
9

9
.8

5
 

3
7

2
,9

4
8

.9
8

 
5

8
,9

7
5

.5
J
.-

8
5

, 
2

1
9

.5
0

-

2
0

,0
7

8
.3

3
-

5
9

,9
0

5
.8

5
 

2
5

,9
6

3
.2

9
 

2
,J

.J
.0

.7
5

-

J.
S

,O
O

O
.O

O
 

J
.,

3
7

8
.8

8
-

J
.5

,6
3

8
.2

1
-

6
J.

S
.O

O
 

2
J
.,

J
.5

8
.4

9
 

4
5

,6
4

J
..

9
5

 

2
4

,3
5

8
.9

0
-

n
,
 9

5
8

. 
o

o
 

2
,4

6
3

.5
4

 
J.

9
4

. 
J. 
7

-

6
6

' 
4

4
6

.5
2

 

4
3

.3
5

 
4

3
.3

6
 

2
.9

5
-

4
2

.6
0

-

8
.1

2
-

n
. 

9
8

 

J.
S

.O
O

 

J.
. 
9

0
-

J.
O

O
.O

O
 

. 5
9

-

2
2

.7
9

-

7
.6

8
 

2
7

.6
2

 

3
0

.4
2

 

6
0

.8
9

-

7
9

.7
2

 

5
.2

3
 

2
4

.2
7

-
3

3
.2

2
 

7
5

0
,3

6
0

.0
0

-
J
.0

0
.0

0
-

3
,7

0
0

.5
0

-
2

3
.1

2
-

2
,3

2
5

.0
0

 
9

3
.0

0
 

5
2

6
,6

3
3

.3
].

 
3

0
.8

8
 

4
4

.3
8

1
.5

8
-

1
1

0
.9

5
-

1
4

0
,5

5
0

.7
J
. 

J.
0

.7
7

 

3
0

,7
9

5
.3

0
 

J.
8

.1
0

 

8
5

,3
0

8
.9

2
 

1
4

.6
3

 

J
.2

,0
8

4
.J

.8
 

1
4

.6
5

 

1
9

,7
0

J.
.O

O
 

2
0

.0
4

 

4
2

,4
2

3
.0

0
 

1
0

0
.0

0
 

2
3

,8
8

4
.8

4
 

1
4

.9
2

 

2
3

7
.0

6
-

].
.2

4
-

3
2

,4
7

9
.3

8
-

6
2

.4
6

-

2
J
.,

8
0

0
.0

0
 

9
4

.7
8

 

3
,0

2
4

,6
9

4
.9

6
 

2
0

. 
O

S 

2
9

.0
J
.-

9
6

.7
0

-

1
9

,0
1

1
.2

2
 

7
6

.0
4

 
2

9
,9

7
0

.0
0

 
J.

O
O

.O
O

 

4
8

,9
5

2
.2

].
 

8
9

.0
0

 

2
,2

1
3

,9
0

8
.3

].
 

8
2

.6
0

 

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-

184



5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

*G
L

O
G

O
A

A
* 

C
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
 

P
A

G
E

 
3 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

 
T

IM
E

 
1

0
:2

9
 

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

8
 
-

5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 
A

P
P

R
. 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

Y
-T

-D
 

%
 

A
C

C
T

#
 

D
E

SC
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

-

2
0

0
0

 
D

E
N

T
A

L
 

IN
SU

R
A

N
C

E
 

C
O

N
T

R
IB

U
T

IO
N

S 
1

3
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
3

7
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

2
2

,7
8

4
.0

9
 

1
1

4
,2

1
5

.9
1

 
8

3
.3

6
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

2
,8

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,8

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
4

8
8

,8
7

5
.7

8
 

2
, 
3

2
8

,1
2

4
.2

2
 

8
2

.6
4

 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-2
0

1
 

1
8

9
9

 
* 

M
is

c
e
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s 

R
ev

en
u

e 
* 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
9

3
.9

5
 

3
,4

1
2

.8
8

 
3

,4
1

2
.8

8
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

2
4

0
1

 
* 

W
e
lf

a
r
e
 

* 
1

8
3

' 1
3

1
.0

0
 

1
8

3
' 1

3
1

.0
0

 
4

1
,1

5
3

.8
7

 
4

0
5

,6
8

7
.6

9
 

2
2

2
,5

5
6

.6
9

-
1

2
1

.5
2

-

3
3

0
5

 
* 

S
o

c
ia

l 
S

er
v

ic
es

 
* 

8
5

6
' 1

0
0

.0
0

 
8

5
6

,1
0

0
.0

0
 

6
5

,3
9

7
.2

0
 

6
2

6
,2

6
3

.3
6

 
2

2
9

,8
3

6
.6

4
 

2
6

.8
4

 

4
1

0
5

 
* 

F
u

n
d

 
T

r
a

n
sf

e
r
s 

* 
3

4
5

,7
3

0
.0

0
 

3
4

5
,7

3
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
3

6
,3

9
1

.1
0

 
2

0
9

,3
3

8
.9

0
 

6
0

.5
4

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
, 
3

8
4

' 
9

6
1

.0
0

 
1

, 
3

8
4

,9
6

1
.0

0
 

1
0

6
,7

4
5

.0
2

 
1

,1
7

1
,7

5
5

.0
3

 
2

1
3

,2
0

5
.9

7
 

1
5

.3
9

 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-2
0

5
 

1
8

0
3

 
* 

E
x

p
e
n

d
it

u
r
e
 

R
ef

u
n

d
s 

* 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
2

3
,0

8
4

.0
8

 
1

0
5

,1
3

6
.7

5
 

1
0

5
,1

3
6

.7
5

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

1
8

9
9

 
* 

M
is

c
e
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s 

R
ev

en
u

e 
"" 

1
4

5
,1

9
9

.0
0

 
1

4
5

,1
9

9
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

2
5

,6
2

7
.3

1
 

1
9

,5
7

1
.6

9
 

1
3

.4
7

 

2
4

0
2

 
* 

S
ta

te
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

* 
9

,4
6

5
,8

3
1

.0
0

 
9

,4
6

5
,8

3
1

.0
0

 
9

0
3

' 
2

9
1

.2
3

 
7

' 
9

5
4

' 
8

0
4

.7
2

 
1

,5
1

1
,0

2
6

.2
8

 
1

5
.9

6
 

2
4

0
3

 
* 

S
ta

te
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 

* 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

5
' 
6

8
0

.8
8

 
5

,6
8

0
.8

8
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

2
4

0
4

 
* 

S
ta

te
 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 
* 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
3

' 6
7

7
.5

5
 

3
2

,9
4

6
.1

8
 

3
2

' 
9

4
6

.1
8

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

3
3

0
2

 
* 

E
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
 
* 

1
, 
6

0
9

,1
4

1
.0

0
 

1
, 

6
0

9
,1

4
1

.0
0

 
2

0
7

,7
9

6
.6

5
 

1
, 
4

5
1

,7
8

2
.1

2
 

1
5

7
' 
3

5
8

.8
8

 
9

. 
7

7
 

4
1

0
5

 
* 

F
u

n
d

 
T

r
a

n
sf

e
r
s 

* 
3

,9
0

5
,4

1
9

.0
0

 
3

,9
0

5
,4

1
9

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
, 
9

5
0

,0
7

3
.3

6
 

1
,9

5
5

,3
4

5
.6

4
 

5
0

.0
6

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
5

,1
2

5
,5

9
0

.0
0

 
1

5
,1

2
5

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

1
,1

4
7

,8
4

9
.5

1
 

1
1

,6
2

6
,0

5
1

.3
2

 
3

,4
9

9
,5

3
8

.6
8

 
2

3
.1

3
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-2
0

7
 

1
5

0
1

 
* 

IN
T

E
R

E
ST

 
O

N
 

B
A

N
K

 
D

E
P

O
S

IT
S

 
* 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
5

,4
8

7
.8

7
 

5
,4

8
7

.8
7

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

1
8

9
9

 
M

IS
C

 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 
**

 
2

7
4

,9
8

7
.0

0
 

2
7

4
,9

8
7

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

2
4

,6
1

7
.2

1
 

2
5

0
,3

6
9

.7
9

 
9

1
.0

4
 

1
9

0
1

 
L

O
C

A
L

 
C

O
N

T
R

IB
U

T
IO

N
S

 
4

2
0

,9
4

0
.0

0
 

4
2

0
,9

4
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

2
7

0
,6

3
4

.5
6

 
1

5
0

,3
0

5
.4

4
 

3
5

.7
0

 

2
4

0
4

 
ST

A
T

E
 

FU
N

D
S 

**
 

5
9

4
,4

7
5

.0
0

 
5

9
4

,4
7

5
.0

0
 

7
0

,8
7

0
.6

7
 

3
8

9
,7

8
8

.6
6

 
2

0
4

' 
6

8
6

.3
4

 
3

4
.4

3
 

-
-F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
-

-
1

,2
9

0
,4

0
2

.0
0

 
1

,2
9

0
,4

0
2

.0
0

 
7

0
,8

7
0

.6
7

 
6

9
0

,5
2

8
.3

0
 

5
9

9
,8

7
3

.7
0

 
4

6
.4

8
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-3
0

2
 

1
5

0
1

 
* 

I
n

te
r
e
s
t 

O
n 

B
a

n
k

 
D

e
p

o
si

ts
 

* 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
,0

3
9

.9
4

 
1

, 
0

3
9

.9
4

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

4
1

0
5

 
* 

F
u

n
d

 
T

r
a

n
sf

e
r
s 

* 
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

. 
0

0
 

3
6

,0
3

9
.9

4
 

1
,0

3
9

.9
4

-
2

. 
9

7
-

F
U

N
D

 
#

-4
0

1
 

4
1

0
5

 
T

r
a

n
sf

e
r
s 

3
,0

9
6

,7
9

7
.0

0
 

3
,0

9
6

,7
9

7
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

' 
0

6
2

' 1
0

3
.5

2
 

3
4

,6
9

3
.4

8
 

1
.1

2
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

3
,0

9
6

,7
9

7
.0

0
 

3
,0

9
6

,7
9

7
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

, 
0

6
2

,1
0

3
.5

2
 

3
4

,6
9

3
.4

8
 

1
.1

2
 

185



5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

*
G

L
0

6
0

A
A

*
 

C
U

M
B

ER
LA

N
D

 
C

O
 

PA
G

E 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 
S

U
M

M
A

R
Y

 
T

IM
E

 
1

0
,2

9
 

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

8
 

-
5

/0
9

/2
0

1
9

 

B
U

D
G

ET
 

A
P

P
R

. 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
Y

-T
-D

 
%

 

A
C

C
T

# 
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
--

--
-

--
--

--
--

-
FU

N
D

 
#

-5
0

0
 

1
8

9
9

 
*M

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S 
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

* 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

8
,2

7
1

.4
9

 
8

,2
7

1
.4

9
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

2
4

0
4

 
*R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 
F

R
O

M
 

S
T

A
T

E
* 

5
0

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
5

0
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
9

2
,6

2
5

.2
0

 
5

4
0

,9
4

4
.0

6
 

4
0

,9
4

4
.0

6
-

8
.1

8
-

4
1

0
5

 
*T

R
A

N
SF

E
R

S*
 

2
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
2

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
2

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

-
-
-

--
F

U
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

--
7

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

7
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
1

9
2

,6
2

5
.2

0
 

7
9

9
,2

1
5

.5
5

 
4

9
,2

1
5

.5
5

-
6

. 
5

6
-

FU
N

D
 

#
-5

0
1

 

1
5

0
1

 
**

IN
T

E
R

E
S

T
 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
**

 
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
. 0

0 
.0

0
 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

 

1
6

1
9

 
**

C
H

A
R

G
E

S
 

&
 

F
E

E
S

*
*

 
4

1
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

4
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
3

2
,4

3
1

.4
0

 
3

3
7

' 8
7

3
.5

7
 

7
7

,1
2

6
.4

3
 

1
8

.5
8

 
1

6
2

0
 

S
E

W
E

R
 

L
A

T
E

 
P

A
Y

M
E

N
T

 
P

E
N

A
L

T
Y

 
7

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

7
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
4

6
5

.4
2

 
5

,0
9

3
.1

9
 

2
,4

0
6

.8
1

 
3

2
.0

9
 

1
6

3
0

 
**

A
D

M
IN

 
F

E
E

S
/C

H
A

R
G

E
S

**
 

1
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
,9

2
5

.5
0

 
1

4
,9

5
6

.9
1

 
1

,0
4

3
.0

9
 

6
.5

1
 

1
8

0
3

 
M

IS
C

E
L

L
A

N
E

O
U

S 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
,9

6
4

.4
0

 
1

,9
6

4
.4

0
-1

0
0

.0
0

-

-
-
-

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

4
4

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
4

4
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

3
4

,8
2

2
.3

2
 

3
5

9
,8

8
8

.0
7

 
8

3
' 6

1
1

.9
3

 
1

8
.8

5
 

FU
N

D
 

#
-5

1
5

 

1
5

0
1

 
IN

T
E

R
E

S
T

 
SE

W
ER

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
2

,2
8

8
.5

1
 

2
,2

8
8

.5
1

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

-
--

F
U

N
D

 
T

O
T

A
L

--
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

2
,2

8
8

.5
1

 
2

,2
8

8
.5

1
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

FU
N

D
 

#
-5

4
0

 

1
5

0
1

 
IN

T
E

R
E

ST
 

W
A

TE
R

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

3
3

.8
9

 
3

3
3

.8
9

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

--
F

U
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

--
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

3
3

3
.8

9
 

3
3

3
.8

9
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

FU
N

D
 

#
-5

4
5

 

1
2

0
0

 
D

SR
 

PA
Y

M
EN

TS
 

(F
R

 
U

T
IL

IT
Y

 
FU

N
D

) 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

3
,5

4
0

.0
0

 
3

,5
4

0
.0

0
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

1
5

0
1

 
IN

T
E

R
E

ST
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
9

.3
4

 
9

.3
4

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

--
F

U
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

--
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

3
,5

4
9

.3
4

 
3

,5
4

9
.3

4
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

FU
N

D
 

#
-5

5
0

 

1
2

0
0

 
D

SR
 

PA
Y

M
EN

TS
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

0
,2

2
4

.0
0

 
1

0
' 2

2
4

. 
0

0
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

--
F

U
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

--
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
0

,2
2

4
.0

0
 

1
0

,2
2

4
.0

0
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

FU
N

D
 

#
-5

·a
o

 

1
5

0
1

 
IN

T
E

R
E

S
T

 
R

EV
EN

U
E 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
.2

8
 

1
1

.8
1

 
1

1
.8

1
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

.0
0

 
.o

o
 

1
.2

8
 

1
1

.8
1

 
1

1
.8

1
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

186



S
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

*
G

L
0

6
0

A
A

*
 

C
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
 

PA
G

E
 

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

SU
M

M
A

R
Y

 
T

IM
E

 
1

0
o

2
9

 
7

/0
1

/2
0

1
8

 
-

5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 
A

P
P

R
. 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

Y
-T

-D
 

A
C

C
T

ij 
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--
-

FU
N

D
 

ij
-7

1
5

 

1
8

9
9

 
R

en
t 

o
f 

G
en

er
a

l 
P

r
o

p
e
r
ty

 
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
so

. 0
0

0
.0

0
 

7
,7

5
0

.0
0

 
4

1
,3

5
0

.0
0

 
8

,6
5

0
.0

0
 

1
7

.3
0

 
4

1
0

5
 

T
r
a

n
sf

e
r
 

fr
om

 G
en

er
a

l 
F

u
n

d
 

7
0

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

7
0

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
7

0
,5

9
0

.0
0

 
.o

o 
.0

0
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
2

0
,5

9
0

.0
0

 
1

2
0

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

7
,7

5
0

.0
0

 
1

1
1

,9
4

0
.0

0
 

8
,6

5
0

.0
0

 
7

.1
7

 

FU
N

D
 

ij
-7

3
3

 

1
8

9
9

 
* 

M
is

c
e
ll

a
n

e
o

u
s 

R
ev

en
u

e 
* 

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
,4

1
2

.8
0

 
1

4
,4

5
7

.0
6

 
5

,5
4

2
.9

4
 

2
7

.7
1

 

3
3

0
5

 
*F

E
D

E
R

A
L

 
F

U
N

D
S

* 
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

1
0

0
.0

0
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

2
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

2
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

1
,4

1
2

.8
0

 
1

4
,4

5
7

.0
6

 
9

, 
0

4
2

.9
4

 
3

8
.4

8
 

--
F

IN
A

L
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

4
0

,2
2

6
,8

5
9

.0
0

 
4

0
,2

2
6

,8
5

9
.0

0
 

3
, 

0
9

6
,7

7
3

.1
4

 
3

0
,4

4
3

,1
3

3
.9

5
 

9
,7

8
3

,7
2

5
.0

5
 

2
4

.3
2

 

187



5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

A
C

C
T

# 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-1
0

0
 

1
1

0
1

0
 

1
2

1
0

0
 

1
2

2
1

0
 

1
2

2
4

0
 

1
2

3
1

0
 

l2
3

2
0

 

1
2

4
1

0
 

1
2

4
3

0
 

1
2

5
1

0
 

B
1

0
0

 

1
.3

2
0

0
 

2
1

1
0

0
 

2
1

2
0

0
 

2
1

3
0

0
 

2
1

6
0

0
 

2
1

8
0

0
 

2
1

9
1

0
 

2
2

1
0

0
 

3
1

2
0

0
 

3
1

2
5

0
 

3
1

4
0

0
 

3
2

2
2

1
 

3
2

2
2

2
 

3
2

3
0

2
 

3
2

3
0

3
 

3
2

3
0

4
 

3
2

3
0

6
 

3
2

4
0

0
 

3
2

5
0

0
 

3
3

3
0

0
 

3
3

4
0

0
 

3
4

1
0

0
 

3
5

1
0

0
 

3
5

3
0

0
 

4
2

4
0

0
 

4
3

2
0

0
 

5
1

2
0

0
 

5
1

4
0

5
 

5
2

5
0

0
 

6
1

2
3

0
 

6
8

0
0

0
 

7
1

5
0

0
 

7
3

1
0

0
 

8
1

1
0

0
 

8
1

1
1

0
 

8
1

2
0

0
 

8
1

4
0

0
 

*
G

L
0

6
0

A
A

*
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

* 
B

o
a

rd
 
o

f 
S

u
p

e
r
v

is
o

r
s 

* 
• 

C
o

u
n

ty
 A

d
m

in
is

tr
a

to
r
 
* 

* 
L

e
g

a
l 

S
e
r
v

ic
e
s 

* 
* 

In
d

ep
en

d
en

t 
A

u
d

it
o

r
 
* 

* 
C

o
m

m
is

si
o

n
er

 o
f 

R
ev

en
u

e 
* 

* 
A

ss
e
ss

o
r
 
* 

* 
T

r
e
a

su
r
e
r
 *

 
* 

A
c
c
o

u
n

ti
n

g
 
* 

* 
D

a
ta

 
P

r
o

c
e
ss

in
g

 
* 

* 
E

le
c
to

r
a

l 
B

o
a

rd
 
* 

* 
R

e
g

is
tr

a
r
 
* 

* 
C

ir
c
u

it
 C

ou
rt

 
* 

* 
G

en
er

a
l 

D
is

tr
ic

t 
C

o
u

rt
 

* 
* 

M
a

g
is

tr
a

te
 

* 
* 

C
le

r
k

 
o

f 
C

ir
c
u

it
 

C
o

u
rt

 
* 

* 
L

aw
 

L
ib

r
a

r
y

 
* 

* 
V

ic
ti

m
 a

n
d

 
w

it
n

e
ss

 
A

ss
is

ta
n

c
e
 

* 
* 

C
o

m
m

o
n

w
ea

lt
h

's
 

A
tt

o
r
n

e
y

 
* 

* 
S

h
e
r
if

f 
* 

* 
S

c
h

o
o

l 
R

es
o

u
rc

e 
O

ff
ic

e
r
 
* 

* 
E

9
1

1
 
* 

*
C

U
m

b
er

la
n

d
 
V

o
l.

 F
IR

E
 

D
E

P
T

* 
*

C
a

r
te

r
sv

il
le

 V
o

lu
n

.•
 

*
P

r
in

c
e
 

E
d

w
ar

d
 
V

o
l.

 
R

es
cu

e 
S

q
u

a
d

*
 

*
R

a
n

d
o

lp
h

 
F

ir
e
 

D
ep

t.
 *

 
*

C
a

r
te

r
s
v

il
le

 V
o

l.
 

R
e
sc

u
e
 

S
q

u
a

d
*

 
*

C
h

e
st

e
r
fi

e
ld

 M
e
d

-F
li

g
h

t 
P

ro
gr

am
* 

* 
F

o
r
e
st

r
y

 
S

e
r
v

ic
e
 

* 
* 

C
U

M
BE

R
LA

N
D

 
F

IR
E

 
&

 
EM

S 
* 

• 
P

r
o

b
a

ti
o

n
 O

ff
ic

e
 

* 
* 

C
o

r
r
e
c
ti

o
n

 
&

 D
e
te

n
ti

o
n

 
* 

* 
B

u
il

d
in

g
 
In

sp
e
c
ti

o
n

s 
* 

* 
A

n
im

a
l 

C
o

n
tr

o
l 

* 
* 

M
ed

ic
a

l 
E

x
a

m
in

er
 

• 
* 

R
e
fu

se
 

D
is

p
o

sa
l 

* 
* 

G
en

er
a

l 
P

r
o

p
e
r
ti

e
s 

* 
* 

S
u

p
p

le
m

en
t 

o
f 

L
o

c
a

l 
H

e
a

lt
h

 
D

ep
t 

* 
*

P
ie

d
m

o
n

t 
S

e
n

io
r
 
R

e
so

u
r
c
e
s*

 
* 

C
h

a
p

te
r 

1
0

 
B

o
a

rd
 

-
c
r
o

ss
r
o

a
d

s 
* 

* 
C

SA
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

* 
* 

C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
C

o
ll

e
g

e
s 

* 
* 

R
e
c
r
e
a

ti
o

n
 
* 

* 
L

o
c
a

l 
L

ib
r
a

r
y

 
* 

* 
P

la
n

n
in

g
 

C
o

m
m

is
si

o
n

 
• 

* 
P

la
n

n
in

g
/Z

o
n

in
g

 
D

e
p

t.
 

* 
* 

C
om

m
u

n
it

y 
&

 E
co

n
o

m
ic

 
D

ev
el

o
p

m
n

t 
* 

* 
B

o
a

rd
 
o

f 
Z

o
n

in
g

 A
p

p
e
a

ls
 

* 

C
U

M
BE

R
LA

N
D

 
C

O
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
 

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

8
 

-
5

/0
9

/2
0

1
9

 

B
U

D
G

ET
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

4
6

,1
1

7
.0

0
 

2
9

8
,7

2
4

.0
0

 

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

3
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
5

9
,1

5
8

.0
0

 

1
0

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
9

3
,6

7
0

.0
0

 

1
5

7
,0

4
6

.0
0

 

3
0

5
.4

9
1

.0
0

 

2
5

,0
9

6
.0

0
 

9
7

,9
3

7
.0

0
 

1
4

,8
0

0
.0

0
 

7
,6

3
0

.0
0

 

1
,1

2
5

.0
0

 

2
2

4
,4

0
7

.0
0

 
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
 

6
9

,3
7

0
.0

0
 

2
2

1
,8

9
8

.0
0

 

1
,6

6
1

,3
9

3
.0

0
 

6
6

,4
0

4
.0

0
 

2
5

,2
0

0
.0

0
 

4
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

3
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

3
7

,9
7

0
.0

0
 

4
0

0
.0

0
 

8
,7

0
5

.0
0

 

4
8

0
,0

3
0

.0
0

 

5
5

0
.0

0
 

2
8

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

1
4

2
. 

9
8

1
.0

0
 

1
2

5
,8

0
0

.0
0

 

2 
0

0
.0

0
 

9
2

4
,6

7
4

.0
0

 

7
5

3
,6

2
6

.0
0

 

9
2

,4
1

7
.0

0
 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

3
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
3

.3
8

1
.0

0
 

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

6
3

,8
2

7
.0

0
 

1
1

5
,4

5
0

.0
0

 

9
,9

5
0

.0
0

 

8
3

. 
1

1
3

.0
0

 

1
9

, 
0

5
2

.0
0

 

6
5

0
.0

0
 

A
P

P
R

. 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

4
6

,1
1

7
.0

0
 

2
9

8
,7

2
4

.0
0

 
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
6

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
5

9
,1

5
8

.0
0

 

1
0

4
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
9

3
,6

7
0

.0
0

 

1
5

7
,0

4
6

.0
0

 

3
0

5
,4

9
1

.0
0

 

2
5

,0
9

6
.0

0
 

9
7

,9
3

7
.0

0
 

1
4

,8
0

0
.0

0
 

7
,6

3
0

.0
0

 

1
,1

2
5

.0
0

 

2
2

4
,4

0
7

.0
0

 

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

 

6
9

,3
7

0
.0

0
 

2
2

1
,8

9
8

.0
0

 

1
,6

6
1

,3
9

3
.0

0
 

6
6

,4
0

4
.0

0
 

2
5

,2
0

0
.0

0
 

4
4

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

3
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

1
0

. 
0

0
0

.0
0

 

3
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

3
7

,9
7

0
.0

0
 

4
0

0
.0

0
 

8
,7

0
5

.0
0

 

4
8

0
,0

3
0

.0
0

 

5
5

0
.0

0
 

2
8

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

1
4

2
. 

9
8

1
.0

0
 

1
2

5
. 

8
0

0
.0

0
 

2
0

0
.0

0
 

9
2

4
,6

7
4

.0
0

 

7
5

3
,6

2
6

.0
0

 

9
2

,4
1

7
.0

0
 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

3
4

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
3

.3
8

1
.0

0
 

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
6

3
,8

2
7

.0
0

 

1
1

5
,4

5
0

.0
0

 

9
,9

5
0

.0
0

 

8
3

.1
1

3
.0

0
 

1
9

,0
5

2
.0

0
 

6
5

0
.0

0
 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

4
,4

5
8

.7
5

 

2
5

,8
0

7
.6

5
 

1
,6

9
0

.0
0

 

.0
0

 
2

1
,1

2
0

.3
9

 

1
1

,0
2

1
.1

9
 

2
4

,8
7

0
.0

5
 

2
2

,9
6

5
.5

4
 

1
6

,4
4

5
.3

1
 

5
8

0
.3

8
 

6
. 

9
6

6
. 

9
8

 

.0
0

 

3
9

5
.2

1
 

.0
0

 

2
1

,6
9

9
.1

6
 

.0
0

 

1
, 
2

3
2

.1
3

 

1
8

,5
3

4
.1

2
 

1
4

4
,7

6
4

.7
3

 

9
. 
6

2
2

.2
5

 

9
3

6
.6

4
 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 
8

5
,0

8
7

.9
8

 

.0
0

 

3
1

,9
3

9
.0

0
 

1
1

,4
7

9
.3

4
 

9
, 

8
4

7
.6

2
 

.0
0

 
2

3
,8

3
5

.2
9

 

6
9

,7
5

9
.6

4
 

2
2

,8
6

4
.2

5
 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

2
,1

5
2

.2
7

 
.0

0
 

2
,0

6
8

.4
1

 

.0
0

 

1
,1

0
5

.2
0

 

5
,4

9
3

.2
6

 

1
,5

7
1

.6
4

 

.0
0

 

Y
-T

-D
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

3
4

,5
4

4
.7

0
 

2
6

1
,4

0
8

.1
5

 

8
3

.5
7

6
.3

4
 

4
6

, 
2

6
3

.5
7

 

1
9

9
,4

7
8

.4
4

 
1

9
,7

4
5

.4
6

 

2
3

7
.4

8
8

.8
8

 

2
7

7
.0

9
6

.0
7

 

1
9

0
,6

6
4

.6
9

 

1
5

, 
8

6
8

.8
8

 

6
8

. 
0

6
8

.6
5

 

1
0

,6
7

6
.4

8
 

5
' 

4
5

4
.0

1
 

.0
0

 

1
9

6
,5

0
3

.2
7

 

3
6

0
.3

1
 

1
5

,0
4

5
.0

0
 

1
7

0
,9

4
5

.4
5

 

1
,3

0
5

,0
4

6
.3

6
 

7
2

. 
3

8
1

.5
8

 

4
,6

8
2

.6
0

 

5
5

.7
0

1
.6

7
 

5
0

.7
0

1
.6

7
 

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

so
, 7

0
1

.6
7

 

3
7

,9
7

0
.0

0
 

4
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

5
1

2
,5

8
7

.1
0

 

5
6

.0
0

 

6
1

7
,1

9
5

.9
2

 

1
0

7
.8

8
3

.1
0

 

8
5

,4
3

7
.5

2
 

4
0

.0
0

 
6

7
7

,4
1

3
.0

9
 

6
2

4
,6

4
6

.0
0

 

7
9

,6
1

5
.1

0
 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

3
4

. 
0

0
0

. 
0

0
 

2
7

,8
4

4
.3

9
 

8
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

4
7

,6
7

2
.2

7
 

1
1

5
.4

5
0

.0
0

 

6
,6

2
8

.4
4

 

6
8

,1
1

0
.1

3
 

1
6

,6
2

3
.6

4
 

.0
0

 

T
IM

E
 

EN
C

U
M

B
R

A
N

C
E 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

P
A

G
E

 

U
N

EN
C

U
M

B
ER

ED
 

%
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

R
E

M
A

IN
IN

G
 

1
1

,5
7

2
.3

0
 

3
7

,3
1

5
.8

5
 

2
5

.0
9

 

1
2

.4
9

 

8
2

,5
7

6
.3

4
-
2

5
7

.6
3

-

1
0

, 
2

6
3

.5
7

-
2

8
. 
so

-
5

9
,6

7
9

.5
6

 

8
4

,2
5

4
.5

4
 

5
6

,1
8

1
.1

2
 

1
2

0
,0

5
0

.0
7

-

1
.1

4
,8

2
6

.3
1

 

9
, 
2

2
7

.1
2

 

2
9

,8
6

8
.3

5
 

4
,1

2
3

.5
2

 

2
,1

7
5

.9
9

 

1
,1

2
5

.0
0

 

2
7

,9
0

3
.7

3
 

8
3

9
.6

9
 

5
4

,3
2

5
.0

0
 

5
0

, 
9

5
2

.5
5

 

3
5

6
,3

4
6

.6
4

 

5
, 

9
7

7
.5

8
-

2
0

,5
1

7
.4

0
 

1
1

,2
0

1
.6

7
-

1
1

,2
0

1
.6

7
-

.0
0

 
1

1
,2

0
1

.6
7

-
_o

o 
.0

0
 

8
,7

0
5

.0
0

 

3
2

.5
5

7
.1

0
-

4
9

4
.0

0
 

2
3

.0
2

 

8
1

.0
1

 

1
9

.1
3

 

7
6

.4
4

-
3

7
.5

8
 

3
6

.7
6

 

3
0

.4
9

 

2
7

.8
6

 

2
8

.5
1

 

1
0

0
.0

0
 

1
2

.4
3

 

6
9

.9
7

 

7
8

.3
1

 

2
2

.9
6

 

2
1

.4
4

 

9
.0

0
-

8
1

.4
1

 

2
5

.1
7

-

2
8

.3
5

-

.0
0

 
2

8
.3

5
-

_o
o 

.0
0

 

1
0

0
.0

0
 

6
. 
7

8
-

8
9

.8
1

 
3

3
2

,1
9

5
.9

2
-
1

1
6

.5
5

-

3
5

. 
0

9
7

.9
0

 
2

4
.5

4
 

4
0

,3
6

2
.4

8
 

3
2

.0
8

 

1
6

0
.0

0
 

8
0

.0
0

 

2
4

7
.2

6
0

.9
1

 
2

6
.7

4
 

1
2

8
,9

8
0

.0
0

 
1

7
.1

1
 

1
2

. 
8

0
1

.9
0

 
1

3
.8

5
 

. 
0

0
 

. 
0

0
 

. 0
0

 
. 
0

0
 

5
,5

3
6

.6
1

 
1

6
.5

8
 

. 
0

0
 

. 
0

0
 

1
6

,1
5

4
.7

3
 

2
5

.3
1

 

. 
0

0
 

. 
0

0
 

3
,3

2
1

.5
6

 
3

3
.3

8
 

1
5

,0
0

2
.8

7
 

1
8

.0
5

 

2
,4

2
8

.3
6

 
1

2
.7

4
 

6
5

0
.0

0
 

1
0

0
.0

0
 

188



5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

*
G

L
0

6
0

A
A

*
 

C
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
 

PA
G

E
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
 

T
IM

E
 

1
0

o
2

9
 

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

8
 

-
5

/0
9

/2
0

1
9

 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 
A

P
P

R
. 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

Y
-T

-D
 

EN
C

U
M

B
R

A
N

C
E 

U
N

E
N

C
U

M
B

E
R

E
D

 
A

C
C

T
H

 
D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
A

M
O

U
N

T 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
R

E
M

A
IN

IN
G

 
--

--
--

--
--

-

8
1

5
1

4
 

T
r
a

n
sp

o
r
ta

ti
o

n
 

1
0

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

1
0

' 5
9

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

0
,5

9
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

 

8
1

5
3

5
 

* 
F

a
r
m

v
il

le
 

A
re

a
 

C
h

a
m

b
e

r 
o

f 
c

o
m

m
e

rc
 

1
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

8
1

5
4

1
 

* 
L

on
gw

oo
d

 
S

m
a

ll
 

B
u

s.
 

D
e

v
. 

C
tr

. 
* 

3
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
8

1
5

4
2

 
* 

so
u

th
si

d
e
 
V

io
le

n
c
e
 

P
r
e
v

e
n

ti
o

n
 
* 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

8
2

4
0

1
 

*
P

e
te

r
 
F

r
a

n
c
is

c
o

 
SW

D
* 

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

8
3

5
0

0
 

* 
E

x
te

n
si

o
n

 A
g

e
n

ts
 

* 
5

3
,3

2
9

.0
0

 
5

3
,3

2
9

.0
0

 
1

2
,0

3
0

.7
3

 
3

9
,1

6
1

.9
4

 
.0

0
 

1
4

,1
6

7
.0

6
 

2
6

.5
6

 

8
3

5
0

1
 

h
o

li
d

a
y

 
la

k
e
 

4
-h

 
e
d

u
c
a

ti
o

n
a

l 
c
e
n

te
r
 

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

9
0

0
0

0
 

* 
N

O
N

D
E

PA
R

T
M

E
N

T
A

L
 

* 
1

9
,1

2
2

.0
0

 
1

9
,1

2
2

.0
0

 
8

9
8

.4
8

 
8

,4
5

8
.9

5
 

.0
0

 
1

0
,6

6
3

. 
O

S 
5

5
.7

6
 

9
3

1
0

0
 

*
*

T
R

A
N

S
F

E
R

S
*

*
 

7
,7

0
3

,5
3

6
.0

0
 

7
,7

0
3

,5
3

6
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
5

,5
0

4
,1

5
7

.9
8

 
.0

0
 

2
,1

9
9

,3
7

8
.0

2
 

2
8

.5
5

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
5

,0
8

4
,5

1
9

.0
0

 
1

5
,0

8
4

,5
1

9
.0

0
 

6
1

3
,2

4
3

.5
9

 
1

2
,0

2
8

,7
5

5
.4

7
 

.0
0

 
3

,0
5

5
,7

6
3

.5
3

 
2

0
.2

5
 

FU
N

D
 

H
-1

5
0

 

2
2

1
0

0
 

C
O

M
M

O
N

W
E

A
L

T
H

'S
 

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

 
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
9

8
.2

6
 

2
,1

5
2

.1
1

 
.0

0
 

2
,8

4
7

.8
9

 
5

6
.9

5
 

3
1

2
0

0
 

SH
E

R
IF

F
 

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

5
0

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

5
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

9
8

.2
6

 
2

,1
5

2
.1

1
 

.0
0

 
5

2
,8

4
7

.8
9

 
9

6
.0

8
 

FU
N

D
 

H
-1

7
0

 

6
2

1
0

0
 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 
IN

S
U

R
A

N
C

E
 

2
,6

8
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,6

8
9

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

,0
9

5
,1

6
6

.5
3

 
.0

0
 

1
,5

9
4

,3
3

3
.4

7
 

5
9

.2
7

 

6
3

1
0

0
 

D
E

N
T

A
L

 
IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E

 
1

1
5

' 0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
1

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

5
1

,3
7

8
.9

9
 

.0
0

 
6

3
,6

2
1

.0
1

 
5

5
.3

2
 

6
4

1
0

0
 

P
A

T
IE

N
T

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
E

D
 

O
U

TC
O

M
E 

F
E

E
(P

C
O

R
) 

1
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

1
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
5

4
6

.9
2

 
.0

0
 

1
1

, 
9

5
3

.0
8

 
9

5
.6

2
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

2
,8

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

2
,8

1
7

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
1

,1
4

7
' 0

9
2

.4
4

 
.0

0
 

1
, 

6
6

9
,9

0
7

.5
6

 
5

9
.2

7
 

FU
N

D
 

H
-2

0
1

 

5
3

1
0

0
 
. Ad

m
in

is
tr

a
ti

o
n

 
* 

1
,3

8
4

,9
6

1
.0

0
 

1
,3

8
4

,9
6

1
.0

0
 

1
1

7
,6

3
8

.7
3

 
1

, 
1

8
2

,6
4

8
.7

4
 

.0
0

 
2

0
2

,3
1

2
.2

6
 

1
4

.6
0

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
, 
3

8
4

' 
9

6
1

.0
0

 
1

,3
8

4
, 

9
6

1
.0

0
 

1
1

7
,6

3
8

.7
3

 
1

, 1
8

2
,6

4
8

.7
4

 
.0

0
 

2
0

2
,3

1
2

.2
6

 
1

4
.6

0
 

FU
N

D
 

ff
-2

0
5

 

6
1

1
0

0
 

1
5

,1
2

5
,5

9
0

.0
0

 
1

5
,1

2
5

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

1
0

6
,6

0
5

.5
8

 
1

0
,5

2
3

,7
6

3
.8

7
 

.0
0

 
4

, 
6

0
1

,8
2

6
.1

3
 

3
0

.4
2

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
5

,1
2

5
,5

9
0

.0
0

 
1

5
,1

2
5

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

1
0

6
,6

0
5

.5
8

 
1

0
,5

2
3

,7
6

3
.8

7
 

.0
0

 
4

,6
0

1
,8

2
6

.1
3

 
3

0
.4

2
 

FU
N

D
 

ff
-2

0
7

 

6
1

1
0

0
 

G
O

V
E

R
N

O
R

'S
 

SC
H

O
O

L
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

S 
1

,2
9

0
,4

0
2

.0
0

 
1

,2
9

0
,4

0
2

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

6
7

3
,8

1
1

.9
4

 
.0

0
 

6
1

6
,5

9
0

.0
6

 
4

7
.7

8
 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

1
,2

9
0

,4
0

2
.0

0
 

1
,2

9
0

,4
0

2
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
6

7
3

' 
8

1
1

.9
4

 
.0

0
 

6
1

6
,5

9
0

.0
6

 
4

7
.7

8
 

FU
N

D
 

H
-3

0
2

 

9
5

2
0

0
 

SH
E

R
IF

F
S 

O
F

F
IC

E
 

E
Q

U
IP

M
E

N
T

 
L

E
A

SI
N

G
 

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

.0
0

 
3

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

 

189



5
/0

9
/2

0
1

9
 

A
C

C
T

#
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-4
0

1
 

6
7

2
0

0
 

6
7

4
0

0
 

6
7

5
0

0
 

6
7

6
0

0
 

6
7

7
0

0
 

6
7

8
0

0
 

9
5

6
0

0
 

9
5

7
0

0
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-5
0

0
 

5
3

9
0

0
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-5
0

1
 

9
4

9
0

0
 

9
5

9
0

0
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-7
1

5
 

8
1

6
1

0
 

8
1

6
2

0
 

F
U

N
D

 
#

-7
3

3
 

5
3

0
1

0
 

*
G

L
0

6
0

A
A

*
 

C
U

M
B

E
R

L
A

N
D

 
C

O
 

E
X

P
E

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 
SU

M
M

A
R

Y
 

7
/0

1
/2

0
1

8
 

-
5

/0
9

/2
0

1
9

 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

B
U

D
G

E
T

 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

* 
E

le
m

en
ta

ry
 
S

c
h

o
o

l-
L

it
 

L
o

a
n

*
 

2
~
1
,
6
6
7
.
0
0
 

* 
C

O
P

S9
7 

L
o

a
n

 
* 

.0
0

 
* 

H
ig

h
/M

id
d

le
 

S
c
h

o
o

l 
-

V
P

SA
 
L

o
a

n
*

 
.0

0
 

* 
H

S
/M

S
-V

P
S

A
 

L
O

A
N

 
#

2
 

• 
l,

 2
0

0
, 

5
9

0
. 

0
0

 

P
U

B
L

IC
 

F
A

C
IL

IT
Y

 
N

O
T

E
 

2
0

0
9

 

* 
A

M
E

R
E

SC
O

 
* 

* 
S

u
n

T
ru

st
 

L
oa

n
-H

S
/M

S
 

* 
* 

S
u

n
tr

u
st

 
L

o
a

n
 

-
C

o
u

r
th

o
u

se
 

* 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

--
F

U
N

D
 T

O
T

A
L

--

* 
S

E
W

E
R

 
F

U
N

D
 

E
n

te
rp

ri
s

e
 

F
u

n
d

 
* 

* 
W

A
T

E
R

 
F

U
N

D
 

-
E

N
T

E
R

P
R

IS
E

 
F

U
N

D
 

* 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

C
O

M
M

U
N

IT
Y

 
C

E
N

T
E

R
 

P
U

R
C

H
A

S
E

 

M
A

D
IS

O
N

 
IN

D
U

S
T

R
IA

L
 

P
A

R
K

 

--
F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

-
-F

U
N

D
 

T
O

T
A

L
-

-

--
F

IN
A

L
 

T
O

T
A

L
--

3
8

9
,0

6
7

.0
0

 

1
5

4
' 3

9
4

.0
0

 

8
9

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

 

2
4

8
,5

7
9

.0
0

 

3
,0

9
6

,7
9

7
.0

0
 

7
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

7
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
7

2
,1

7
2

.0
0

 

1
7

1
,3

2
8

.0
0

 

4
4

3
,5

0
0

.0
0

 

1
2

0
,5

9
0

.0
0

 

.o
o 

1
2

0
' 5

9
0

.0
0

 

2
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

2
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

4
0

,2
2

6
,8

5
9

.0
0

 

A
P

P
R

. 
A

M
O

U
N

T
 

2
1

1
, 

6
6

7
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

1
,2

0
0

,5
9

0
.0

0
 

3
8

9
,0

6
7

.0
0

 

1
5

4
' 3

9
4

.0
0

 
8

9
2

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

2
4

8
, 

5
7

9
.0

0
 

3
,0

9
6

,7
9

7
.0

0
 

7
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

7
5

0
,0

0
0

.0
0

 

2
7

2
,1

7
2

.0
0

 

1
7

1
,3

2
8

.0
0

 

4
4

3
' 
5

0
0

.0
0

 

1
2

0
' 
5

9
0

.0
0

 
.0

0
 

1
2

0
,5

9
0

.0
0

 

2
3

' 5
0

0
.0

0
 

2
3

,5
0

0
.0

0
 

4
0

' 
2

2
6

' 
8

5
9

.0
0

 

C
U

R
R

E
N

T
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 .0
0

 

7
7

0
.0

0
 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 
1

3
,2

9
4

.0
4

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

1
4

,0
6

4
.0

4
 

. 0
0

 

.0
0

 

2
8

,1
0

8
.8

6
 

1
1

,7
2

4
.6

5
 

3
9

,8
3

3
.5

1
 

9
' 
1

6
3

.8
5

 
.0

0
 

9
,1

6
3

.8
5

 

1
,3

8
7

.8
0

 

1
,3

8
7

.8
0

 

9
0

2
,0

3
5

.3
6

 

Y
-T

-D
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

2
1

1
,6

6
6

.6
7

 

7
7

0
.0

0
 

8
9

2
,5

0
0

.3
6

 

1
,2

0
1

,3
4

0
.0

0
 

3
6

1
,5

7
1

.5
6

 

1
5

4
,3

9
4

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

2
5

3
' 
9

2
4

.9
7

 

3
, 

0
7

6
,1

6
7

.5
6

 

8
3

5
,9

7
2

.8
8

 

8
3

5
,9

7
2

.8
8

 

2
4

6
,9

8
7

.6
3

 

1
2

9
,2

3
5

.8
8

 

3
7

6
,2

2
3

.5
1

 

1
0

2
,1

5
8

.6
1

 

7
5

0
.0

0
 

1
0

2
' 
9

0
8

. 
6

1
 

1
3

' 3
0

6
.1

4
 

1
3

,3
0

6
.1

4
 

2
9

,9
6

2
,8

0
3

.2
7

 

T
IM

E
 

E
N

C
U

M
B

R
A

N
C

E
 

A
M

O
U

N
T

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

.0
0

 

P
A

G
E

 

U
N

E
N

C
U

M
B

E
R

E
D

 
%

 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
R

E
M

A
IN

IN
G

 

.3
3

 
. 

0
0

 

7
7

0
.0

0
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

8
9

2
,5

0
0

.3
6

-
1

0
0

.0
0

-

7
5

0
.0

0
-

. 
0

6
-

2
7

,4
9

5
.4

4
 

7
.0

6
 

. 
0

0
 

. 
0

0
 

8
9

2
,5

0
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

.0
0

 

5
,3

4
5

.9
7

-
2

.1
5

-

2
0

, 
6

2
9

.4
4

 
.6

6
 

8
5

,9
7

2
.8

8
-

1
1

.4
6

-

8
5

,9
7

2
.8

8
-

1
1

.4
6

-

2
5

,1
8

4
.3

7
 

9
.2

5
 

4
2

,0
9

2
.1

2
 

2
4

.5
6

 

6
7

' 
2

7
6

.4
9

 
1

5
.1

6
 

1
8

,4
3

1
.3

9
 

1
5

.2
8

 

7
5

0
.0

0
-

1
0

0
.0

0
-

1
7

,6
8

1
.3

9
 

1
4

.6
6

 

1
0

,1
9

3
.8

6
 

4
3

.3
7

 

1
0

,1
9

3
.8

6
 

4
3

.3
7

 

1
0

,2
6

4
,0

5
5

.7
3

 
2

5
.5

1
 

190



CUMBERLAND COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 

P. O. BOX 170 
CUMBERLAND, VIRGINIA  23040 

(804) 492-4212 
FAX (804)492-9869 

 
 
 
 
 

 
May 2, 2019 
 
TO:    Board of Supervisors of Cumberland County 
 
FROM: Amy W. Griffin, Ed.D. 
 
SUBJECT: Appropriation for Additional Funding for the 2018-2019 School Year  
 
 
On behalf of the Cumberland County School Board, we are requesting an appropriation in the 
amount of $659,009.28 for additional grant listed below: 
 

• Summer 2019 Southside Summer Regional Governor’s School    15,000.00 
• 2018-2019 Receipt Book       138,075.28 
• State Funding – March 31, ADM increase     505,934.00 

  
 
Copies of the grant and receipt book are attached. 
 
If you have any questions or concerns, please feel free to give me a call. 

 
 

 

AMY GRIFFIN, Ed.D. 
Division Superintendent 

GINGER SANDERSON 
School Board Chairman 
 
EURIKA TYREE.  
School Board Vice-Chairman 
 
GEORGE LEE DOWDY III 
School Board Member 
 
CHRISTINE ROSS, PH.D. 
School Board Member 
 
GEORGE REID 
School Board Member 

191



SCHOOL BOARD 
 

CUMBERLAND COUNTY PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
 
 
SUBJECT:        DATE: 
 
Supplemental Appropriations      May 2, 2019 
  
 
 
 
Background: 
 
The administration is requesting that the School Board petition the Cumberland County 
Board of Supervisors for the following supplemental appropriation: 
 

• Summer 2019 Southside Summer Regional Governor’s School    15,000.00 
• 2018-2019 Receipt Book       138,075.28 
• State Funding – March 31, ADM increase     505,934.00 

 
 
Recommendation: 
 
It is recommended that the Superintendent petition the Cumberland County Board of 
Supervisors for the following appropriations: 
 

• Summer 2019 Southside Summer Regional Governor’s School    15,000.00 
• 2018-2019 Receipt Book       138,075.28 
• State Funding – March 31, ADM increase     505,934.00 

 
 

 
 
Action: 
 
 
Approval 
 
 
 
 
Bd05-02-19SA 

192



193



194



195



196



197



.. 
L. 0. Pfeiffer, Jr. 

TREASURER OF CUMBERLAND COUNTY 

P.O. Box 28 
Cumberland, VA 23040 

(804) 492-4297 
Fax 492-5365 

May 1, 2019 

Vivian Giles, County Administrator 
1 Courthouse Circle 
Cumberland, VA 23040 

Dear Vivian: 

This is to advise you that the County has received a donation in the amount of $250.00. 
The donor requested that these funds be used to support the efforts of the Cumberland County 
Animal Control at the animal shelter. 

I have attached the request for this supplemental appropriation and ask that it be 
forwarded to the Board of Supervisors for their approval. Please let me know if you need any 
additional information. 

CC: Nicci Edmondston 
Leigh Mcrae 

Sincerely, 

L. 0. Pfeiffer, Jr. 
Treasurer 

198



Request For Appropriation 

Department: 
Contributions to Civic/Comm Organizations(Friends of 

Cumberland County Animal Control) 

Code: 081560-5650 

Appropriate from: 

'C:''i.:'":. 
.. '>c'·•·.•·.· ' / ; ,,. '' ' ' ~ '··. ;,'> 

C:ode :;:' ·lte;rn .. :Amount 

3-100-001899-0037 Donations to Animal $250.00 
Shelter 

Appropriate to: 

... .·. '; .. ;···· 
1:: 

.. '''··: : .. ·. ·• ... 
Code·;,, •. ,, lte.m. : ·; ·. , .. Amount.'/. 

4-100-081560-5650 Friends ofCCAC $250.00 

Reason for Request: 

Donation by individual for support of Animal Shelter 

c:;;!' 0- /d: L _, 
-------------~~-------------------------

5-/--/? 
Signature Date 

Approved: 

Board of Supervisors Date 

199



Planning Projects Update 
April 2019 

Zoning: 
Pending Zoning Questions and Requests 

CUP’s and Rezoning Requests 
CUP 19-03 Timber Creek 

Event Barn 
202 Timbercreek 

Farm Dr 
The CUP request is to allow for public events with a larger 

crowd. 

CUP 19-04 Northfield 
Plantation 

189 Old 
Buckingham Rd 

The CUP request is to allow for the use of an event venue. 

CUP 19-05 Dowler LLA 
6533 Blenheim 

Road 
The CUP request is for aa lot line adjustment. 

Zoning Compliance Issues- One investigation. Three cases filed for injunction in the Circuit 
Court.  

Subdivisions: 
Approved Division 
Plat for a Deed of Trust 
Located in the Hamilton 
District of Cumberland 

County Virginia 

Baber Road 2 parcel subdivision 

Other Regulatory Functions: 
Erosion and Sediment Control Applications 

Henrico County- 
MEB/Haymes 

Cobbs Creek Clearing and grading for the main project has begun. 

Raman Enterprises, 
Inc 

Bear Creek 
Market 

Construction has begun. 

Brizzolara Home Columbia Road Agreement in Lieu of a Plan for a dwelling. 

Spec 43 
Cumberland 

Road 
Agreement in Lieu of a Plan for a dwelling. 

Calkins 
Cumberland 

Road 
Agreement in Lieu of a Plan for a dwelling. 

Code Amendment Questions 

Watershed Protection 
Ordinance 

Cobbs Creek 
Reservoir 

Watershed 

The Henrico County Attorney’s office has submitted a 
draft Ordinance to Cumberland for their review.  The 

Planning Commission held a workshop on the draft on 
June 12, 2017.  They held a second workshop meeting on 
September 11, 2017.  Staff is reviewing a draft prepared 

by the consultant. 

Definitions Countywide 

An update should happen as part of mixed use district.  
The first draft was completed as part of the initial review 
of the Ordinance for the mixed use district. Deferred by 
the Planning Commission until completion of CCR Plan 

Amendment. 

Business uses Countywide 

All business uses should be inclusive as the Ordinance 
moves from a less intensive to a more intensive business 
zone.  For instance, all uses in the B-3 should be included 
in B-2, and so on.  Deferred by the Planning Commission 

until completion of CCR Plan Amendment. 

200



Overlay district 
standards 

Anderson 
Highway 

between 45 and 
45 

Standards to require improved appearance in mixed use 
district around the Courthouse.  Deferred by the Planning 

Commission until completion of CCR Plan Amendment. 

Mixed Use Zoning 
District 

Cumberland 
Road and 
Anderson 
Highway 

Combine uses in B-3 and R-2 for a mixed use district.  
Deferred by the Planning Commission until completion of 

CCR Plan Amendment. 

Front Setback 
Along primary 

roads 

Look into reducing the amount of front setback along 
primary roads in the county. The current setback is 130 
feet, which could possibly be reduced with keeping the 

intent of the Zoning Code intact. 

 

201



MEMO 

Date: April 3, 2019 

To: Cumberland County Board of Supervisors 

Vivian Seay Giles, County Administrator/Attorney 

From:  JP Duncan, Planning Director 

Re:  CUP 19-05 Dowler LLA  
  

 

Recommendation: 

This CUP request is for a lot line adjustment that would increase the nonconformity of one 

parcel. Set a public hearing for May 14, 2019. 

 

General Information: 

 

Applicant: Darlene Dowler 

 

Requested Action: To grant a CUP that allows a lot line adjustment 

 

Location: These properties are located at 1120  and 1126 Cartersville Road, election district  

1, and are described by tax map parcels 29-A-59A and 29-A-60 

 

Lot Size: 3.04 acres 

 

Existing Land Use: Residential 

 

Comprehensive Plan Growth Area: Not in a growth area 

 

Staff Recommendation: Approval 

 

202



Mr. Chairman, I move that the Cumberland County Board of Supervisors adopt 
the resolution provided and that each member certify that, to the best of each 
member's knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted 
from open meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed 
meeting to which this certification resolution applies, (ii) only such public 
business matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed 
meeting were heard, discussed or considered by the Cumberland County 
Board of Supervisors, and (iii) no action was taken in closed session 
regarding the items discussed. 

203



The Board returned to regular session on a motion by the Chairman. 

A motion was made by Supervisor _________ adopted by the 
following vote: 

Mr. Osl
Mr. Banks
Mr. Ingle-
Mr. Meinhard -
Mr. Wheeler -

that the following Certification of a Closed Meeting be adopted in accordance 
with The Virginia Freedom of Information Act: 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of Cumberland County has 
convened a closed meeting on this date pursuant to an affirmative recorded 
vote and in accordance with the provisions of The Virginia Freedom of 
Information Act; and 

WHEREAS, Section 2.2-3712 of the Code of Virginia requires a 
certification by this Board that such closed meeting was conducted in 
conformity with Virginia law; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Board of Supervisors of 
Cumberland County hereby certifies that, to the best of each member's 
knowledge, (i) only public business matters lawfully exempted from open 
meeting requirements by Virginia law were discussed in the closed meeting to 
which this certification resolution applies, and (ii) only such public business 
matters as were identified in the motion convening the closed meeting were 
heard, discussed or considered by the Board of Supervisors of Cumberland 
County. 

No action was taken regarding the items discussed. 

204



Collection Rates - As of April 30, 2019 

Real Estate: · 

Tax Year- 2017 

Tax Year - 2018 

Personal Property: 

Tax Year- 2017 . 

Tax Year- 2018 

Current 

Collection 

% 

96.62% 

94.92% 

Current 

Collection 

Prior Year% Change 

96.68% -0.06% 

94.69% +0.23% 

% Prior Year% Change 

97.58% 97.32% + 0.26% 

91.79% 91.00% +0.79% 

205



Real Estate 

2001-2007 

2008 

2009 

2010 

2011 

2012 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 
2018 

Total 

Treasurer's Office 
Outstanding Collections Report 

April 30, 2019 

- As of 03/31/19 As of 04/30/19 Change %Collected 

$ 9,750.16 $ 9,750.16 

4,544.98 4,544.98 

6,127.53 6,127.53 

13,241.24 12,425.32 815.92 6.16% 

21,666.18 21,487.81 178.37 0.82% 

34,866.88 34,072.87 794.01 2.28% 

66,579.63 64,658.72 1,920.91 2.88% 
86,807.72 85,688.68 1,119.04 1.29% 

105,221.54 103,670.53 1,551.01 1.47% 
141,462.68 139,313.03 2,149.65 1.52% 
204,395.55 199,837.97 4,551.58 2.23% 
326,127.26 301,377.67 24,749.59 7.59% 

$ 1,020,791.35 $ 982,955.27 $ 37,830.08 

Personal Property 

As of 03/31/19 As of 04/30/19 Change %Collected 

2014 27,789.01 27,371.99 417.02 1.50% 

2015 33,218.75 32,537.69 681.06 2.05% 

2016 52,170.42 48,660~20 3,510.22 6.73% 

2017 84,605.78 76,782.13 7,823.65 9.25% 

2018 365,520.51 270,553.68 94,966.83 25.98% 

Total $ 563,304.47 $ 455,905.69 $ 107,398.78 

Abatements/ 
Exonerations 

Abatements/ 
Exonerations 

2,016.43 

2,121.05 

4,823.04 

206



-
-
-
-
-
-
-

--
-
-
-
-
-

4
/2

6
/1

9
 

*
G

L
0

7
0

*
 

C
U

M
B

ER
LA

N
D

 
CO

 
PA

G
E 

1 
FU

N
D

 
#

-9
9

9
 

* 
T

R
E

A
S

U
R

E
R

'S
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 
* 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

SH
E

E
T

 
T

IM
E

 
1

5
:4

7
 

3
/3

1
/2

0
1

9
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

PR
E

V
IO

U
S 

E
N

D
IN

G
 

N
U

M
B

ER
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

D
E

B
IT

 
C

R
E

D
IT

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--

* 
T

R
E

A
S

U
R

E
R

'S
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 
* 

1
0

0
-0

0
0

0
 

**
A

S
S

E
T

S
**

 
1

0
0

-0
1

0
5

 
C

A
SH

 
IN

 
O

F
F

IC
E

 
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

-0
1

1
5

 
C

&
F 

B
A

N
K

 
-

C
H

E
C

K
IN

G
 

1
4

1
,4

0
0

.8
8

 
2

,0
1

7
,3

1
3

.1
4

 
1

,9
3

1
,1

2
8

.2
3

-
2

2
7

,5
8

5
.7

9
 

1
0

0
-0

1
2

0
 

C
&

F 
B

A
N

K
 

-
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 

A
C

C
T

 
5

0
0

.2
2

 
5

0
0

.2
2

-
1

0
0

-0
1

2
1

 
C

&
F 

B
A

N
K

 
-

SA
V

IN
G

S 
A

C
C

T
 

1
6

,3
6

1
.8

3
 

9
,4

4
0

.9
9

 
2

5
,8

0
2

.8
2

 
1

0
0

-0
1

2
2

 
E

S
S

E
X

 
B

A
N

K
-I

P
R

 A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
1

4
,0

8
4

.0
3

 
1

. 
0

8
 

1
4

,0
8

5
.1

1
 

1
0

0
-0

1
2

4
 

E
S

S
E

X
 

B
A

N
K

 
-

CD
 

1
0

0
-0

1
2

5
 

C
&

F 
B

A
N

K
-F

A
F

(J
U

S
T

IC
E

) 
9

,6
5

4
.9

2
 

2
.2

1
 

9
,6

5
7

.1
3

 
1

0
0

-0
1

3
1

 
F

IR
S

T
 

B
A

N
K

 
6

9
9

,0
1

0
.8

7
 

1
,5

5
7

.1
2

 
7

0
0

,5
6

7
.9

9
 

1
0

0
-0

1
3

5
 

V
IR

G
IN

IA
 

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 
PO

O
L 

1
,0

1
9

,1
2

9
.4

7
 

2
,2

3
9

.3
1

 
1

,0
2

1
,3

6
8

.7
8

 
1

0
0

-0
1

3
7

 
LO

C
A

L 
G

O
V

 
IN

V
E

ST
M

E
N

T
 

PO
O

L 
9

3
3

,3
8

8
.0

7
 

2
,0

4
0

.0
8

 
9

3
5

,4
2

8
.1

5
 

1
0

0
-0

1
4

1
 

F
IR

S
T

 
B

A
N

K
/S

E
W

E
R

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

1
2

8
,7

0
6

.7
6

 
2

8
6

.7
1

 
1

2
8

,9
9

3
.4

7
 

1
0

0
-0

1
4

2
 

F
IR

S
T

 
B

A
N

K
/W

A
T

E
R

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

1
8

,7
7

8
.4

1
 

4
1

.8
3

 
1

8
;8

2
0

.2
4

 
1

0
0

-0
1

4
3

 
C

&
F 

B
A

N
K

/A
S

S
E

T
 

F
O

R
F

E
IT

U
R

E
 

(S
A

F
) 

7
3

,6
6

6
.7

9
 

1
7

.8
6

 
7

3
,6

8
4

.6
5

 
1

0
0

-0
1

4
4

 
V

A
 

IN
V

E
ST

M
E

N
T

 
P

O
O

L
-I

D
A

-O
E

S
 

D
SR

 
9

4
,1

3
2

.8
8

 
9

4
,1

3
2

.8
8

 
1

0
0

-0
1

4
5

 
C

&
F 

B
A

N
K

-G
O

V
E

R
N

O
R

'S
 

SC
H

O
O

L
 

FU
N

D
 

5
9

8
,9

3
4

.9
2

 
7

0
,8

9
5

.4
7

 
6

7
,3

5
8

.5
8

-
6

0
2

' 4
7

1
.8

1
 

1
0

0
-0

1
4

6
 

E
S

S
E

X
 

B
A

N
K

-W
A

T
E

R
L

IN
E

 
EX

T 
D

SR
 

A
C

C
T

 
1

7
,7

2
9

.5
3

 
4

.3
8

 
1

7
,7

3
3

.9
1

 
1

0
0

-0
1

5
5

 
R

E
T

U
R

N
E

D
 

C
H

EC
K

S 
5

0
.0

0
 

5
0

.0
0

 
1

0
0

-0
1

6
0

 
E&

S 
C

O
N

TR
O

L 
B

O
N

D
 

E
SC

R
O

W
-E

SS
E

X
 

B
A

N
K

 
**

A
S

S
E

T
S

**
 

3
,7

6
6

,0
2

9
.3

6
 

2
,1

0
4

,3
4

0
.4

0
 

1
,9

9
8

,9
8

7
.0

3
-

3
,8

7
1

,3
8

2
.7

3
 

T
O

T
A

L
 

A
S

S
E

T
S

 
3

,7
6

6
,0

2
9

.3
6

 
2

,1
0

4
,3

4
0

.4
0

 
1

,9
9

8
,9

8
7

.0
3

-
3

,8
7

1
,3

8
2

.7
3

 

3
0

0
-0

0
0

0
 

**
R

E
V

E
N

U
E

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S*
* 

3
0

0
-0

1
0

0
 

G
E

N
E

R
A

L
 

FU
N

D
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

4
,0

0
1

,8
3

6
.5

7
-

4
9

2
,7

3
5

.2
1

 
4

9
3

,5
1

5
.6

2
-

4
,0

0
2

,6
1

6
.9

8
-

3
0

0
-0

1
2

0
 

E
C

O
N

O
M

IC
 

D
E

V
E

L
O

PM
E

N
T

 
FU

N
D

 
3

8
,8

7
1

.0
0

-
3

8
' 8

7
1

.0
0

-
3

0
0

-0
1

5
0

 
A

S
S

E
T

 
F

O
R

F
E

IT
U

R
E

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
8

1
,2

6
7

.8
6

-
2

0
.0

7
-

8
1

,2
8

7
.9

3
-

3
0

0
-0

1
7

0
 

H
E

A
L

T
H

 
IN

SU
R

A
N

C
E

 
FU

N
D

 
1

,2
9

9
,4

7
0

.5
3

 
1

,2
9

9
,4

7
0

.5
3

 
3

0
0

-0
2

0
1

 
S

O
C

IA
L

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
S

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

 
1

,3
2

2
.0

7
-

1
2

0
,9

0
6

.1
9

 
1

1
9

,5
8

4
.1

2
-

3
0

0
-0

2
0

4
 

SC
H

O
O

L
 

C
O

N
T

IN
G

E
N

C
Y

 
FU

N
D

 
3

0
0

-0
2

0
5

 
SC

H
O

O
L

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
1

,2
5

3
,2

4
1

.0
7

 
1

,3
1

4
,2

8
4

.5
9

-
6

1
,0

4
3

.5
2

-
3

0
0

-0
2

0
7

 
G

O
V

E
R

N
O

R
'S

 
SC

H
O

O
L 

FU
N

D
 

(G
S

S
V

) 
5

9
8

,9
3

4
.9

2
-

6
7

,3
5

8
.5

8
 

7
0

,8
9

5
.4

7
-

6
0

2
,4

7
1

.8
1

-
3

0
0

-0
3

0
2

 
C

A
P

IT
A

L
 

P
R

O
JE

C
T

S
 

FU
N

D
 

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

1
0

2
,1

9
3

.3
7

-
1

7
3

.5
9

-
1

0
2

,3
6

6
.9

6
-

3
0

0
-0

4
0

1
 

D
E

B
T

 
S

E
R

V
IC

E
 

FU
N

D
 

1
3

,2
9

4
.0

4
 

1
3

,2
9

4
.0

4
-

3
0

0
-0

5
0

0
 

C
O

M
PR

E
H

E
N

SI
V

E
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

S
 

A
C

T
 

6
9

,3
6

9
.0

1
 

1
0

,3
2

5
.0

0
 

4
9

,7
2

4
.6

0
-

2
9

,9
6

9
.4

1
 

3
0

0
-0

5
0

1
 

U
T

IL
IT

Y
 

FU
N

D
 

(W
A

T
E

R
/ S

E
W

E
R

) 
4

8
,3

1
4

.3
1

 
3

4
,2

8
4

.9
9

 
3

4
,3

1
9

.1
9

-
4

8
,2

8
0

.1
1

 
3

0
0

-0
5

1
5

 
SE

W
ER

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

FU
N

D
 

(D
SR

) 
1

2
8

,7
0

6
.7

6
-

2
8

6
.7

1
-

1
2

8
,9

9
3

.4
7

-
3

0
0

-0
5

4
0

 
W

A
TE

R
 

R
E

SE
R

V
E

 
FU

N
D

 
1

8
,7

7
8

.4
1

-
4

1
.8

3
-

1
8

,8
2

0
.2

4
-

3
0

0
-0

5
4

5
 

W
A

T
E

R
L

IN
E

 
E

X
T

 
D

SR
 

FU
N

D
 

1
7

,7
2

9
.5

3
-

4
.3

8
-

1
7

,7
3

3
.9

1
-

3
0

0
-0

5
5

0
 

ID
A

 
O

E
S 

R
D

 
D

SR
 

FU
N

D
 

9
4

,1
3

2
.8

8
-

9
4

,1
3

2
.8

8
-

3
0

0
-0

5
8

0
 

IP
R

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
1

4
,0

8
4

.0
3

-
1

. 
0

8
-

1
4

,0
8

5
.1

1
-

3
0

0
-0

7
1

5
 

ID
A

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
1

5
,6

8
6

.8
9

-
9

,2
1

6
.6

5
 

3
,9

7
5

.0
0

-
1

0
,4

4
5

.2
4

-
3

0
0

-0
7

3
3

 
S

P
E

C
IA

L
 

W
EL

FA
R

E 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
1

4
' 3

0
1

.3
1

-
6

9
3

.9
0

-
1

4
,9

9
5

.2
1

-
**

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
 

FU
N

D
 

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
S*

* 
3

' 
7

1
0

' 6
9

1
.7

5
-

2
' 
0

0
1

' 3
6

1
.7

3
 

2
,1

0
0

,8
1

4
.1

9
-

3
,8

1
0

,1
4

4
.2

1
-

T
O

T
A

L
 

P
R

IO
R

 
Y

R
 

FU
N

D
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

3
,7

1
0

,6
9

1
.7

5
-

2
,0

0
1

,3
6

1
.7

3
 

2
,1

0
0

,8
1

4
.1

9
-

3
,8

1
0

,1
4

4
.2

1
-

'T
O

T
A

L
 

R
EV

EN
U

E 
T

O
T

A
L

 
E

X
PE

N
D

IT
U

R
E

 
T

O
T

A
L

 
C

U
R

R
E

N
T

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 

T
O

T
A

L
 

L
IA

B
IL

IT
IE

S
 

A
N

D
 

FU
N

D
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

3
,7

1
0

,6
9

1
.7

5
-

2
' 
0

0
1

' 3
6

1
.7

3
 

2
,1

0
0

,8
1

4
.1

9
-

3
,8

1
0

,1
4

4
.2

1
-

207



4
/2

6
/1

9
 

*
G

L
0

7
0

*
 

C
U

M
B

ER
LA

N
D

 
CO

 
PA

G
E 

2 
FU

N
D

 
#

-9
9

9
 

* 
T

R
E

A
S

U
R

E
R

'S
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 
* 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

S
H

E
E

T
 

T
IM

E
 

1
5

:4
7

 
3

/3
1

/2
0

1
9

 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

P
R

E
V

IO
U

S
 

E
N

D
IN

G
 

N
U

M
B

ER
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

D
E

B
IT

 
C

R
E

D
IT

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--

4
0

0
-0

0
0

0
 

**
O

T
H

E
R

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S*
* 

4
0

0
-0

1
0

5
 

O
V

E
R

PA
Y

M
E

N
T

S 
9

6
.8

3
-

2
,6

7
7

.9
9

 
2

,5
9

2
.7

7
-

1
1

.6
1

-
4

0
0

-0
1

1
0

 
P

R
E

P
A

ID
 

T
A

X
E

S 
5

5
,1

0
3

.5
3

-
5

0
.0

0
 

7
,2

3
6

.1
3

-
6

2
,2

8
9

.6
6

-
4

0
0

-0
1

4
0

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

D
E

B
IT

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

1
,2

0
0

.0
0

 
1

,2
0

0
.0

0
 

4
0

0
-0

1
5

0
 

C
O

M
M

O
N

W
EA

LT
H

 
C

R
E

D
IT

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

9
0

.0
0

-
3

,3
6

1
.5

2
 

3
,3

6
1

.5
2

-
9

0
.0

0
-

4
0

0
-0

1
6

0
 

E
R

O
S

IO
N

 
&

 S
E

D
 

C
O

N
TR

O
L 

B
O

N
D

 
ES

C
R

O
W

 
4

0
0

-0
2

1
0

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

FU
N

D
S 

P
A

ID
 

IN
 

E
R

R
O

R
 

4
0

0
-0

2
1

6
 

A
T

T
O

R
N

E
Y

 
F

E
E

S
 

4
7

.2
5

-
4

7
.2

5
-

**
O

T
H

E
R

 
FU

N
D

 
B

A
L

A
N

C
E

S*
* 

5
5

,3
3

7
.6

1
-

7
,2

8
9

.5
1

 
1

3
,1

9
0

.4
2

-
6

1
,2

3
8

.5
2

-

5
5

,3
3

7
.6

1
-

7
,2

8
9

.5
1

 
1

3
,1

9
0

.4
2

-
6

1
,2

3
8

.5
2

-

5
0

0
-0

0
0

0
 

**
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
T

A
X

E
S

**
 

5
0

0
-0

0
1

0
 

P
U

B
L

IC
 

S
E

R
V

IC
E

 
C

O
R

P
. 

T
A

X
E

S 
P

P
/R

E
 

4
. 

3
8

'-
4

.3
8

-
5

0
0

-0
0

7
4

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
2

0
1

9
 

R
E

A
L

 
E

ST
A

T
E

 
TA

X
 

5
0

0
-0

0
7

5
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
8

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

TA
X

 
3

5
6

,2
7

5
.2

7
 

1
,4

6
9

.1
7

 
3

1
,6

1
7

.1
8

-
3

2
6

,1
2

7
.2

6
 

5
0

0
-0

0
7

6
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
7

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

TA
X

 
2

1
3

,8
2

9
.5

8
 

9
,4

3
4

.0
3

-
2

0
4

,3
9

5
.5

5
 

5
0

0
-0

0
7

7
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
6

 
R

E
A

L
' 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

TA
X

 
1

4
4

,9
9

3
.8

4
 

3
,5

3
1

.1
6

-
1

4
1

,4
6

2
.6

8
 

5
0

0
-0

0
7

8
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
5

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

TA
X

 
1

0
7

' 9
4

1
.4

6
 

2
, 
7

1
9

.9
2

-
1

0
5

,2
2

1
.5

4
 

5
0

0
-0

0
7

9
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
4

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

TA
X

 
8

8
,7

3
0

.9
6

 
1

,9
2

3
.2

4
-

8
6

,8
0

7
.7

2
 

5
0

0
-0

0
8

0
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
3

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

T
A

X
E

S 
7

0
,9

2
3

.5
1

 
4

,3
4

3
.8

8
-

6
6

,5
7

9
.6

3
 

5
0

0
-0

0
8

1
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
2

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

T
A

X
E

S 
4

2
,3

2
6

.2
0

 
7

,4
5

9
.3

2
-

3
4

,8
6

6
.8

8
 

5
0

0
-0

0
8

2
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
1

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

T
A

X
E

S 
2

2
,7

6
6

.5
4

 
1

,1
0

0
.3

6
-

2
1

,6
6

6
.1

8
 

5
0

0
-0

0
8

3
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
0

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

T
A

X
E

S 
1

4
,3

2
4

.8
0

 
1

,0
8

3
.5

6
-

1
3

' 2
4

1
.2

4
 

5
0

0
-0

0
8

4
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

0
9

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

T
A

X
E

S 
6

, 
7

7
1

.4
1

 
6

4
3

.8
8

-
6

,1
2

7
.5

3
 

5
0

0
-0

0
8

5
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

0
8

 
R

E
A

L
 

E
ST

A
T

E
 

T
A

X
E

S 
5

,1
8

8
.8

6
 

6
4

3
.8

8
-

4
,5

4
4

.9
8

 
5

0
0

-0
1

5
0

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
2

0
0

7
/2

0
0

1
 

R
E

A
L

 
E

S
T

A
T

E
 

1
0

,9
6

5
.3

1
 

1
,2

1
5

.1
5

-
9

,7
5

0
.1

6
 

5
0

0
-0

1
5

7
 

2
0

1
3

 
V

E
H

IC
L

E
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

 
TA

X
 

5
0

0
-0

1
5

8
 

2
0

1
4

 
V

E
H

IC
L

E
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

 
TA

X
 

5
,9

8
7

.3
9

 
6

9
.0

0
-

5
,9

1
8

.3
9

 
5

0
0

-0
1

5
9

 
2

0
1

5
 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 
L

IC
E

N
S

E
 

TA
X

 
7

,7
0

4
.2

4
 

1
3

8
.0

0
-

7
,5

6
6

.2
4

 
5

0
0

-0
1

6
0

 
2

0
1

6
 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 
L

IC
E

N
S

E
 

TA
X

 
1

2
,2

6
5

.6
2

 
2

3
.0

0
 

3
6

4
.0

1
-

1
1

,9
2

4
.6

1
 

5
0

0
-0

1
6

1
 

2
0

1
7

 
V

E
H

IC
L

E
 

L
IC

E
N

S
E

 
TA

X
 

1
7

,3
1

8
.7

6
 

4
6

.0
0

 
8

3
0

.8
8

-
1

6
,5

3
3

.8
8

 
5

0
0

-0
1

6
2

 
2

0
1

8
 

V
E

H
IC

L
E

 
L

IC
E

N
S

E
 

TA
X

 
7

3
,3

4
3

.8
4

 
6

9
.0

0
 

1
0

,7
8

6
.2

9
-

6
2

,6
2

6
.5

5
 

5
0

0
-0

1
7

6
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

. 
2

0
1

3
 

PE
R

SO
N

A
L

 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 

TA
X

 
5

0
0

-0
1

7
7

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
. 

2
0

1
4

 
PE

R
SO

N
A

L
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 
TA

X
 

2
7

' 9
8

1
.1

5
 

1
9

2
.1

4
-

2
7

,7
8

9
.0

1
 

5
0

0
-0

1
7

8
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

. 
2

0
1

5
 

PE
R

SO
N

A
L

 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 

TA
X

 
3

3
,7

7
5

.3
9

 
5

5
6

.6
4

-
3

3
,2

1
8

.7
5

 
5

0
0

-0
1

7
9

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
. 

2
0

1
6

 
PE

R
SO

N
A

L
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 
TA

X
 

5
2

,8
7

9
.8

7
 

4
5

3
.2

8
 

1
,1

6
2

.7
3

-
5

2
,1

7
0

.4
2

 
5

0
0

-0
1

8
0

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
. 

2
0

1
7

 
PE

R
SO

N
A

L
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 
TA

X
 

8
8

,3
7

2
.0

4
 

4
7

5
.0

8
 

4
' 2

4
1

.3
4

-
8

4
,6

0
5

.7
8

 
5

0
0

-0
1

8
1

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
. 

2
0

1
8

 
PE

R
SO

N
A

L
 

PR
O

PE
R

T
Y

 
TA

X
 

4
3

2
,0

0
7

.1
8

 
1

,2
1

3
.2

6
 

6
7

,6
9

9
.9

3
-

3
6

5
,5

2
0

.5
1

 
5

0
0

-0
2

0
0

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

C
O

U
N

TY
 

T
A

X
E

S 
1

,8
3

6
,6

6
8

.8
4

-
1

5
0

,7
1

3
.6

0
 

2
,7

0
5

.8
7

-
1

' 6
8

8
' 6

6
1

.1
1

-
5

0
0

-0
4

0
0

 
U

N
C

O
LL

 
M

IS
C

 
F

E
E

S
 

3
,1

0
8

.3
2

 
3

,1
0

8
.3

2
 

5
0

0
-0

4
0

1
 

R
E

S
E

R
V

E
-M

IS
C

 
F

E
E

S
 

3
,1

0
8

.3
2

-
3

,1
0

8
.3

2
-

5
0

0
-0

8
0

0
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

W
A

TE
R

 
C

H
A

R
G

E
S 

1
7

,7
3

8
.4

0
 

9
,7

0
4

.8
4

 
8

,9
5

5
.2

1
-

1
8

,4
8

8
.0

3
 

5
0

0
-0

8
1

0
 

R
E

SE
R

V
E

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
W

A
TE

R
 

C
H

A
R

G
E

S 
1

7
,7

3
8

.4
0

-
8

,9
5

5
.2

1
 

9
,7

0
4

.8
4

-
1

8
,4

8
8

.0
3

-
5

0
0

-0
9

0
0

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
SE

W
ER

 
C

H
A

R
G

E
S 

2
9

,3
7

3
.9

0
 

2
3

,9
6

7
.0

4
 

2
6

,4
0

6
.9

3
-

2
6

,9
3

4
.0

1
 

5
0

0
-0

9
1

0
 

R
E

SE
R

V
E

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
SE

W
ER

 
C

H
A

R
G

E
S 

2
9

,3
7

3
.9

0
-

2
6

,4
0

6
.9

3
 

2
3

,9
6

7
.0

4
-

2
6

,9
3

4
.0

1
-

5
0

0
-1

0
1

3
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
3

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
6

,8
7

3
.9

9
 

3
,5

0
5

.2
2

-
3

,3
6

8
.7

7
 

5
0

0
-1

0
1

4
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
4

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
5

,6
1

0
.4

5
 

4
,1

1
6

.2
3

-
1

,4
9

4
.2

2
 

208



--
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-
-
-
-
-

4
/2

6
/1

9
 

*
G

L
0

7
0

*
 

C
U

M
B

ER
LA

N
D

 
CO

 
PA

G
E 

3 
FU

N
D

 
#

-9
9

9
 

* 
T

R
E

A
S

U
R

E
R

'S
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
A

B
IL

IT
Y

 
* 

B
A

LA
N

C
E 

S
H

E
E

T
 

T
IM

E
 

1
5

:4
7

 
3

/3
1

/2
0

1
9

 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T 

PR
E

V
IO

U
S 

E
N

D
IN

G
 

N
U

M
B

ER
 

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
 

B
A

L
A

N
C

E
 

D
E

B
IT

 
C

R
E

D
IT

 
B

A
LA

N
C

E 
--

--
--

--
--

-
--

--
--

--

5
0

0
-1

0
1

5
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
5

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
7

,0
3

7
.0

9
 

3
,8

1
6

.8
8

-
3

,2
2

0
.2

1
 

5
0

0
-1

0
1

6
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
6

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
6

,8
3

5
.7

2
 

3
,7

0
7

.6
4

-
3

,1
2

8
.0

8
 

5
0

0
-1

0
1

7
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
7

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
6

,2
5

3
.9

7
 

3
,3

9
2

.1
0

-
2

,8
6

1
.8

7
 

5
0

0
-1

0
1

8
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
8

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
4

,2
1

1
.1

9
 

3
,1

5
5

.4
4

-
1

,0
5

5
.7

5
 

5
0

0
-1

0
1

9
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

2
0

1
9

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

TA
X

 
5

0
0

-1
0

9
9

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
-U

N
C

O
L

L
E

C
T

E
D

 
R

O
L

L
B

A
C

K
 

T
A

X
E

S 
3

6
,8

2
2

.4
1

-
2

1
,6

9
3

.5
1

 
1

5
,1

2
8

.9
0

-
**

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

T
A

X
E

S
**

 
2

4
5

,1
8

9
.9

2
 

2
4

5
,1

8
9

.9
2

-

C
O

M
M

O
N

W
EA

LT
H

 
R

E
IM

B
-P

P
T

R
A

 
5

1
0

-2
0

1
3

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-2
0

1
3

 
8

7
1

,6
6

5
.1

9
 

8
7

1
,6

6
5

.1
9

 
5

1
0

-2
0

1
4

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-2
0

1
4

 
8

7
1

,4
8

0
.0

0
 

8
7

1
,4

8
0

.0
0

 
5

1
0

-2
0

1
5

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-2
0

1
5

 
8

6
7

,6
2

2
.7

5
 

8
6

7
,6

2
2

.7
5

 
5

1
0

-2
0

1
6

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-2
0

1
6

 
8

7
0

,9
2

5
.0

8
 

3
2

9
.7

2
 

8
7

1
,2

5
4

.8
0

 
5

1
0

-2
0

1
7

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-2
0

1
7

 
8

7
6

,8
2

0
.3

5
 

3
1

8
.9

5
 

1
0

2
.1

7
-

8
7

7
,0

3
7

.1
3

 
5

1
0

-2
0

1
8

 
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-2
0

1
8

 
8

7
2

,2
0

8
.7

0
 

5
0

8
.0

0
 

8
7

2
,7

1
6

.7
0

 
5

1
0

-9
9

9
9

 
E

ST
IM

A
T

E
D

 
CO

M
M

O
N

W
EA

LT
H

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

5
,2

3
0

,7
2

2
.0

7
-

1
0

2
.1

7
 

1
,1

5
6

.6
7

-
5

,2
3

1
,7

7
6

.5
7

-
C

O
M

M
O

N
W

EA
LT

H
 

R
E

IM
B

-P
P

T
R

A
 

1
,2

5
8

.8
4

 
1

,2
5

8
.8

4
-

2
4

6
,4

4
8

.7
6

 
2

4
6

,4
4

8
.7

6
-

6
0

0
-0

0
0

0
 

**
S

T
A

T
E

 
A

C
C

O
U

N
T

S*
* 

6
0

0
-0

1
7

3
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

. 
ST

A
T

E
 

IN
C

O
M

E 
T

A
X

-2
0

1
8

 
6

0
0

-0
1

7
4

 
U

N
C

O
L

L
. 

ST
A

T
E

 
IN

C
O

M
E 

T
A

X
-2

0
1

7
 

6
0

0
-0

1
8

5
 

E
ST

IM
A

T
E

D
 

ST
A

T
E

 
IN

C
O

M
E

 
T

A
X

-2
0

1
9

 
1

,9
9

4
.0

0
 

2
,9

9
4

.0
0

-
1

,0
0

0
.0

0
-

6
0

0
-0

1
8

6
 

E
ST

IM
A

T
E

D
 

ST
A

T
E

 
IN

C
O

M
E

 
T

A
X

-2
0

1
8

 
6

0
0

-0
1

9
0

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

U
N

C
O

L
L

E
C

T
E

D
 

ST
A

T
E

 
T

A
X

E
S 

2
,9

9
4

.0
0

 
1

,9
9

4
.0

0
-

1
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
**

S
T

A
T

E
 

A
C

C
O

U
N

T
S*

* 
4

,9
8

8
.0

0
 

4
,9

8
8

.0
0

-

4
,9

8
8

.0
0

 
4

,9
8

8
.0

0
-

7
0

0
-0

0
0

0
 

**
D

E
B

T
 

FU
N

D
S*

* 
7

0
0

-0
2

2
1

 
L

IT
E

R
A

R
Y

 
LO

A
N

 
-

EL
EM

EN
TA

R
Y

 
SC

H
O

O
L

 
1

,3
3

3
,3

3
3

.2
6

 
1

,3
3

3
,3

3
3

.2
6

 
7

0
0

-0
2

2
3

 
V

P
S

A
-H

S
/M

S
 

LO
A

N
 

#
2

 
1

4
,2

9
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

1
4

,2
9

5
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
7

0
0

-0
2

2
6

 
SE

W
ER

 
LO

A
N

 
-

FA
R

M
ER

S 
H

O
M

E 
A

D
M

 
1

,2
3

0
,0

6
7

.7
9

 
1

,2
3

0
,0

6
7

.7
9

 
7

0
0

-0
2

2
7

 
W

A
T

E
R

L
IN

E
 

EX
T 

L
O

A
N

-U
SD

A
 

8
6

9
,0

0
5

.6
6

 
8

6
9

,0
0

5
.6

6
 

7
0

0
-0

2
3

1
 

C
O

U
R

TH
O

U
SE

 
L

O
A

N
-S

U
N

T
R

U
ST

 
9

5
2

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

9
5

2
,0

0
0

.0
0

 
7

0
0

-0
2

3
6

 
P

U
B

L
IC

 
F

A
C

IL
IT

IE
S

 
N

O
T

E
-2

0
0

9
 

3
,2

9
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

3
,2

9
5

,0
0

0
.0

0
 

7
0

0
-0

2
3

7
 

V
P

S
A

-H
S

/M
S

 
LO

A
N

 
#

1
 

5
,9

5
3

,2
6

8
.0

0
 

5
,9

5
3

,2
6

8
.0

0
 

7
0

0
-0

2
3

9
 

ID
A

 
R

D
 

L
O

A
N

-O
E

S 
PR

O
PE

R
T

Y
 

1
,8

0
8

,7
8

1
.6

8
 

1
,8

0
8

,7
8

1
.6

8
 

7
0

0
-0

2
4

0
 

A
M

ER
ES

C
O

 
LO

A
N

 
6

4
0

,6
1

7
.0

0
 

6
4

0
,6

1
7

.0
0

 
7

0
0

-0
2

5
0

 
R

E
SE

R
V

E
 

D
E

B
T

 
FU

N
D

 
3

0
,3

7
7

,0
7

3
.3

9
-

3
0

,3
7

7
,0

7
3

.3
9

-
**

D
E

B
T

 
FU

N
D

S*
* 

209



# 
Tr
an

sa
ct
io
n
s

To
ta
l $

# 
H
el
p
ed

# 
Tr
an

sa
ct
io
n
s

To
ta
l $

# 
H
el
p
ed

1
7
1

$
4
,9
1
0
.7
8

1
0

1
7

3
3

$
1
,5
3
9
.4
8

1
6

2
3
8

$
1
,5
1
9
.5
0

1
5

1
8

2
0

$
8
6
9
.9
1

8
3

4
4

$
1
,5
4
6
.4
6

1
2

1
9

4
0

$
1
,3
5
9
.1
4

1
2

4
4
1

$
2
,2
6
5
.0
7

1
3

2
0

5
5
3

$
2
,8
7
6
.9
8

1
0

2
1

6
2
2

2
3

$
7
8
2
.6
8

1
6

7
2
3

3
5

$
1
,0
5
2
.7
5

1
1

8
5
4

$
2
,8
7
5
.4
0

8
2
4

2
9

$
2
,1
0
7
.0
0

2
3

9
3
4

$
2
,3
8
2
.1
0

8
2
5

4
1

$
1
,8
2
0
.5
4

1
4

1
0

3
3

$
1
,3
6
3
.0
5

1
4

2
6

3
7

$
1
,3
8
5
.2
6

5
1
1

3
1

$
1
,2
2
8
.2
5

6
2
7

1
2

4
1

$
2
,1
1
4
.9
4

1
3

2
8

1
3

2
9

8
7

$
3
,9
1
5
.4
5

2
1

1
4

3
0

8
6

$
4
,1
0
7
.3
4

1
4

1
5

3
3

$
1
,4
6
8
.3
2

9
3
1

1
6

2
4

$
1
,2
7
4
.0
9

6
9
2
8

$
4
4
,7
6
4
.4
9

2
6
4

Tr
an

sa
ct
io
n
s 
fo
r 
D
M
V
 S
e
le
ct

A
p
ri
l 2
0
1
9

P
re
p
ar
ed

 b
y 
C
o
m
m
is
si
o
n
er
 o
f 
R
ev
en

u
e'
s 
O
ff
ic
e

210



CUMBERLAND COUNTY 

BUILDING INSPECTIONS 
DEPARTMENT 

APRIL 
2019 

MONTHLY 
REPORT 

211



COUN1Yof 
CUMBERLAND 

VIRGINIA Current Month YTD Current Month YTD 

FOUNDED • I749 April 2018 2018 2019 2019 

Singlewides 0 4 1 2 

Buildi ng Official's Office 
Doublewides 1 6 1 3 

Leland H. Leeds 
Modular 0 1 1 1 

Building Official 
!leeds 1i'cumberlandcou111~ 'trguua go' 

New Homes 1 9 5 11 

Mackenzie Tate 
Bui lding Coordinator Ag & Exempt 0 0 0 0 

mtale 'l£lcumberlandcount~ 'trgtnJa go' 

Garages & Ca rports 5 12 3 9 

P 0 Box 110 Add itions & Remodels 6 12 3 8 
I Courthouse Circle 

Cumberland. VA 23040 
(804) 492-9114 Phone 

Mise 23 64 24 81 

Commercial 3 14 1 11 

Totals 39 122 39 127 

Total Fees Collected $4,113.87 $33,747.13 $6,859.23 $17,315.88 

E-911 Fees Collected $0.00 $168.00 $84.00 $204.00 

Total Estimated Value $691,190.00 $7,244,853.00 $1,278,065.00 $4,941,553.00 

Admin. Fees $20.00 $55.00 $20.00 $70.00 

CO 's Issued 7 14 1 9 

"''" cumberlandcount~ 'trg.Hlla go' 

212



 

   

MINUTES OF THE CUMBERLAND COUNTY 

PLANNING COMMISSION 

Regular Meeting 

Cumberland County Community Center, Rm. C-8 

Monday, March 25, 2019 

6:30 p.m. 

 

PRESENT:  Bill Burger, District 3, Chairman 

Randy Bryant, District 1, Vice-Chairman 

Hubert Allen, District 4 

Roland Gilliam, District 5 

  William Flippen, At-Large 

Leo Henderson, At-Large 

     

 

 ALSO PRESENT: JP Duncan, Planning Director 

    Vivian Giles, County Administrator/Attorney 

    David Meinhard, Board of Supervisors member 

        

        

ABSENT:  Stephen Donahue, District 2 

   

 

 

CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 

 

Chairman Burger called the Planning Commission’s regular meeting of Monday, March 25, 2019 

to order at 6:30 p.m. and a quorum was established. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to modify the agenda by adding the Bonbrook subdivision 

approval between items 4 and 5. Commissioner Henderson seconded. The motion carried 

unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to approve the 2/25/19 and 3/11/19 meeting minutes. 

Commissioner Gilliam seconded. The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

DISCUSSION: BONBROOK SUBDIVISION APPROVAL 

 

Mr. JP Duncan provided an overview of the Bonbrook Estate Subdivision which was previously 

presented to the Planning Commission. Bonbrook will have 27 lots and 3 private roads. The 

private roads will have to be built to public roads standards per Cumberland County Code. A 

public hearing was not required and, upon approval, the applicant will submit a final plat and a 

road maintenance agreement per County Code.  

213



 

   

 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to approve the Bonbrook Estate Subdivision plat as presented. 

Commissioner Bryant seconded the motion.  The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: CUP 19-02 RT 606 TRUCK & AUTO 

 

Mr. Duncan provided an overview of CUP 19-02 Rt 606 Truck & Auto. The CUP would allow the 

use of an auto garage essentially in the applicant’s backyard. The garage is situated off the road to 

allow for privacy. The applicant submitted signatures of neighbors supporting the arrangement. 

The applicant, Willie Bullock, spoke briefly about the project and the location in relation to the 

road and surrounding properties. The Planning Commission expressed concerns about the number 

of inoperable vehicles on the property.  

 

The Chairman opened the public hearing.  Ginger Sanderson of 2234 Cartersville Road 

understands the Planning Commission’s concerns and appreciates that prior incidences do not 

cloud the Planning Commission’s judgement of new businesses. With no other citizens signed up 

to speak, the Chairman then closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to table CUP 19-02 until the April Planning Commission 

meeting.  This would allow Mr. Duncan the opportunity to amend the language of the conditions to 

address the concerns expressed by the Planning Commission. Commissioner Gilliam seconded the 

motion. The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0.  

 

PUBLIC HEARING: REZ 19-02 PRICE RIGHT MINI STORAGE 

 

Mr. Duncan provided an overview of REZ 19-02 which would grant a rezoning from A-2 to B-3 

and bring the owner into compliance with the Code. This rezoning would also allow the owner to 

subdivide the land and place the business on one parcel and the house on another parcel.   

 

The Chairman opened the public hearing.  Giles Ward of 242 Raines Tavern Road inquired into 

the zoning change and what it means for the area as most of the neighbors are senior citizens. A 

list of by-right uses together with a list of conditional uses was provided to Mr. Ward. With no 

other citizens signed up to speak, the Chairman then closed the public hearing.  

 

MOTION 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to approve REZ 19-02. Commissioner Henderson seconded 

the motion. The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: CA 19-01 FESTIVALS (RESUMED FROM 3/11/19) 

 

Mr. Duncan provided an overview of the workshop discussion of CA 19-01 and the public hearing 

was held previously.  

  
MOTION 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to table CA 19-01 until further consideration is warranted.  

Commissioner Bryant seconded the motion. The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

214



 

   

 

PUBLIC HEARING: CA 18-04 SETBACKS AND ROAD FRONTAGE (RESUMED FROM 

3/11/19) 

 

Mr. Duncan provided the Planning Commission with an updated copy of the proposed code 

amendment which was previously reviewed by the Planning Commission. The height requirement 

was changed to incorporate Commissioner Donahue’s recommendation from the previous 

workshop meeting.  

 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to approve CA 18-04.  Commissioner Gilliam seconded the 

motion.  The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

PUBLIC HEARING: REZ 19-01 HAMILTON DANCE STUDIO 

 

Mr. Duncan provided an overview of REZ 19-01 which would allow for a dance studio with a 

possible restaurant and community store.  

 

The Chairman opened the public hearing.  With no citizens signed up to speak, the Chairman then 

closed the public hearing.  

 

The applicant, Chana Hamilton, arrived at 7:09 p.m. and provided an overview of her proposed 

project which would consist of a dance studio which would include a gym, recreation area for 

children, a cafeteria, aerobics and yoga.  

 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Allen made a motion to approve REZ 19-01. Commissioner Gilliam seconded the 

motion.  The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

GENERAL CITIZEN COMMENTS 

 

Mrs. Carol Miller stated that she thinks the dance studio sounds like a great idea as long as the 

applicant can get it off the ground. She inquired as to whether applicants are penalized if they do 

not show up for their public hearings.  

 

OLD BUSINESS 

 

Mr. Duncan noted that he is still working on the Cobbs Creek Area Plan. He also briefly spoke 

about the private road maintenance agreement previously discussed.   

 

NEW BUSINESS 

 

Ms. Vivian Giles provided a Board of Supervisors update.  

 

Mr. Duncan spoke about the rezoning on the Brook Hill Road area. All signatures for the lots have 

been received with the exception of 1. The Planning Commission agreed to table until the June 

workshop meeting.  

 

215



 

   

Mr. Duncan also spoke about an issue that has arisen with the Family Subdivision requirements. 

The party would like to do a family subdivision but has only had the property for 8 years. The 

Planning Commission agreed to discuss in the June workshop meeting.  

 

Finally, Mr. Duncan spoke about the Dowler lot line adjustment which will be coming before the 

Planning Commission in April. This proposed subdivision consists of one lot with 2 dwellings. Mr. 

Duncan will be recommending allowing a house on 1 acre.   

 

GENERAL COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 

Commissioner Bryant noted they had a big agenda and thanked everyone for coming. He stated 

that the Planning Commission works hard to grow the county and help businesses.  

 

Commissioner Henderson thanked the Hamilton’s and everyone else for coming. 

 

Commission Allen agreed with Commissioner Bryant and asked that prospective businesses meet 

requirements, which may be adjusted by the Planning Commission, within reason. He welcomed 

new business owners and wished them success. He also thanked everyone for coming.  

 

Commissioner Gilliam stated that the Planning Commission wants to help.  

 

Commissioner Flippen agreed with all the previous comments and thanked everyone for coming.   

 

Chairman Burger thanked everyone for coming. He stated that the Planning Commission will 

expedite business applications in any way possible.  

 

ADJOURNMENT 

 

MOTION: 

Commissioner Allen moved to adjourn to the next Planning Commission meeting of Monday, 

April 22, 2019, at 6:30 p.m. or as soon after as may be heard. Commissioner Bryant seconded.  

The motion carried unanimously with a vote of 6-0. 

 

 

Attested:  

 

 

 

_________________________________________ ____________ 

Bill Burger, Planning Commission Chairman Date 

 

    

  ________________________________________   ____________ 

  James P. Duncan, Planning Director   Date  

216


	051419.Board's Agenda
	BOS 051419 Packet wo Agenda
	6.b.CA 18-04 Staff Report
	6.c.CUP 19-02 BOS 5.14.19 Staff Report
	6.d.CUP 19-03 BOS 5.14.19 Staff Report
	6.e.CUP 19-04 BOS 5.14.19 Staff Report
	6.f.Rez 19-01 BOS Staff Report 5.14.19
	6.g.Rez 19-02 BOS Staff Report 5.14.19
	7.a.2.a.040219.BOS.7pm
	7.a.2.b.040919.BOS.7pm
	7.a.2.c.041819.BOS.SpecialCAlledMeeting
	White Paper - SWMP Plan Amendments to ratify PE Amendments
	7.b.1.AS - Solid Waste Management PLan
	7.b.2.Revised SWM PLan no appendix-Apr 2019
	7.d.White Paper - PASAP appointment
	Resolution - Blanton and Pleasants - 90 years
	8.a.Monthly_Budget_report_051419
	8.b.CCPS-Appropriation letter date May 2, 2019 -
	ADPB76D.tmp
	Sheet1


	8.c.Supplemental_Appropriation_ACO_donation_250.00_051419
	9.a.Monthly Planning Update- 5.14
	9.b.CUP 19-05 Set PH
	Closed_Session_Certification
	16.a.1.Treasurers_report_1_of_2_051419
	16.a.2.Treasurers_report_2_of_2_051419
	16.b.Transaction tracker
	16.c.Building Inspections Report
	16.d.1.PC_2019_3_25_minutes




